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NOTICE OF HON’'BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL CONVENED MEETING

OF THE SECURED CREDITORS OF JINDAL COKE LIMITED

(Being convened pursuant to order dated 10™ May 2022 passed by Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench, , in the Company Application no. CA (CAA) No. 8/Chd/Hry/2022)

MEETING:

Day ;| Saturday

Date : [09% July 2022

Time 02:30 p.m. (Indian Standard Time)

Venue 1 | The deemed venue for the aforesaid Meeting shall be the Registered Office of
Jindal Coke Limited (“the Company™), i.e., O.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar- 125005,
Haryana

Mode : |As per the directions of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Chandigarh Bench, the Meeting shall be conducted through video conferencing
{ other audio visual means with facility of remote e-voting.

REMOTE E-VOTING:

Time

Start Date and : [09"™ June 2022 at 9:00 a.m. (Indian Standard Time)

End Date and Time | ; |8" July 2022 at 5:00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time)
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BEFORE THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, CHANDIGARH BENCH
COMPANY APPLICATION NO. CA(CAA) No. 8/Chd/Hry/2022

In the matter of Sections 230-232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016

And

In the matter of the Composite Scheme of Arrangement
Amongst

JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED
A public limited company incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 having its
registered office at O.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar- 125005, Haryana through its authorized representative,
Mr. Akhand Kirty, mobile no.: 8051168592, e-mail address: akhand.kirty@jindalstainless.com
.... Amalgamated Company

AND

JINDAL COKE LIMITED
A public limited company incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 having its
registered office at O.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar - 125005, Haryana, Haryana through its authorized
representative, Mr. Pradeep Tahiliani, mobile no.: 9818730222, e-mail address:
pradeep.tahiliani@jindalstainless.com
.... Amalgamating Company

AND

their respective Shareholders and Creditors


mailto:akhand.kirty@jindalstainless.com
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FORM NO. CAA?2
[Pursuant to Section 230 and the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations)
Rules, 2016]

NOTICE OF TRIBUNAL CONVENED MEETING OF THE SECURED CREDITORS OF
JINDAL COKE LIMITED

To,

The Secured Creditors of

Jindal Coke Limited

(Amalgamating Company/ Company or JCL)

Notice is hereby given that by an Order dated 10" May, 2022 in the Company Application no.
CA(CAA) No. 8/Chd/Hry/2022 (“Order™), the Chandigarh Bench of the Hon’ble National Company
Law Tribunal (“Tribunal” or “Hon’ble NCLT”) has directed a Meeting to be convened for the
Secured Creditors (“Creditors”) of the Company for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit,
approving with or without modification(s), the Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst Jindal
United Steel Limited (the “Amalgamated Company”), Jindal Coke Limited (the “Amalgamating
Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”) under Sections 230 to 232
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”).

In pursuance of the said Order and as directed therein, further notice is hereby given that a Meeting of
the Secured Creditors of the Company will be held on Saturday, 9" July 2022 at 02:30 P.M.
(“Meeting”) The Meeting will be held through Video Conferencing or Other Audio Visual Means
(“VC/OAVM”) with the facility of remote e-voting / e-voting for the Meeting, in accordance with the
Order of the NCLT and pursuant to the General Circular No. 14/2020 dated 08™ April, 2020, General
Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13" April, 2020, General Circular N0.22/2020 dated 15" June, 2020,
General Circular No. 33/2020 dated 28" September, 2020, General Circular No. 39/2020 dated 31
December, 2020, General Circular No. 10/2021 dated 23" June, 2021, General Circular No. 20/2021
dated 08" December, 2021 and General Circular No. 3/2022 dated May 5, 2022 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”).
The NCLT Order and MCA Circulars permit to take all decisions requiring the approval of the
Secured Creditors, through VC/OVAM, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules made thereunder, without holding a general meeting which requires the physical
presence of Secured Creditors at a common venue. The deemed venue for the aforesaid Meeting shall
be the Registered Office of the Company, i.e. O.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar- 125005, Haryana.

Secured Creditors entitled to attend, and vote may vote through remote e-voting / e-voting facility
made available for the Meeting and attend through VC/OAVM. The facility of appointment of proxies
by Secured Creditors will not be available for such Meeting. A body corporate which is a Secured
Creditor is entitled to appoint a representative for the purposes of participating and / or vote through
remote e-voting or e-voting during the Meeting.

Copy of the Notice in relation to the Meeting, together with the documents accompanying the same,
including the Explanatory Statement, under Sections 102, 230(3), 232(1), 232(2), of the Act read
with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016
(“Explanatory Statement”) along with the Scheme can be obtained free of charge at the registered
office of the Company at O.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar- 125005, Haryana between 10.00 A.M. and 12.00
Noon on all days (except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays) prior to the date of the Meeting.
The Company will furnish a copy of Scheme within one day of any requisition of the Scheme made
by any Secured Creditor to Company by e-mail at jindalcoke@gmail.com.
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The Hon’ble has appointed Mr. Justice Surinder Gupta (Retd.), as the Chairperson, Mr. Yash Pal
Gupta, Advocate, as Alternate Chairperson and Ms. Neelanchi Garg, Chartered Accountant as the
Scrutinizer for the Meeting, including any adjournment or adjournments thereof. The Scheme, if
approved in the aforesaid Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent approval of the Hon’ble NCLT.

TAKE NOTICE that the following resolution is proposed under Section 230(3) of the Act (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and such other
provisions as may be applicable, the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association of the Company, for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving with the
requisite majority, the Scheme amongst Jindal United Steel Limited, Jindal Coke Limited and their
respective shareholders and creditors:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230-232 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, the rules, circulars and notifications made thereunder (including any
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) as may be applicable, and subject to the provisions of
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the approval of the
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench (“Tribunal” or “Hon’ble NCLT”) and
subject to such other approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory and other authorities, as may
be necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by
Hon’ble NCLT or by any regulatory or other authorities, while granting such consents, approvals and
permissions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to
as the “Board”, which term shall be deemed to mean and include one or more Committee(s)
constituted/to be constituted by the Board or any person(s) which the Board may nominate to exercise
its powers including the powers conferred by this resolution), approval of the Secured Creditors of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to the Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst Jindal United
Steel Limited, Jindal Coke Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”);

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things, as it may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or
necessary to give effect to this resolution and effectively implement the Scheme and to accept such
modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, (including withdrawal of the Scheme),
which may be required and/or imposed by the Hon’ble NCLT while approving the Scheme or by any
authorities under law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any questions or doubts or
difficulties that may arise in giving effect to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper.”

Pradeep Tabhiliani

Company Secretary

ACS18570

Jindal Coke Limited

Jindal Centre 12, Bhikaiji Cama Place,
New Delhi-110066

Date: 03" June, 2022
Place: New Delhi

Registered Office:

JINDAL COKE LIMITED,

O.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar- 125005, Haryana
CIN - U23101HR2014PLC053884
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Notes:

Please note that pursuant to provisions of Section 230; Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016; Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof); and
General Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8" April, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13" April,
2020, General Circular No. 22/2020 dated 15™ June, 2020, General Circular No. 33/2020 dated 28™
September, 2020, General Circular No. 39/2020 dated 31% December 2020, General Circular No.
10/2021 dated 23" June, 2021, General Circular No. 20/2021 dated 08" December, 2021 and General
Circular No. 3/2022 dated May 5, 2022 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA
Circulars”) and other relevant laws and regulations, as may be applicable, and in accordance with the
Order of the Hon’ble NCLT, Company has provided facility of voting to the Secured Creditors on the
proposed resolution through remote e-voting / e-voting facility made available for the Meeting. The
Company has appointed Link Intime (India) Private Limited (“LIIPL”) for the purposes of providing
for the VC/OAVM facility and for purpose of providing remote e-voting / e-voting for the Meeting.
The detailed procedure for participating in the Meeting though VC/OAVM is mentioned hereunder in
this notice. The deemed venue for the aforesaid Meeting shall be the Registered Office of the
Company.

A copy of the Explanatory Statement, under Sections 102, 230(3), 232(1), 232(2) the Act read with
Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, along with
the Scheme and other enclosures as indicated in the Index are enclosed.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Secured Creditor entitled to attend and vote at a Meeting is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of
the Company. Since this Meeting is being held pursuant to the MCA circulars and directions of
Hon’ble NCLT through VC / OVAM facility, physical attendance of Secured Creditors has been
dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Secured Creditors will not
be available for this Meeting and therefore the proxy form, route map and attendance slip are not
annexed to this notice.

Institution / Body Corporate etc. which is a Secured Creditor of the Company and intending to
appoint an authorised representative for the purpose of participating and / or to cast their vote through
remote e-voting or e-voting for the Meeting held through VC/OAVM are requested to send a duly
certified copy of the resolution of the Board of Directors or other governing body of such Institution /
Body Corporate along with the valid and legible identity proof issued by a statutory authority (i.e.,
PAN card/ Aadhaar card/ Passport/ Driving License/ Voter Id Card) to the scrutinizer at
neelanchi09@gmail.com from their registered email address with a copy marked to
delhi@linkintime.co.in, authorising such representative to participate and vote on their behalf not less
than 48 hours before the time fixed for the Meeting.

As per the directions of the NCLT, the quorum of the Meeting of the Secured Creditors shall be 6 in
number or 40% in value of the Secured Creditors.

If the quorum for the Meeting is not present at the commencement of the Meeting, the Meeting shall
be adjourned by 30 minutes and thereafter the Secured Creditors attending the Meeting through VC/
OVAM facility shall be deemed to constitute the quorum.
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The documents referred to in the accompanying Explanatory Statement shall be open for inspection
by the Secured Creditors at the registered office of the Company between 10.00 A.M. and 12.00 Noon
on all days (except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays) up to the date of the Meeting. However,
the same shall be open for inspection during the aforesaid Meeting.

The Notice in relation to the Meeting, together with the documents accompanying the same, is being
sent to all the Secured Creditors of the Company as on 10" May 2022 through registered post as well
as electronic mode (e-mail) whose e-mail 1Ds are registered with the Company for communication
purposes. The notice may also be accessed on the website of the Company viz.
https://www.jindalcoke.com and also on the website of Link Intime India Private Limited, at
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in.

Secured Creditors who have not registered their email addresses with the Company, and who wish to
receive the Notice of the Meeting of the Company and all other communication sent by the Company,
from time to time, can now register for the same by submitting a duly filled-in request form
mentioning their complete address, email address to be registered along with scanned self- attested
copy of the PAN Card and any document (such as Driving License, Passport, Bank Statement,
Aadhaar Card) supporting the registered address of the Secured Creditor, by email to the Company.

In terms of directions contained in the Order, the notice convening the Meeting will be published
through advertisement in (i) Financial Express, Delhi NCR Edition, in the English language and (ii) in
Jansatta, Delhi NCR Edition, in Hindi language.

The NCLT has appointed Ms. Neelanchi Garg, Chartered Accountant as the Scrutinizer for
conducting the remote e-voting and e-voting for the Meeting. The Scrutinizer shall submit his
Consolidated Report within three days from the conclusion of the Meeting to the Chairman of the
Meeting or a person authorized by him in writing. The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the
votes cast shall be final.

The results, together with the scrutinizer’s reports, will be displayed at the registered office of the
Company situated at O.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar- 125005, Haryana, on the website of the Company,
https://www.jindalcoke.com/, and also on the website of Link Intime India Private Limited, at
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Act, the Scheme shall be acted upon
only if the resolution mentioned above in the notice has been approved by the majority in persons
representing three fourth in value, of the fully paid-up of the Secured Creditors, voting through remote
e-voting / e-voting facility made available for the Meeting.

The Secured Creditors desiring to attend this Meeting through VC/OAVM and exercising their vote
through remote e-voting / e-voting made available during the Meeting, are requested to carefully
follow the instructions set out in the notes below under the heading “Online Meeting Process” or
“Voting through Remote E-voting”, as the case may be.

The voting rights of Secured Creditors shall be in proportion to the principal amount due to them by
the Company as on the Cut-off Date i.e. 10" May, 2022.


https://www.jindalcoke.com/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
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(14) Itis clarified that cast of votes by remote e-voting (prior to the Meeting) does not disentitle a Secured
Creditor from attending the Meeting. However, a Secured Creditor who has voted through remote e-
voting prior to the Meeting cannot vote through e-voting during the Meeting. The Secured Creditors
of Company attending the Meeting through VC/ OAVM who have not cast their vote through remote
e-voting prior to the Meeting shall be entitled to exercise their vote using the e-voting facility made
available during the Meeting through VC/ OAVM.



Voting through Remote E-voting
The instructions for Secured Creditors voting electronically are as under:

The remote e-voting period will commence on 09" June, 2022 at 9.00 A.M. (IST) and ends on 8"
July, 2022 at 5.00 P.M. (IST). During this period Secured Creditors’ of the Company as on the Cut-
off Date 10" May, 2022, may cast their vote electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be
disabled by LIIPL for voting thereafter.

Once the vote on the resolution is cast by a Secured Creditor, whether partially or otherwise, it shall
not be allowed to change subsequently. In case you do not desire to cast your vote, it will be treated as

“ABSTAINED”.

Secured Creditors who have already voted prior to the Meeting date would not be entitled to vote
during the Meeting.

Remote e-Voting Instructions for Creditors:

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL.: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

Those who are first time users of LIIPL e-voting platform must mandatorily generate their own
Password, as under:

» Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following details: -

A. User ID: Enter your User ID.
Your User ID is Event No + Reference Number communicated to you separately.

B. PAN:
Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Creditors who have not updated their PAN with
the Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.

C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with the
Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format)

D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with the
Company.

* Creditors who have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall provide their Reference Number in ‘D’

above

P Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one
special Character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter).

P Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated)




2. Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab.

3. Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on ‘Submit’.

4. After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’ icon.

5. E-voting page will appear.

6. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour /
Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link).
7. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation box will
be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Yes’, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’
and accordingly modify your vote.

If you have forgotten the password:

o Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SSHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click ‘forgot password?’
o Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and Click on
‘Submit’.

* In case Creditors is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail
address.

* Creditors can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the particulars
of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc.
as mentioned above.

» The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character (@!#$&%*), at
least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter.

» It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care
to keep your password confidential.

During the voting period, Creditors can login any number of time till they have voted on the
resolution(s) for a particular “Event”.

In case Creditors have any queries regarding e-voting, they may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (‘FAQs’) and InstaVote e-Voting manual available at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in,
under Help section or send an email to enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 —4918
6000.

InstaVote Support Desk
Link Intime India Private Limited



Process and manner for attending the Meeting through InstaMeet:

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instameet.linkintime.co.in

» Select the “Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your following details: -

Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your Folio No. (Reference Number) provided to you on
your registered email address.

PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Creditors who have not updated
their PAN with the Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.

Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number.

Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with the Company.

P Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for
the Meeting).

Please read the instructions carefully and participate in the Meeting. You may also call upon the
InstaMeet Support Desk for any support on the dedicated number provided to you in the instruction/
InstaMeet website.

Instructions for Creditor to Speak during the Meeting through InstaMeet:

1. Creditor who would like to speak during the Meeting must register their request 3 days in advance
with the company on the e-mail id provided in the Notice.

2. Creditor will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the
client.

3. Creditor will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the Meeting.

4. Creditor may also ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-board during the Meeting.

5. Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by switching
on video mode and audio of your device.

Creditor are requested to speak only when moderator of the Meeting/ management will announce the
name and serial number for speaking.

Instructions for Creditor to VVote during the Meeting through InstaMeet:

During the voting session Creditor may click the voting button which is appearing on the right-hand
side of your VC Meeting screen. Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer during the
Meeting, Creditor can cast the vote as under:

1. On the VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote”

2. Enter your Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ registered email 1d)
received during registration for InstaMeet and click on 'Submit'.

3. After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option
“Favour/ Against” for voting.



4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired.

5. After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote,
click on “Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on
“Confirm”, else to change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote.

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your
vote subsequently.

Note: Creditor , who will be present in the Meeting through InstaMeet facility and have not casted
their vote on the Resolution through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so,
shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the Meeting. Creditor who have voted
through Remote e-Voting prior to the Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the Meeting
through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the Meeting.

Creditor are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through broadband
for better experience.

Creditor are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to
avoid any disturbance during the Meeting.

Please note that Creditor connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network. It is
therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of afore said
glitches.

In case Creditor have any queries regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an email
toinstameet@Iinkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175.

InstaMeet Support Desk
Link Intime India Private Limited

10


mailto:toinstameet@linkintime.co.in

Annexure

Guidelines to attend the Meeting proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.: InstaMeet

For a smooth experience of viewing the Meeting proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.
InstaMeet, Creditor who are registered as speakers for the event are requested to download and
install the Webex application in advance by following the instructions as under:

a) Please download and install the Webex application by clicking on the link
https://www.webex.com/downloads.html/

Event Information:

: [

Event status: Join Event Now
Date and time:
You cannot join the event now Decause it Nas not started

Duration: First name: B
Description: Last name ! . '; .'I. . -I.... .
Email address email addre
Event password:
By joining this event, yeu are accepling the Cisca Webex Terr vice and Privacy
o o] <:I

IT yOU are e NOST, 1AL YOUL Bvent

Ms. Neelanchi Garg, Chartered Accountant shall unblock the votes in the presence of at least two(2)
witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in
favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Meeting / the Company Secretary of the
Company.

The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be disseminated on the Company’s
website https://www.jindalcoke.com/ and on the website of LIIPL within three days / prescribed
timeline from the conclusion of the Meeting.

Encl.: As above
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COMPANY APPLICATION NO. CA (CAA) No. 8/Chd/Hry/2022

In the matter of Sections 230-232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016

And

In the matter of the Composite Scheme of Arrangement
Amongst

JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED
A public limited company incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 having its
registered office at O.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar- 125005, Haryana through its authorized representative,
Mr. Akhand Kirty, mobile no.: 8051168592, e-mail address: akhand.kirty@jindalstainless.com
.... Amalgamated Company

AND

JINDAL COKE LIMITED
A public limited company incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 having its
registered office at O.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar - 125005, Haryana, Haryana through its authorized
representative, Mr. Pradeep Tahiliani, mobile no.: 9818730222, e-mail address:
pradeep.tahiliani@jindalstainless.com
.... Amalgamating Company

AND
their respective Shareholders and Creditors

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 102, 230(3), 232(1), 232(2) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 6 OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES,
ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016

1. Pursuant to the order dated 10" May 2022 passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench (“Hon’ble NCLT™), in the Company Application Number No.
CA(CAA) No. 8/Chd/Hry/2022 (“Order”), a Meeting of the Secured Creditors (“Creditors”) of
Jindal Coke Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Amalgamating Company” or “JCL” or
“Company” as the context may admit) (“Meeting”) is being convened and held through video
conferencing or other audio visual means (“VC / OAVM”) on Saturday, 09" July 2022 at 02:30
P.M., for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving, with or without
modification(s), the resolution seeking approval for the Composite Scheme of Arrangement
amongst Jindal United Steel Limited (the “Amalgamated Company”), Jindal Coke Limited (the
“Amalgamating Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 -
232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed
thereunder (the “Scheme”).

2. Hon’ble NCLT, by its order, has, inter alia, held that since the Company is directed to convene a

Meeting of its Secured Creditors and the voting in respect of the Secured Creditors is through
remote e-voting / e-voting for the Meeting, the same is sufficient compliance of the Order.
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Ms. Neelanchi Garg, Chartered Accountant, the Scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-voting
and e-voting for the Meeting. The Scrutinizer shall submit her Report within three days from the
conclusion of the Meeting to the Chairman of the Meeting or a person authorized by him in
writing. The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the votes cast shall be final.

The copy of the Composite Scheme of Arrangement is enclosed herewith as Annexure 1 to this
Notice for convening the Meeting.

In terms of the said Order, Hon’ble NCLT, has appointed Mr. Justice Surinder Gupta (Retd.) as
the Chairperson, Mr. Yash Pal Gupta, Advocate, as Alternate Chairperson and Ms. Neelanchi
Garg, Chartered Accountant as the Scrutinizer for the Meeting of Secured Creditors of JCL
including for any adjournment or adjournments thereof.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Act, the Scheme shall be
considered approved by the Secured Creditors and acted upon only if resolution mentioned
above in the notice has been approved by a majority in person representing three fourths in value
of the Secured Creditors of the Company, voting through remote e-voting and e-voting for the
Meeting.

Particulars of JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED:

7.

Jindal United Steel Limited (“Amalgamated Company” or “JUSL”) is a public limited company,
incorporated on 01% December, 2014 under the Companies Act, 2013, having its registered
office at O.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar- 125005, Haryana.

There has been no change in the name, registered office and objects of JUSL in the immediately
preceding 5 (five) years. Its Corporate Identity Number (‘CIN”) is U28113HR2014PLC053875
and Permanent Account Number (‘PAN’) is AADCJ4180C and the email id of the Company is
jindalunited@gmail.com.

The main objects of JUSL are set out in its Memorandum of Association and are set out
hereunder:

"1. To carry on the business of manufactures, processors, refiners, smelters, makers, converts,
finishers, Importers, exporters, agents, merchants, buyers, sellers and dealers in all kinds and
forms of steels Including tools and alloy steels, stainless and all other special steels, iron and
other metals and alloys, all kinds of goods, products, articles or merchandise whatsoever
manufactured wholly or partly from steels and other metals and alloys; and also the business
and iron masters, steel and metal converters, colliery proprietors, coke manufacturers,
ferroalloy manufactures miners, smelters and engineers in all their respective branches and to
search for, get, work, raise, make, merchantable, manufacture, process, buy sell and otherwise
deal in iron, Pig Iron, Granulated slag, Iron Ore Fines, steel and other metal, coal, coke, brick-
carth, fire-clay, bricks, ores, minerals and mineral substances, gases, alloy. Metal, metal scrap,
chemicals and chemical substances of all kinds and to set up Steel and non-ferrous melting
furnaces, converters, AP Lines and casting facilities to produce stainless steel, ferrous and non-
ferrous metals, alloy steels, steel and non-ferrous ingots, continuous cast slabs, blooms, rounds,
billets of various cross-sections, alloys and special steel,

2. To set up Hot and Cold Rolling facilities to shape the cast metal into flats, angles, rounds,
squares, rails, joist channels, slabs, strips, sheets, plates, coils both Hot & Cold roiled, deformed
bars, plain and cold twisted bars and shafting and blank-coins and to carry on all or any of the
business of manufacturing, developing, assemblers, engineers, consultants, erectors, founders,
smelters, refiners, makers, drawers, sinkers, miners, workers, repairers, hire purchase dealers,
import and export agents, representatives. Contractors and dealers of and in forging, Casting of
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10.

Steel, Stainless and Special Steels, Carbon Steel and Mild Steel ,alloys and ferrous and non-
ferrous metals, auto parts, tools and implements, dies, jigs, steel pipes and tubes and pipe
fittings. Iron and Steel products, cast iron and Steel and tubular structural.

3. To search, win, work, get, raise, quarry, smelt, refine, dress, manufacture, manipulate,
convert, make merchantable, sell, buy, Import, export or otherwise deal in iron ore, all kinds of
metal, metalligerous ore, manganese ore, chrome ore, nickel ore, coal, lignite, limestone, quartz,
zinc ore, cooper based ore and all other minerals and substances, whatsoever and to
manufacture, sell, buy, import and otherwise deal in any such articles and commodities and to
manufacture, deal, import and export stainless steel, pig Iran, sponge Iron, ferro silicon, ferro
chrome, ferro manganese and other ferrous substances and metals of every description and
grades and to manufacture, deal, import, and export all kinds and varieties of non-ferrous raw
metals such as aluminum, copper, tin, lead etc. and the byproducts obtained in processing and
manufacturing these raw metals and to deal in to make and deal in ferrous/non-ferrous and
special alloys & steels including non-metallic for the purpose of use in Defence, Aero & Space,
nuclear and for other applications.

4. To carry on in India or elsewhere the business to generate, receive, produce, improve, buy,
sell, resell, acquire, use, transmit, accumulate, employ, distribute, develop, handle, protect,
supply and to act as agent, broker, representative, consultant, collaborator, or otherwise to deal
in electric power in all its branches at such place or places as may be permitted by appropriate
authorities by establishments of diesel power plants, thermal power plants, hydraulic power
plants, atomic power plants, wind power plants, solar power plants and other power plants
based on any source of energy as may be developed or invented in future.

5. To carry on the business of manufacturing, producing, compressing and liquefying Oxygen,
Argon, Nitrogen, hydrogen, Acetylene, Carbolic Acid, Chlorine, Neon, Helium and any other
gases of kindred substances or any compounds thereof by any process and of dealing in such
gases, substances and compounds and to manufacturer, buy. sell, let on hire and otherwise deals
in cylinders, compressors, plants, machineries. apparatus, tools, equipment, spare parts and
other articles and things or manufacturing, compressing, liquefying, solidifying, storing and
transporting all kinds of gases and to do all such things as are incidental to the said business."

The Company is engaged is engaged in the business of hot rolling and cold rolling of stainless
steel for multiple application.

The Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital of Applicant Company 1 as on
January 15, 2022 is as follows:

Particulars Amount (in INR)
Authorized:
55,50,00,000 Equity Shares of X 10 each 5,55,00,00,000
ig(,;0,00,000 Preference Shares of X 10 2.65,00,00,000
Total 8,20,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:

46,16,08,315 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each

fully paid up 4,61,60,83,150
5,50,31,563 Non- Cumulative
Compulsorily  Convertible Preference 55,03,15,630

Shares X 10 each fully paid up
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8,76,73,311 Non- Cumulative Non-

Convertible  Redeemable  Preference 87,67,33,110
Shares of % 10 each fully paid up

Total 6,04,31,31,890

Subsequent to January 15, 2022, there has been no change in the authorized, issued, subscribed
and paid-up share capital of the Applicant Company 1.

11. The details of the directors and Promoter / Promoter Group of JUSL as on January 15, 2022
along with their addresses are as follows:

Directors of JUSL -

Sr. Name Address

No.

1. | Mr. Ratan Jindal 6, Prithvi Raj Road, Delhi-110001

2. | Mr. Anand Kumar Garg H. No. 363, Jain Nagar Near Hotel Sapphire,

Jagadhri Yamuna Nagar-135001, Haryana

3. | Mr. Kapil Mantri K-12, First Floor, Rajouri Garden New Delhi-
110027

4. | Mr. Rahul Himatsingka H-2-13, Nand Niketan, Essar Township, Hazira-
394270 Gujarat

5. | Ms. Vaishali Deshmukh C-1/1134 Vasant Kunj New Delhi-110070

6. | Mr. Om Parkash Verma Bhagwan Dass Verma, H. NO. 265, Ward NO.
15, Dhani Charkhan, Near Patram Gate Bhiwani-
127021, Haryana

Details of Promoter(s) of JUSL -

Sr. No.

Name

Address

1.

Jindal Stainless Limited

0.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar-125005, Haryana

2.

OPJ Steel Trading Private Limited

28 Najafgarh Road, New Delhi, West Delhi-

110015

Particulars of JINDAL COKE LIMITED:

12.

Jindal Coke Limited (the “Amalgamating Company” or “JCL”) is a public limited company,
incorporated on 02™ December, 2014 under the Companies Act, 2013, having its registered
office at O.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar- 125005, Haryana.

There has been no change in the name, registered office and object clause of JCL in the
immediately preceding 5 (five) years.
U23101HR2014PLC053884 and Permanent Account Number (‘PAN’) is AADCJ4179K and the
email id of the Company is jindalcoke@gmail.com.

Its Corporate Identity Number (‘CIN’) is
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13.

14.

The main objects of JCL are set out in its Memorandum of Association and are set out
hereunder:

“1. To carry on the business of purchase, sale, manufacture, process, import, export, buyers,
sellers, traders, merchants, distribution, deal in, to act as indent or agent, commission agent,
distributors, whole sellers, retailers, broker, contractor, or otherwise deal with raw and process
materials, semi products and end products of Low ash Metallurgical Coke, carbon, Chemicals,
Coal, Coke, Petroleum Coke products, Calcined Petroleum Coke, Ferro Alloys, Electrodes,
Petro Products and Petro Products of kinds & specification and other allied items and industrial
raw materials.

2. To manufacture, purchase, sell, deal in soft coke, Special Smokeless Fuel(SSF) with coal tar
recovered by CMPDIL Technology, industrial coke, coke as substitute to Charcoal, processing
and distillation of coal tar coal tar chemicals, any other type of coke and organic chemicals
based on carbon and tar derivatives, charcoal, bone charcoal, activated charcoal, activated
carbon, black or any other carbon products, dyes, dye intermediaries, coal mining, use of waste
heat for processing or production of any article etc.

3. To carry on in all its branches the business of manufacturers and dealers in carbon black of
all types, gas black, ebony black, jet black, hydrocarbon black, satin black and silicate of carbon
either from natural and/or artificial gas or from any other source.

4. To carry on the business of manufactures, processors, refiners, smelters, makers, converts,
finishers, importers, exporters, agents, merchants, buyers, sellers and dealers in all kinds and
forms of steels including tools and alloy steels, stainless and all other special steels, iron and
other metals and alloys, all kinds of goods, products, articles or merchandise whatsoever
manufactured wholly or partly from steels and other metals and alloys; and also the business
and iron masters, steel and metal converters, colliary proprietors, coke manufacturers,
ferroalloy manufactures, miners, smelters and engineers in all their respective branches and to
search for, get, work, raise, make, merchantable, manufacture, process, buy, sell and otherwise
deal in iron, Pig Iron, Granulated slag, Iron Ore Fines, steel and other metal, coal, coke, brick-
carth, fire clay, bricks, ores, minerals and mineral substances, gases, alloy. Metal, metal scrap,
chemicals and chemical substances of all kinds.

5. To carry on all or any of the business of manufacturing, developing, assemblers, fitters,
engineers, consultants, erectors, founders, smelters, refiners, makers, drawers, sinkers, miners,
workers, repairers, hire purchase dealers, import and export agents, representatives,
Contractors and dealers of and in forging, Casting of Steel, Stainless and Special Steels, Carbon
Steel and Mild Steel, alloys and ferrous and non-ferrous metals, auto parts, tools and
implements, dies, jigs, steel pipes and tubes and pipe fittings, iron and Steel products, cast iron
and Steel and tubular structural.

6. To set up Steel and non-ferrous melting furnaces, converters, AP Lines and casting facilities
to produce stainless steel, ferrous and non-ferrous metals, alloy steels, steel and non-ferrous
ingots, continuous cast slabs, blooms, rounds, billets of various cross sections, alloys and special
steel, to make and deal in ferrous/non-ferrous and special alloys & steels including non-metallic
for the purpose of use in Defence, Aero & Space, nuclear and for other applications.”

JCL is engaged in the business of manufacturing, processing, finishing and dealing in all kinds
and forms of Coke and Coke products.
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15. The Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital of Applicant Company 2 as on
January 15, 2022 is as follows:

16.

Particulars Amount (in INR)
Authorized:
3,50,50,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 35,05,00,000
11,77,00,000 Preference Shares of % 10 each 1,17,70,00,000
Total 1,52,75,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:
3,24,32,432 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid 32,43,24,320
up
10,92,64,641 Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible 1,09,26,46,410
Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each fully
paid up
Total 1,41,69,70,730

Subsequent to January 15, 2022, there has been no change in the authorized, issued, subscribed
and paid-up share capital of the Applicant Company 2.

The details of the directors and Promoter / Promoter Group of JCL as on January 15, 2022,
along with their addresses are as follows:

Directors of JCL —

Sr. Name Address

No.

1. | Mr. Ratan Jindal 6, Prithvi Raj Road, Delhi-110001

2. | Mr. Udai Vashisht House Name-Ram Niketan, Near Midway
Resorts, Railwala Dehradun-249205

3. | Mr. Gautam Kanjilal 1698, I-Block, C R Park, Kalkaji, Aali, Ali Delhi-
110019

4. | Ms. Vaishali Deshmukh C-1/1134 Vasant Kunj, New Delhi-110070

5. | Mr. Shashibhushan Shobhnath H-132, Cosmopolis, Dumduma Bhubaneswar-

Upadhyay 751019, Odisha

Promoter(s) of JCL —

Sr. No.

Name

Address

1.

Jindal Stainless Limited

0.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar-125005, Haryana

2.

Four Seasons Investments Limited

JTC Fiduciary Services (Mauritius) Limited, Suite
2004, Level 2, Alexander House, 35 Cybercity,

Ebene, Mauritius
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17.

18.

Details of outstanding debts / loans as well as details of other liabilities, trade payables and
current liabilities which are payable by the Amalgamating Company (as on Appointed Date i.e.
1%t April, 2021) and which are proposed to be transferred to Amalgamated Company, i.e. Jindal
United Steel Limited as part of the Scheme —

(Amount in Rupees)

Type of Loan/ Debt Jindal Coke Limited
Current Borrowings 2,28,15,504.52
Non-Current Borrowings 4,97,06,91,902
Other Non-Current Financial -
Liabilities

Other Non-Current Lease -
Liabilities

Other Non-Current Provisions 1,4452,111
Current Financial Liabilities 10,80,82,891
(Trade Payables)

Other Current 12,77,39,003
Financial Liabilities

Other Current Lease Liabilities -
Other Current Provisions 451,877
Other Current Liabilities 19,46,49,279

Board Meeting approving the Composite Scheme of Arrangement.

The Composite Scheme of Arrangement was unanimously approved by the Board of Directors of
Amalgamated Company and Amalgamating Company vide resolutions passed at their respective
Board Meetings held on 28" January 2022 after taking on record the Valuation report dated 28™
January 2022, issued by registered valuer, Mr. Niranjan Kumar (IBBI Registration No.-
IBBI/RV/06/2018/10137).

Names of the directors who voted in favour of the resolution, who voted against the resolution
and who did not vote or participate on such resolutions:

A. JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED (JUSL):

Name of the Directors of JUSL present Voted in Favour/ Against/ Abstain from
in the Meeting voting

Mr. Ratan Jindal In favour

Mr. Anand Kumar Garg In favour

Mr. Kapil Mantri In favour

Mr. Rahul Himatsingka In favour

Ms. Vaishali Deshmukh In favour

Mr. Om Parkash Verma In favour

B. JINDAL COKE LIMITED (JCL):

Name of the Directors of JCL present in Voted in Favour/ Against/ Abstain from
the Meeting voting

Mr. Ratan Jindal In favour

Mr.Udai Vashisht In favour

Mr.Gautam Kanjilal In favour

Ms. Vaishali Deshmukh In favour
Mr.Shashibhushan Shobhnath Upadhyay In favour
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19. Brief details of the Scheme

S.
No.

Particulars

Particulars

Parties involved in the
Scheme

¢ Jindal United Steel Limited (“JUSL”)
e Jindal Coke Limited (“JCL”)

Relationship  between
the Companies

The companies involved in the Scheme have following

relationship with each other-

e Jindal Stainless Limited (JSL) holds 26% of the shares
in both JUSL as well as JCL and JSL is one of the
promoter in both the Companies.

Scheme of
Arrangement

The Scheme inter alia provides for:

a. Amalgamation of Amalgamating Company into and
with the Amalgamated Company, in the manner set out
in the Scheme; and

b. Various other matters consequential or otherwise

integrally connected herewith.

Appointed Date

The opening of business hours on April 1, 2021 or such
other date as may be approved by the Hon’ble NCLT, with
effect from which the Scheme will be deemed to be
effective in the manner described in the Scheme.

Effective Date

The date on which the order of Hon’ble NCLT sanctioning
the Scheme or any particular parts of the Scheme, is filed
with the Registrar of Companies.

Vi.

Summary of Valuation
Report and  Share
Exchange Ratio

The valuation report dated 28" January 2022 issued by
Mr. Niranjan Kumar, Registered Valuer, in relation to the
Scheme, has recommended following Share Exchange
Ratio -

a) Merger of Amalgamating Company into and with
the Amalgamated Company:

Following share exchange ratio has been determined for
the allotment of the equity shares of the Amalgamated
Company having face value of Rs. 10 each to the
shareholders of the Amalgamating Company as on the
Record Date (as per the Scheme), in consideration for the
amalgamation of the Amalgamating Company with and
into the Amalgamated Company.

“10,765 (Ten Thousand Seven Hundred and Sixty-Five)
equity shares of Amalgamated Company having a face
value of INR 10 each fully paid up shall be issued for
every 1,000 (One Thousand) equity shares held in
Amalgamating Company having face value of INR 10 each
fully paid up. ”

“l (One) 10% Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible
Redeemable Preference Shares of the Amalgamated
Company having a face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
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(with same terms and conditions in all respect as that of
existing 10%  Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible
Redeemable Preference Shares issued by Amalgamating
Company) shall be issued for every 1 (One) fully paid up
Non- Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference
shares held in Amalgamating Company having face value
INR 10 each fully paid-up. ”

The Valuation Report is available for inspection at the
registered office of JUSL.

Vil.

Basis of Valuation

In the present case, the equity shares of JCL and JUSL are
unlisted. Thus, a mix of Net Asset Value Method and
Discounted Cash Flow Method has been used to arrive at
the per share value of JCL and JUSL by assigning
appropriate weights to the values arrived at under each of
the afore mentioned methodology.

viii.

Rationale of the
Scheme or the benefits
of the Scheme as
perceived by the Board
of Directors of the
Company to the
Company,

Shareholders, Creditors
and Others

The Amalgamated Company proposes to enter into this
Scheme with Amalgamating Company to consolidate their
respective manufacturing/service capabilities thereby
increasing efficiencies in operations and use of resources
and better catering to stainless steel and steel industry, to
consolidate their diversified product and services portfolio
for improving overall customer satisfaction, to pool their
human resource talent for optimal utilization of their
expertise, to integrate the marketing and distribution
channels for better efficiency, and to ensure optimization
of working capital utilization.

The management of the respective Companies are of the
view that the amalgamation proposed in this Scheme is, in
particular, expected to have the following benefits:

a) Reduction in management overlaps and elimination of
legal and regulatory compliances and associated costs due
to operation of multiple entities.

b) Optimization of the allocated capital and availability of
funds which can be deployed more efficiently to pursue
the operational growth opportunities.

c) Consolidation of businesses under the Amalgamation,
which would result in pooling of financial, managerial,
technical and human resources, thereby creating stronger
base for future growth and value accretion for the
stakeholders

d) Consolidation of production capabilities to create larger
scale of business and operations to cater to demand of
stainless steel and steel industry.

e) Consolidation of the complementing strengths will
enable the Amalgamated Company to have increased
capability for offering diversified products and services on
a single platform.

f) The combined financial strength is expected to further
accelerate the scaling up of the operations of the
Amalgamated Company.

g) The consolidation of funds and resources will lead to
optimization of working capital utilization and stronger
financial leverage given the simplified capital structure,
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improved balance sheet, optimized management structure
and consolidation of cross location talent pool.

The management of the respective Companies is of the
view that this Scheme is in the interest of the customers,
employees, lenders, shareholders, and all other
stakeholders of the respective Companies. Further, the
Scheme will enable the synergies that already exist
between the Amalgamating Company and the
Amalgamated Company in terms of services and resources
to be used optimally for the benefit of their stakeholders.

20. Salient features of the Scheme
Clause 5.3 of the Part A of the Scheme defines the Amalgamating Company as

“Jindal Coke Limited as mentioned in the Para 2(b) of the scheme and shall, subject to the
relevant provisions of the Scheme, include the whole of the business and undertakings of such
Amalgamating Company, including for such Amalgamating Company:

a) all of its movable assets, , whether present or future, whether tangible or intangible and all
rights, title, interests, covenants, undertakings and continuing rights in relation thereto;

b) all of its immovable properties and all its rights, title, interests, covenants, undertakings and
continuing rights in relation thereto including all its land (together with all the buildings and
structures standing thereon), whether freehold or leasehold;

c) all of its present and future liabilities, including contingent liabilities, charges and debts
appertaining thereto;

d) all of its investments including shares and other securities, loans and advances, including
interest and dividend accrued thereon;

e) all of its permits, rights, entitlements and licences (including the industrial or other licences)
granted by any governmental, statutory or regulatory bodies, environmental clearances,
permissions, approvals, consents, exemptions, subsidies, registrations, no-objection certificates,
quotas, privileges, powers, offices, facilities whether granted/available/renewed/applied for;

f) all of its intellectual property rights, websites, emails, trade names, trademarks, service
marks, copyrights, domain names, brand names, logos and applications therefor;

g) all of its indirect and direct tax credits, including but not limited to, service tax credit,
CENVAT credit, GST credit, VAT credit, income-tax refunds, carry forward losses, unabsorbed
depreciation, TDS, TCS, MAT credit entitlement, CSR credit available for set-off in the
succeeding financial years, etc.;

h) all of its privileges and benefits under all contracts, agreements, memoranda of
understanding and all other rights powers and facilities of every kind and description
whatsoever;

i) all of its debts, borrowings, obligations and liabilities, present or future or contingent,
whether secured or unsecured;

j) all of its workmen and employees including those employed at its offices, factories and
branches, and all other personnel employed by it;

k) all of the advance monies, earnest monies as may be lying with it and any and all of its
security deposits, bank and contractual guarantees and other entitlements; and

1) all of its other properties, assets, liabilities, rights, obligations and employees, etc. of any
nature whatsoever not covered under (a) to (k) above.”

Clause 5.5 of the Part A of the Scheme defines Appointed Date as “means the opening of

business hours on April 1, 2021 or such other date as may be approved by the NCLT, with effect
from which the Scheme will be deemed to be effective in the manner described in the Scheme.”
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Clause 5.9 of the Part A of the Scheme defines “Effective Date” as “means the date on which the
order of the Court sanctioning the Scheme or any particular parts of the Scheme, is filed with the
RoC.”

Clause 8.1 of the Scheme provides that 8.1 - Upon Part B of this Scheme becoming effective on
the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date, the Amalgamating Company along
with all its assets, liabilities, rights and obligations and its entire business and undertakings,
including all its properties, rights, benefits and interests therein, shall by virtue of this Part B of
the Scheme stand amalgamated with, transferred to and vested in the Amalgamated Company,
and shall become the assets, liabilities, rights, obligations, business and undertakings of the
Amalgamated Company, subject to the existing encumbrances thereon in favour of banks and
financial institutions, if any (unless otherwise agreed to be released by such encumbrance
holders in writing), without any further act, instrument or deed being required from the
Amalgamating Company and/or the Amalgamated Company and without any approval or
acknowledgement of any third party, in accordance with Sections 230 to 232 of the Act read
with Section 2(1B) of the IT Act and all other applicable provisions of law if any, in accordance
with the provisions contained herein.

Clause 16 of the Scheme provides that - Upon Part B of this Scheme becoming effective on the
Effective Date, Amalgamating Company shall stand automatically dissolved as an integral part
of this Scheme, without being liquidated or wound-up and without requiring any further act,
instrument or deed from the Amalgamating Company and/or the Amalgamated Company.

Clause 18.1 of the Scheme provides that - 18.1 - The effectiveness this Scheme is conditional
upon and subject to the following:

(a)This Scheme being approved by the requisite majorities of such classes of shareholders and
creditors of the Companies as may be required under Applicable Laws or as may be directed by
the Court;

(b)the sanction of the Scheme by the Court;

(c)the receipt of such other approvals including approvals of any Governmental Authority as
may be necessary under Applicable Laws or under any material contract to make this Scheme
or the relevant Part of this Scheme effective; and

(d)the certified copies of the order of the Court sanctioning this Scheme (wholly or partially)
being filed with the Registrar of Companies by each of the relevant Companies.

YOU ARE REQUESTED TO READ THE ENTIRE TEXT OF THE SCHEME TO GET

FULLY ACQUAINTED WITH THE PROVISIONS THEREOF. THE AFORESAID
ARE ONLY SOME OF THE SALIENT EXTRACTS THEREOF.
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21. Details of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and their respective equity
and preference shareholding as on 18 May 2022 are as follows:

Equity Share Capital:

A. JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED (JUSL):

S. Name of the Shares (%) held in
No. Directors / JCL JUSL
KMP of JUSL
1. | Mr. Ratan Jindal 0.00% 0.00%
2 | Mr. Anand Kumar Garg 0.00% 0.00%
3 | Mr. Kapil Mantri 0.00% 0.00%
4. | Ms. Vaishali Deshmukh 0.00% 0.00%
5. |Mr. Om Parkash Verma 0.00% 0.00%
6. | Mr. Akhand Kirty 0.00% 0.00%
7. | Mr. Narinder Dhankar 0.00% 0.00%

B. JINDAL COKE LIMITED (JCL):

S. Name of the Shares (%) held in
No. Directors / JUSL JCL
KMP of JCL
1. | Mr. Ratan Jindal 0.00% 0.00%
2 | Mr. Udai Vashisht 0.00% 0.00%
3 | Mr. Gautam Kanjilal 0.00% 0.00%
4. | Ms. Vaishali Deshmukh 0.00% 0.00%
5. |Mr. Shashibhushan 0.00% 0.00%
Shobhnath Upadhyay
6. | Mr. Pradeep Tahiliani 0.00% 0.00%
(holds 19 shares)
7. | Mr. Nitin Kumar 0.00% 0.00%
Agarwal
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Preference Share Capital:

A. JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED (JUSL):

S. Name of the Preference Shares (%) held in
No. Directors / JCL JUSL
KMP of JUSL

1. | Mr. Ratan Jindal 0.00% 0.00%
2 | Mr. Anand Kumar Garg 0.00% 0.00%
3 | Mr. Kapil Mantri 0.00% 0.00%
4. | Ms. Vaishali Deshmukh 0.00% 0.00%
5. | Mr. Om Parkash Verma 0.00% 0.00%
6. | Mr. Akhand Kirty 0.00% 0.00%
7. | Mr. Narinder Dhankar 0.00% 0.00%

B. JINDAL COKE LIMITED (JCL):

S. Name of the Preference Shares (%) held in
No. Directors / JUSL JCL
KMP of JCL
1. | Mr. Ratan Jindal 0.00% 0.00%
2 | Mr. Udai Vashisht 0.00% 0.00%
3 | Mr. Gautam Kanjilal 0.00% 0.00%
4. | Ms. Vaishali Deshmukh 0.00% 0.00%
5. |Mr. Shashibhushan 0.00% 0.00%
Shobhnath Upadhyay
6. | Mr. Pradeep Tahiliani 0.00% 0.00%
7. | Mr. Nitin Kumar 0.00% 0.00%
Agarwal

22. Statement disclosing details of Arrangement as per sub-section 3 of Section 230 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016:

S. Particulars Details
No.
i. | Details of capital or debt There is no debt restructuring envisaged in the
restructuring if any Scheme.

ii. | Benefits of the Arrangement | Refer Para 19(viii) of the Explanatory Statement.
as perceived by the Board of
directors to the company,
Members, creditors and
others (as applicable)

iii. | Amounts due to Unsecured | | JUSL INR 31.22 Crores
Creditors as on 10.05.2022 JCL INR 101.52 Crores
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iv. | Amounts due to secured JUSL INR 2,030.61 Crores
creditor as on 30.04.2022 JCL INR 347 Crores
v. |If the scheme of | Refer Para 19(ii) of the Explanatory Statement.
Arrangement relates to more
than one company, the fact
and details of any
relationship subsisting
between such companies
who are parties to such
scheme of compromise or
Arrangement, including
holding, subsidiary  or
associate companies
vi. | Disclosure about effect of the compromise or Arrangement on:
a. Key Managerial Personnel The effect of the Scheme on the Key Managerial
b. Director Personnel, Director, Promoter and Non-Promoter
C. Promoters shareholders of the Amalgamated Company and
d. Non-Promoters Members Amalgamating Company is given in the reports
adopted by the Board of Directors of the respective
companies, which is enclosed as Annexure to this
Notice.
e. Creditors Pursuant to the Scheme, all the liabilities and dues
f. Depositors payable pertaining to Amalgamating Company shall
g Debenture Holders become the liabilities and dues payable of the
h. Deposit trustee and Amalgamated Company.
debenture trustee None of the companies have any depositors,
debenture holders, deposit trustee and debenture
trustees.
i Employees of the Company | There will be no impact on the employees and
workmen of the Amalgamated Company.
Pursuant to the Scheme, all the staff, workmen and
other employees pertaining to the Amalgamating
Company immediately before the effectiveness of
the Scheme shall become the staff, workmen and
employees of the Amalgamated Company as per the
details mentioned in the Scheme.
vii. | Disclosure about effect of compromise or Arrangement on material interest of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, their Relatives and Debenture Trustee
a. Directors None of the Directors, KMPs (as defined under the
b. Key Managerial Personnel Companies Act 2013 and rules framed thereunder)
of the Company and their respective relatives (as
defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder)
has any interest in the Scheme except to the extent
of their Directorship and / or shareholding in the
companies involved in the Scheme, if any.
C. Debenture Trustee None of the companies involved in the Scheme has
issued Debentures and appointed Debenture trustee.
viii. | Details of approvals, | The Scheme is subject to approval from

sanctions or no-objection(s),
if any, from regulatory or

jurisdictional Hon’ble NCLT. Further, notice under

Section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 is being
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23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

any other governmental | submitted with the Central Government through the
authorities required, received | regional director (Northern Region), Ministry of
or pending for the proposed | Corporate Affairs, Registrar of Companies, Official
scheme of compromise or | Liquidator and Income Tax Authorities in respect
Arrangement of all companies.

iX. | A statement to the effect that | Secured Creditors to whom the Notice is sent may
the persons to whom the | vote through remote e-voting / e-voting through
notice is sent may vote in the | VC/OAVM.

Meeting either in person or

by proxies, or where | Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act,

applicable, by voting through | 2013 a Secured Creditor entitled to attend and vote

electronic means. at a Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not
be a Secured Creditor of the Company. Since this
Meeting is being held pursuant to the MCA
circulars and directions of NCLT through VC /
OVAM facility, physical attendance of Secured
Creditor has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the
facility for appointment of proxies by the Secured
Creditor will not be available for this Meeting and
therefore the proxy form, route map and attendance
slip are not annexed to this notice.

General:

The copy of draft scheme has been filed with the Registrar of Companies.

Pursuant to the Hon’ble NCLT Order dated 10" May, 2022, Amalgamated Company and
Amalgamating Company are required to seek approvals / sanctions / no objections from certain
regulatory and governmental authorities for the Scheme such as the Registrar of Companies,
Regional Director and Income-tax authorities and Official Liquidator and other regulators,
stating that the representations if any to be made by them shall be sent to NCLT within a period
of 30 days from the date of receipt of such notices (with a copy / copies of such representation(s)
to be sent simultaneously to the respective Company(ies) at their registered address(es), failing
which it shall be presumed that they have no objection to the proposed Scheme.

The Hon’ble NCLT by its Order dated 10" May 2022 has dispensed with the requirement of
convening the Meeting(s) of the Equity Shareholders of Amalgamated Company and
Amalgamating Company.

The Hon’ble NCLT by its Order dated 10" May 2022 has dispensed with the requirement of
convening the Meeting(s) of the Preference Shareholders of Amalgamated Company and
Amalgamating Company.

The Hon’ble NCLT by its Order dated 10" May 2022 has directed for convening of the
Meeting(s) of the Secured Creditors, by Video-Conferencing or Other Audio Visual Means and
publication of notice of Meeting in newspaper for Amalgamated Company and Amalgamating
Company.

The Hon’ble NCLT by its Order dated 10" May 2022 has directed for convening of the
Meeting(s) of the Unsecured Creditors, by Video-Conferencing or Other Audio Visual Means
and publication of notice of Meeting in newspaper for Amalgamated Company and
Amalgamating Company.
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29. No investigation or proceedings are pending under applicable provisions of Companies Act,
2013 or erstwhile provisions of Companies Act, 1956 against any Company involved in the
Scheme.

30. No winding up petition has been admitted against any Company involved in the Scheme.

31. The following documents will be open for obtaining extracts from or for making or obtaining
copies or inspection by the Secured Creditors of JCL at O.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar- 125005,
Haryana between 10:00 AM to 12:00 Noon on all working days, except Saturdays, Sundays and
Public Holidays and the same is also disseminated on the website of the Company at
https://www.jindalcoke.com/:

a) Copy of the Order dated 10" May 2022 of the Hon’ble NCLT passed in Company
Application No. (CAA) No. 8/Chd/Hry/2022 directing the convening of the Meeting of the
Secured Creditors of JCL;

b) Copy of the Company Application No. (CAA) No. 8/Chd/Hry/2022 and other ancillary
Applications/ Affidavits filed with the Hon’ble NCLT;

c) Copy of Composite Scheme of Arrangement;

d) Memorandum and Articles of Association including certificate of incorporation of both the
Companies involved in the Scheme;

e) Audited Financial Statement of both the Companies involved in the Scheme for the financial
year ended 31st March 2022;

f) Certificates issued by Statutory Auditors of both the Companies in relation to the accounting
treatment prescribed in the Scheme is in conformity with the Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013;

g) The report of the Board of Directors of both the Companies involved in the Scheme

32. A copy of the Scheme and Notice along with Explanatory Statement shall be furnished to the
Secured Creditors, free of charge, within 1 (one) day (except Saturdays, Sundays and public
holidays) on a requisition being so made for the same by the Secured Creditors.

Pradeep Tabhiliani

Company Secretary

ACS18570

Jindal Coke Limited

Jindal Centre 12, Bhikaiji Cama Place,
New Delhi-110066

Date: 03" June, 2022
Place: New Delhi

Registered Office:

JINDAL COKE LIMITED,

O.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar- 125005, Haryana
CIN - U23101HR2014PLC053884
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COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
AMONGST
JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

(AMALGAMATED COMPANY)

AND
JINDAL COKE LIMITED

(AMALGAMATING COMPANY)

AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

(UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 READ WITH OTHER APPLICABLE SECTIONS AND
RULES OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013)
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1

INTRODUCTION

PREAMBLE

This Composite Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme™) is presented pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules and
regulations issued thereunder and also read with Sections 2(1B) and the other applicable provisions
of the Income-tax Act, 1961, in each case, as amended from time to time and as may be applicable,
for:

(1) Amalgamation of Jindal Coke Limited (the “Amalgamating Company”) into and with
Jindal United Stee! Limited (the “Amalgamated Company™); and

(1) Other matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected herewith.

2 BACKGROUND AND DESCRIPTION OF THE PARTIES TO THIS SCHEME

a)  Jindal United Steel Limited (“JUSL”/“Amalgamated Company™) is a public limited
company, incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) having its registered
office at O.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar- 125005, Haryana.

The Amalgamated Company is engaged in the business of hot rolling and cold rolling of
stainless steel for multiple application. The Corporate Identity Number (“CIN”) of the
Amalgamated Company is U28113HR2014PLCO053875 and the Permanent Account
Number (“PAN”) of the Amalgamated Company is AADCI4180C.

b)  Jindal Coke Limited (“JCL”/ “Amalgamating Company”) is a public limited company,

incorporated under the Act having its registered office at O.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar - 125005,
Haryana.
The Amalgamating Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing, processing,
finishing and dealing in all kinds and forms of Coke and Coke products. The CIN of the
Amalgamating Company is U23101HR2014PLC053884 and the PAN of Amalgamating
Company is AADCJ4179K.

3 NEED AND RATIONALE FOR THIS SCHEME

3.1

3.1

u
—
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Rationale for the Scheme

The Amalgamated Company proposes to enter into this Scheme with Amalgamating Company to
consolidate their respective manufacturing/service capabilities thereby increasing efficiencies in
operations and use of resources and better catering to stainless steel and steel industry, to
consolidate their diversified product and services portfolio for improving overall customer
satisfaction, to pool their human resource talent for optimal utilization of their expertise, to
integrate the marketing and distribution channels for better efficiency, and to ensure optimization
of working capital utilization.

The management of the respective Companies are of the view that the amalgamation proposed in
this Scheme is, in particular, expected to have the following benefits:

a) Reduction in management overlaps and elimination of legal and regulatory compliances and
associated costs due to operation of multiple entities.

b) Optimization of the allocated capital and availability of funds which can be deployed more
efficiently to pursue the operational growth opportunities.
¢} Consolidation of businesses under the Amalgamation, which would Tesult in pooling of

financial, managerial, technical and human resources, thereby creati gﬁtﬁm +base for future
growth and value accretion for theﬁ .




3.1.

d) Consolidation of production capabilities to create larger scale of business and operations to
cater to demand of stainless steel and steel industry.

¢) Consolidation of the complementing strengths will enable the Amalgamated Company to have
increased capability for offering diversified products and services on a single platform.

f) The combined financial strength is expected to further accelerate the scaling up of the
operations of the Amalgamated Company.

g) The consolidation of funds and resources will lead to optimization of working capital
utilization and stronger financial leverage given the simplified capital structure, improved
balance sheet, optimized management structure and consolidation of cross location talent pool.

The management of the respective Companies is of the view that this Scheme is in the interest of
the customers, employees, lenders, shareholders, and all other stakeholders of the respective
Companies. Further, the Scheme will enable the synergies that already exist between the
Amalgamating Company and the Amalgamated Company in terms of services and resources to be
used optimally for the benefit of their stakeholders.

4 OVERVIEW OF THIS SCHEME

4.1

This Scheme is divided into the following parts:

PART A - Definirions, Compliance with Tax Laws and Capital Structure

PART B - Amalgamation of Amalgamating Company into and with Amalgamated
Company, Change in Authorized Share Capital of the Amalgamated
Company, Amendment to objects of Amalgamated Company, Dissolution
of Amalgamating Company, and other related matters

PART C - General Terms and Conditions applicable to the Scheme

PART A
DEFINTTIONS, COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

5 DEFINITIONS

5.1

52

In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the subject or meaning or context thereof, the following

expressions shall have the meaning attributed to them as below:

“Act” means, as the context may admit, the Companies Act, 2013 (as may be notified from time to

time) and the rules made thereunder, and shall include any statutory modifications, re-enactments,

or amendments thereof for the time being in force.

“Amalgamated Company” means Jindal United Steel Limited, as mentioned in the Para 2(a) of

this Scheme. i

“Amalgamating Company” means Jindal Coke Limited as mentioned in the Para 2(b) of the

scheme and shall, subject to the relevant provisions of the Scheme, include the whole of the

business and undertakings of such Amalgamating Company, including for such Amalgamating

Company:
a)  all of its movable assets, , whether pres,ﬂ‘;

rights, title, interests, covenants, undertal

b)  all of its immovable properties and all
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5.4

5.5

5.6

5.9

continuing rights in relation thereto including all its land (together with all the buildings and
structures standing thereon), whether freehold or leasehold;

c)  all of its present and future liabilities, including contingent liabilities, charges and debts
appertaining thereto;

d}  all of its investments including shares and other securities, loans and advances, including
interest and dividend accrued thereon;

e)  all of its permits, rights, entitlements and licences (including the industrial or other licences)
granted by any governmental, statutory or regulatory bodies, environmental clearances,
permissions, approvals, consents, exemptions, subsidies, registrations, no-cbjection
certificates, quotas, privileges, powers, offices, facilities whether
granted/available/renewed/applied for;

f)  all of its intellectual property rights, websites, emails, trade names, trademarks, service marks,
copyrights, domain names, brand names, logos and applications therefor;

g} all of its indirect and direct tax credits, including but not limited to, service tax credit,
CENVAT credit, GST credit, VAT credit, income-tax refunds, carry forward losses,
unabsorbed depreciation, TDS, TCS, MAT credit entitlement, CSR credit available for set-off
in the succeeding financial years, etc.;

h)  all of its privileges and benefits under all contracts, agreements, memoranda of understanding
and all other rights powers and facilities of every kind and description whatsoever,

i) all of its debts, borrowings, obligations and liabilities, present or future or contingent, whether
secured or unsecured;

B all of its workmen and employees including those employed at its ofﬁces,‘ factories and
branches, and all other personnel employed by it;

k)  all of the advance monies, earnest monies as may be lying with it and any and all of its security
deposits, bank and contractual guarantees and other entitlements; and

[)  allof its other properties, assets, liabilities, rights, obligations and employees, ete. of any nature
whatsoever not covered under (a) to (k) above.

“Applicable Law(s)” means all statutes, notifications, bye-laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
rules or common law, policies, codes, directives, ordinances, schemes or orders enacted or issued
or sanctioned by any governmental authority, including any modification or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force.
“Appointed Date” means the opening of business hours on April 1, 2021 or such other date as
may be approved by the NCLT, with effect from which the Scheme will be deemed to be effective
in the manner described in the Scheme.
“Board of Directors” means the respective board of directors of the Companies and shall, unless
repugnant to the context or otherwise, include any duly authorized committee of directors or any
person duly authorized by the Board of Directors or such committee of directors.

“Companies” means collectively, Amalgamated Company and the Amalgamating Company.

“Court” means the Chandigarh Bench of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT>),
or such other court, forum or authority as may be vested with any of the powers of the NCLT under
the Act and/or as may be having jurisdiction for sanctioning this Scheme.

“Effective Date” means the date on which the order of the Court sanctioning the Scheme or any
particular parts of the Scheme, is filed with the RoC.

Any references in this Scheme to “upon this Sch becoming effective” or “effectiveness of
this Scheme” shall be construed accordingly. .~ .
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5.11
5.12

5.13
5.14
5.15

5.16
5.17
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authority, government department, agency, commission, board, tribunal or court or other law, rule
or regulation making entity having or purporting to have jurisdiction on behalf of the Republic of
India or any state or other subdivision thereof or any municipality, district or other subdivision
thereof.

“GST” means goods and services tax.

“YT Aet” means the Indian Income-tax Act, 1961 and the rules, regulations, circulars, notifications
and orders issued thereunder including any statutory modifications, re-enactments or amendments
thereof for the time being in force.

“MAT” means minimum alternate tax.
“RBI” means the Reserve Bank of India or any successor thereof.

“Registrar of Companies” or “RoC” means the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana
and/or such other Registrar of Companies having jurisdiction over any of the Companies.

“Rs.” means Indian Rupees being the lawful currency of the Republic of India.

“Scheme of Arrangement” or “Scheme” means this composite scheme of arrangement in its
present form, or with or without any modification(s), as may be approved or imposed or directed
by the Court and any other Governmental Authority.

“TCS” means Tax Collected at Source.
“TDS” means Tax Deducted at Source.

The expressions, which are used but are not defined in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or
contrary to the context or meaning hereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Act,
the Depositories Act, 1996, the IT Act and other Applicable Laws (including the Rules and
Regulations made thereunder).

6 COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS

6.1

This Scheme, in so far as it relates to the amalgamation of Amalgamating Company into the
Amalgamated Company, has been drawn up to comply with the conditions relating to
*Amalgamation” as specified under the tax laws, mcludmg Section 2(1B) of the IT Act, which
include the following:

a) all the properties of the Amalgamating Company immediately after the amalgamation shall
become the property of the Amalgamated Company by virtue of the amalgamation;

b) all the liabilities of the Amalgamating Company immediately after the amalgamation shall
become the liabilities of the Amalgamated Company by virtue of the amalgamation;

c) shareholders holding not less than three-fourths in value of the shares in the Amalgamating
Company (other than shares already held therein immediately before the amalgamation by, or
by a nominee for, the Amalgamated Company or its subsidiary) become shareholders of the
Amalgamated Company by virtue of the amalgamation;

otherwise than as a result of the acquisition of the property of one company by another company
pursuant to the purchase of such property by the other company or as a result of the distribution of
such property to the other company after the winding up of the first-mentioned company; and shall
also comply with the other relevant sections (including Sections 47 and 72A) of the IT Act.

If any terms or provisions of this Scheme are found to be or interpreted to be inconsistent with any
of the said provisions at a later date whether as a result of a new enactment or any amendment 1o
any existing enactment or the coming into force of-an ’provnsxon of the IT Act or any other law or
any judicial or executive interpretation or for any other spn vu%a};sbe\ cer, the aforesaid provisions
of the tax laws shall prevail and this Scheme:{ m:'}udl ! par"ts hereof) may be modified to
comply with such laws or may be thhdrawn,at% 1

9>£¢




affected Companies provided however that no modification to the Scheme will be made which
adversely affects the rights or interest of the secured creditors without seeking their approval.
Further, such modification/withdrawal will not affect other Parts of the Scheme which have not

been so modified or withdrawn.

7 CAPITAL STRUCTURE

7.1
7.1.1

712

Amalgamated Company

The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Amalgamated Company as on
January 15, 2022 is as under:

55,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 5,55,00,00,000

26,50,00,000 Preference Shares of T 10 each 2,65,00,00,600

8,20,00,00,000

46,16,08,315 Equity Shares of T 10 each fully paid up 4.61,60,83,150

5,50,31,563 Non- Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference 55,03,15,630
Shares T 10 each fully paid up

8,76,73,311 Non- Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable 87,67,33,110
Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up

Total 6,04,31,31,890

Subsequent to January 15, 2022 and until the date of the Scheme being approved by the Board of
Directors of the Amalgamated Company, there has been no change in the authorised, issued,
subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Amalgamated Company.

Amalgamating Company

The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Amalgamating Company, as on
January 13, 2022 is as under:

Authonsed Share Capital = R S Amount in Rs.
35,050,000 Equity Shares of T 10/- each 350,500,000
11,77,00,000 Preference Shares of ¥ 10/- each 1,17,76,060,600
Total 1,52,75,00,000
Issued, Subscribed nd Paid Up Share Capital ~ Amount in Rs.
3,24,32,432 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 32,43,24 320

1,09,26§§,410

SRS



Preference Shares of ¥ 10/- each

Total 1,41,69,70,730

Subsequent to January 15, 2022 and until the date of the Scheme being approved by the Board of
Directors of the Amalgamating Company, there has been no change in the authorised, issued,
subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Amalgamating Company.

PART B

AMALGAMATION OF AMALGAMATING COMPANY INTO AND WITH THE
AMALGAMATED COMPANY

8 AMALGAMATION OF AMALGAMATING COMPANY INTO AND WITH THE
AMALGAMATED COMPANY

8.1

82

Upon Part B of this Scheme becoming effective on the Effective Date and with effect from the
Appointed Date, the Amalgamating Company along with all its assets, liabilities, rights and
obligations and its entire business and undertakings, including all its properties, rights, benefits and
interests therein, shall by virtue of this Part B of the Scheme stand amalgamated with, transferred
to and vested in the Amalgamated Company, and shall become the assets, liabilities, rights,
obligations, business and undertakings of the Amalgamated Company, subject to the existing
encumbrances thereon in favour of banks and financial institutions, if any (unless otherwise agreed
to be released by such encumbrance holders in writing), without any further act, instrument or deed
being required from the Amalgamating Company and/or the Amalgamated Company and without
any approval or acknowledgement of any third party, in accordance with Sections 230 to 232 of
the Act read with Section 2(1B) of the IT Act and all other applicable provisions of law if any, in
accordance with the provisions contained herein.

Without prejudice to the generality of the above, in particular, the Amalgamating Company shall
stand amalgamated with the Amalgamated Company in the manner described in the sub-paragraphs
below, subject to the existing encumbrances in favour of banks and financial institutions, if any
(unless otherwise agreed to be released by such encumbrance holders in writing):-

(i) Upon Part B of this Scheme becoming effective on the Effective Date and with effect from
the Appointed Date, all the assets (including investments) of the Amalgamating Company,
that are movable in nature or incorporeal or intangible in nature or are otherwise capable
of transfer by physical or constructive delivery and/or by endorsement and delivery or by
transfer or by delivery instructions in relation to dematerialized shares or by vesting and
recordal pursuant to the Scheme, including plant, machinery and equipment, shall stand
transferred to and vested in and/or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the
Amalgamated Company and shall become the property and an integral part of the
Amalgamated Company, without any further act, instrument or deed required by either of
the Amalgamating Company or the Amalgamated Company and without any approval or
acknowledgement of any third party. The transfer and vesting pursuant to this sub-clause
shall be deemed to have occurred by physical or constructive delivery or by endorsement
and delivery or by delivery instructions in relation to dematerialized shares or by vesting
and recordal, pursuant to this Scheme, as appropriate to the property being transferred and
vested and the title to such property shall be deemed fo.have been transferred and vested
accordingly. : 7

(i) Upon Part B of this Scheme becoming effé _yeg{gn ;t\(l@s

reffect from
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(i)

(iv)

the Appointed Date, any and all other movable properties of the Amalgamating Company
(except those specified elsewhere in this Clause), including cash and cash equivalents,
sundry debts and receivables, outstanding loans and advances, if any, recoverable in cash
or in kind or for value to be received, actionable claims, bank balances and deposits, if any,
with any person or body including without limitation any government, semi-government,
local and other authorities and bodies, customers and other persons shall, without any
further act, instrument or deed required by either of the Amalgamating Company or the
Amalgamated Company and without any approval or acknowledgement of any third party,
become the property of the Amalgamated Company.

Upon Part B of this Scheme becoming effective on the Effective Date and with effect from
the Appointed Date, all immovable properties of the Amalgamating Company, including
without limitation, all land together with all buildings and structures standing thereon and
all rights and interests therein as set out in Schedule 1 hereto (Details of Immovable
Properties of Amalgamaring Company), whether freehold or leasehold or otherwise and
all documents of title, rights and easements in relation thereto shall stand transferred and
be vested in and/or be deemed to have been transferred and vested in the Amalgamated
Company and shall become the property and an integral part of the Amalgamated
Company, without any further act, instrument or deed being required from the
Amalgamating Company and/or the Amalgamated Company and without any approval or
acknowledgement of any third party. Upon Part B of the Scheme becoming effective on
the Effective Date, the Amalgamated Company shall be entitled to exercise all rights and
privileges attached to the aforesaid immovable properties and shall be liable to pay all rent,
charges and taxes and fulfil all obligations in relation to or applicable to such immovable
properties. The Amalgamated Company shall be entitled to seek mutation/substitution of
title in its name in such immovable properties, for the purposes of information and record
and such mutation / substitution of the title to and interest in such immovable properties
shall be made and duly recorded in the name of the Amalgamated Company, by the
appropriate authorities pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme by the Court and Part B of
the Scheme becoming effective on the Effective Date in accordance with the terms hereof,
However, it is hereby clarified that the absence of any such mutation/substitution shall nat
adversely affect the rights, title or interest of the Amalgamated Company in such
immovable properties which shall be deemed 1o have been transferred to the Amalgamated
Company automatically upon the Part B of the Scheme becoming effective on the Effective
Date.

Upon Part B of this Scheme becoming effective on the Effective Date and with effect from
the Appointed Date, all debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations,
secured or unsecured, whether provided for or not in the books of accounts of the
Amalgamating Company or disclosed in the balance sheets of the Amalgamating Company
shall become and be deemed to be the debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and
obligations of the Amalgamated Company without any further act, instrument or deed
being required from the Amalgamating Company and/or the Amalgamated Company and
without any approval or acknowledgement of any third party. The Amalgamated Company
undertakes to meet, discharge and satisfy the same in terms of their respective terms and
conditions, if any. It is hereby clarified that it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent
of any third party or other person, who is a party to any contract or arrangement by virtue
of which such debts, liabilities, duties and obligations have arisen in order to give effect to
the provisions of this sub-clause. However, the Amalgamated Company shall, if required,
file appropriate forms with the RoC accompanied by the sanction order of the Court or a
certified copy thereof and execute necessary deeds or documents in relation to
creation/satisfaction/modification of charges to the satisfaction of the lenders, pursuant to
Part B of this Scheme becoming effective in accordance with the terms hereof. The
Amalgamated Company shall be entitled t6 ¢ beneflt of all duties and charges
already paid by the Amalgamating Compaity for the\ greationi/ntodification of any such
security interest. Where any of the loans; Hak 2h4DD '@tions have b ‘ﬁisghag\ged
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)

(i)

(vii)

(viii)

(i)

by the Amalgamating Company after the Appointed Date but before the Effective Date,
such discharge shall be deemed to have been done by the Amalgamating Company for and
on behalf of the Amalgamated Company. -

Upon Part B of this Scheme becoming effective on the Effective Date and with effect from
the Appointed Date, shares issued by the Amalgamated Company to the shareholders of
the Amalgamating Company (being such shareholders whose existing shares in the
Amalgamating Company are pledged with the lenders) will stand pledged to the lenders of
the Amalgamating Company on the same terms and conditions basis which the existing
shares have been pledged with lenders of the Amalgamating Company. However, the
Amalgamated Company shall, if required, file appropriate forms and executs necessary
deeds or documents for the creation of such pledges, including making the necessary
filings with the depository.

Upon Part B of this Scheme becoming effective on the Effective Date and with effect from
the Appointed Date, all loans, advances, trade receivables and other obligations or
liabilities due from, or any guarantees or similar obligations undertaken on behalf of the
Amalgamating Company to / by the Amalgamated Company or vice versa, if any, and all
contracts between the Amalgamating Company and the Amalgamated Company shall
stand automatically cancelled and terminated and shall be of no effect, without any further
act, instrument or deed being required from either the Amalgamating Company and/or the
Amalgamated Company and without any approval or acknowledgement of any third party.
No further taxes, fees, duties or charges shall be required to be paid by the Amalgamated
Company on account of such cancellation or termination.

Upon Part B of the Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from
the Appointed Date, all incorporeal or intangible property of or in relation to the
Amalgamating Company shall stand transferred to and vested in the Amalgamated
Company, and shall become the property and an integral part of the Amalgamated
Company without any further act, instrument or deed required by either the Amalgamating
Company and/or the Amalgamated Company and without any approval or
acknowledgement of any third party.

Upon Part B of the Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from
the Appointed Date, all letters of intent, memoranda of understanding, memoranda of
agreements, tenders, bids, letters of award, expressions of interest, experience and/or
performance statements, contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, guarantees and indemnities,
schemes, arrangements, undertakings and other instruments of every nature and

escription including without limitation, those relating to tenancies, privileges, powers and
facilities of every kind and description, to which the Amalgamating Company is a party or
to the benefit of which the Amalgamating Company may be eligible or under which the
Amalgamating Company is an obligor (except to the extent provided in this Clause} and
which are subsisting or having effect immediately prior to Part B of the Scheme coming
into effect on the Effective Date, shall be and shall remain in full force and effect against
or in favour of the Amalgamated Company and may be enforced by or against it as fully
and effectually as if, instead of the Amalgamating Company, the Amalgamated Company
had been a party or beneficiary or obligee or obligor thereto, without any further act,,
instrument or deed being required from the Amalgamating Company and/or the
Amalgamated Company and without any approval or acknowledgement of any third party.

Upon Part B of the Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from
the Appointed Date, all statutory or regulatory licenses and permits including without
limitation, all such licenses and permits as set out in, grants, allotments, recommendations,
no-objection certificates, permissions, registrations, approvals, certificates, consents,
quotas, exemptions, clearances, tenancies, Cprivileges, pOwers, offices, facilities,
entitlements or rights (including licenses’ Sued S the PGFT under EPCG Scheme,
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ey

(xi)

Duty Drawback Scheme and other schemes or approvals of a like nature issued by the
DGFT) granted/available/renewed/applied for, to or by the Amalgamating Company shall
stand transferred to and vested in the Amalgamated Company, without any further act,
instrument or deed being required by the Amalgamating Company and/or the
Amalgamated Company and without any approval or acknowledgement of any third party.
Upon Part B of the Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date, the Amalgamated
Company shall be entitled to all the benefits thereof and shall be liable for all the
obligations thereunder. In relation to the same, any procedural requirements required to be
fulfilled solely by Amalgamating Company (and not by any of their successors), shall be
fulfilled by the Amalgamated Company as if it is the duly constituted attorney of the
Amalgamating Company. It is hereby clarified that if the consent or approval (by whatever
name called) of any third party or authority is required to give effect to the provisions of
this Clause, the said third party or authority shall duly record provide such consent or
approval and shall make the necessary substitution/endorsement in the name of the
Amalgamated Company pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme by the Court, and upon
Part B of this Scheme becoming effective in accordance with the terms hereof, For this
purpose, the Amalgamated Company may file appropriate applications/documents with
relevant authorities concerned for information and record purposes. However, it is hereby
clarified that the absence of any such substitution/endorsement shall not adversely affect
the rights, benefits or interest of the Amalgamated Company which shall be deemed to
have been transferred to the Amalgamated Company automatically upon the Part B of the
Scheme becoming effective on the Effective Date.

Upon Part B of the Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from
the Appointed Date, all workmen and employess of the Amalgamating Company, who are
on its payrolls and all other personnel employed by the Amalgamating Company shall
become employed by the Amalgamated Company with effect from the Effective Date, on
such terms and conditions as are no less favourable than those on which they were engaged
with the Amalgamating Company immediately prior to the Effective Date, without any
interruption of service as a result of this amalgamation and transfer. With regard to
provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation fund and any contributions required to be
made in relation to employees under any statute or regulation, leave encashment and any
other special scheme or benefits created or existing for the benefit of the personnel
employed by the Amalgamating Company immediately prior to Part B of the Scheme
coming into effect on the Effective Date and transferred to the Amalgamated Company,
the Amalgamated Company shall stand substituted for the Amalgamating Company for atl
intents and purposes whatsoever, upon Part B of this Scheme becoming effective on the
Effective Date, including with regard to the obligation to make contributions to the said
funds in accordance with the provisions of such schemes or funds in the respective trust
deeds or other documents and/or in accordance with the provisions of Applicable Laws or
otherwise. All existing contributions made to such schemes and funds and all benefits
accrued thereto shall also stand transferred in the name of the Amalgamated Company and
all such benefits and schemes shall be continued by the Amalgamated Company for the
benefit of such personnel employed by the Amalgamating Company and transferred to the
Amalgamated Company, on the same terms and conditions. Further, it is the aim and intent
of the Scheme that all the rights, duties, powers and obligations of the Amalgamating
Company in relation to such schemes or funds shall become those of the Amalgamated
Company. It is clarified that the services of all personnel employed by the Amalgamating
Company who are entitled to the benefits under such schemes and funds, will be treated as
having been continuous and uninterrupted for the purpose of the aforesaid schemes or
funds.

Upon Part B of the Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date the Amalgamated
Company undertakes to continue to abide by any &g ement(s)/s ement(s) entered into
with any labour unions/employees by the Ama‘}gama . Company. The Amalaamated
Company agrees that for the purpose of payment fa € retrenchment com;




(xii)

(xili)

(xiv)

gratuity and other terminal benefits, the past services of such employees, if any, with the
Amalgamating Company, as the case may be, shall also be taken into account, and agrees
and undertakes to pay the same as and when payable. Further, upon Part B of the Scheme
coming into effect on the Effective Date, any prosecution or disciplinary action initiated,
pending or contemplated against and any penalty imposed in this regard on any employee
by the Amalgamating Company shall be continued or shall continue to operate against the
relevant employee and shall be enforced effectively by the Amalgamated Company.

Upon Part B of the Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from
the Appointed Date, all rights, entitlements, licenses, applications and registrations relating
to trademarks, service marks, copyrights, domain names, brand name, logos, patents and
other intellectual property rights of every kind and description, including without
limitations, whether registered, unregistered or pending registration, and the goodwill
arising therefrom, if any, to which the Amalgamating Company is a party or to the benefit
of which the Amalgamating Company may be eligible or entitled, shall stand transferred
to and vested in the Amalgamated Corpany, and shall become the rights, entitlement or
property of the Amalgamated Company and shall be enforceable by or against the
Amalgamated Company, as fully and effectually as if, instead of the Amalgamating
Company, the Amalgamated Company had been a party or beneficiary or obligse thereto
or the holder or owner thereof, without any further act, instrument or deed required by
either of the Amalgamating Company or the Amalgamated Company and without any
approval or acknowledgement of any third party.

Upon Part B of the Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from
the Appointed Date, the Amalgamated Company shall be entitled to the benefit of all
insurance policies (if any) which have been issued in respect of Amalgamating Company
and/or any of its assets or employees and the name of the Amalgamated Company shall
stand substituted as the “Insured” in all such policies as if the Amalgamated Company was
originally a party thereto without any further act, instrument or deed required by either of
the Amalgamating Company or the Amalgamated Company and without any approval or
acknowledgement of any third party. Further, the Amalgamated Company shall be entitled
to the benefit of all claims filed, prosecuted, proposed to be filed, pending and/or
adjudicated in relation to all insurance policies issued in respect of Amalgamating
Company and/or any of its assets or employees.

Upon Part B of the Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from
the Appointed Date, all taxes and duties of whatsoever description (including but not
limited all carry forward tax losses comprising of unabsorbed depreciation, advance tax
payments, TDS, TCS, MAT, securities transaction tax, taxes withheld/paid in a foreign
country, customs duty, entry tax, value added tax, GST, sales tax, service tax, CSR Credit
available for set-offietc) payable by or refundable to the Amalgamating Company,
including all or any refunds or claims shall be treated as the tax liability or refunds/claims,
as the case may be, of the Amalgamated Company, and any tax incentives, advantages,
privileges, exemptions, credits, holidays, remissions, reductions etc., as would have been
available to the Amalgamating Company, shall pursuant to thxs Scheme becoming
effective, be available to the Amalgamated Company without any further act, instrument
or deed required by either of the Amalgamating Company or the Amalgamated Company
and without any approval or acknowledgement of any third party but in the manner more
particularly set out herein below. Upon Part B of the Scheme coming into effect on the
Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date, all existing and future incentives,
un-availed credits and exemptions, benefit of carried forward losses and other statutory
benefits, including in respect of income tax (including MAT), excise (including Modvat/
Cenvat), customs, value added tax, sales tax, service tax to which the Amalgamating
Company is entitled shall be available to and stand transferred and vested in the
Amalgamated Company without any further: act'» msfrumefxt or deed reqmred by either the
Amalgamated Company or the Amalgama
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acknowledgement of any third party. Upon Part B of the Scheme coming into effect on the
Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date, any tax deducted at source
deducted by or on behalf of the Amalgamating Company until the Effective Date shall be
deemed to have been deducted on behalf of the Amalgamated Company.

(xv)  Upon Part B of the Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from
the Appointed Date, the Amalgamated Company shall be entitled to claim the benefit of
any and all corporate approvals and limits as may have already been taken by the
Amalgamating Company, including without limitation, the approvals and limits under
Sections 62, 179, 180, 185, 186, 188 etc., of the Act, until the time the same are duly
modified by the Amalgamated Company.

(xvi}  Upon Part B of the Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from
the Appointed Date, all other estates, assets, rights, title, interests and authorities accrued
to and/or acquired by the Amalgamating Company shall be deemed to have been accrued
to and/or acquired for and on behalf of the Amalgamated Company and shall, upon Part B
of this Scheme coming into effect, pursuant to the provisions of the Act, without any
further act, instrument or deed be and stand transferred to or vested in and/or be deemed
to have been transferred to or vested in the Amalgamated Company to that extent and shall
become the estates, assets, right, title, interests and authorities of the Amalgamated
Company.

(xvii) Upon Part B of the Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date, all books, record
files, papers, computer programs, engineering and process information, manuals, data,
production methodologies, production plans, designs, catalogues, quotations, websites,
cloud storage, sales and advertising material, marketing strategies, list of present and
former customers, customer credit information, customer pricing information, and other
records whether in physical form or electronic form or in any other form in connection
with or relating to the Amalgamating Company shall be deemed to have been transferred
to or acquired for and on behalf of the Amalgamated Company and shall, upon Part B of
this Scheme coming into effect, without any further act, instrument or deed be and stand
transferred to or vested in and/or be deemed to have been transferred to or vested in the
Amalgamated Company.

(xviii) Upon Part B of the Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from
the Appointed Date, the Amalgamated Company shall bear the burden and the benefits of
any legal, tax, quasi-judicial, administrative, regulatory or other proceedings initiated by
or against the Amalgamating Company. If any suit, appeal or other proceeding of
whatsoever nature by or against the Amalgamating Company shall be pending as on the
Effective Date, the same shall not abate, be discontinued or in any way be prejudicially
affected by reason of the merger of such Amalgamating Company and transfer and vesting
of the same in the Amalgamated Company or of anything contained in Part B of this
Scheme but the proceedings may be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the
Amalgamated Company in the same manner and to the same extent as it would or might
have been continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Amalgamating Company
as if Part B of this Scheme had not been made effective. Upon Part B of the Scheme
becoming effective, the Amalgamated Company undertakes to have such legal or other
proceedings initiated by or against the Amalgamating Company transferred in its name
and to have the same continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Amalgamated
Company to the exclusion of the Amalgamating Company. The Amalgamated Company
also undertakes to handle all legal or other proceedings which may be initiated against the
Amalgamating Company after the Effective Date in its own name and account and further
undertakes to pay all amounts including interest, penalties, damages etc., pursuant to such
legal/ other proceedings.

8.3 Upon Part B of the Scheme coming into effect on the E e te with effect from the Appointed
Date, the Amalgamated Company shall be entitléd to the; benefit
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8.4

accreditation and/or performance of the Amalgamating Company for all purposes without any
further act, instrument or deed required by either of the Amalgamating Company or the
Amalgamated Company and without any approval or acknowledgement being required from any
third party. If any instrument or deed or document is required or deemed necessary or expedient to
give effect to the provisions of this Clause by the Amalgamated Company, the Amalgamated
Company shall, under the provisions of Part B of the Scheme, be deemed to be duly authorized to
execute all such writings on behalf of the Amalgamating Company and to carry out or perform all
such formalities or compliances referred to above on behalf of the Amalgamating Company.

Upon Part B of the Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date with effect from the Appointed
Date, the Amalgamated Company would be entitled to claim, under Lower Tax Regime under
Section 11SBAA of the Income Tax Act,1961, if the same is beneficial to the Amalgamated
Company and the Amalgamated Company would be entitled to submit such documents either in
online format and by Manual Application, if the effective date falls after the due date of filing a
Revised Return of Income or Claim of Lower Tax Regime under Section 115BAA of the Income
Tax Act,1961.

9 CONDUCT OF AFFAIRS UNTIL THE EFFECTIVE DATE

9.1

In the event, Part B of this Scheme becomes effective and with effect from the Appointed Date and
up to and including the Effective Date:

6] the Amalgamating Company shall be deemed to have carried on the business activities of
the Amalgamating Company and stand possessed of the properties and assets of the
Amalgamating Company, for, on behalf of and in trust for, the Amalgamated Company;
and

(1i) all profits or income accruing to or received by the Amalgamating Company and all taxes
paid thereon (including but not limited to advance tax, tax deducted at source, tax collected
at source, minimum alternate tax, fringe benefit tax, securities transaction tax, taxes
withheld/paid in a foreign country, customs duty, entry tax, value added tax, goods and
services tax, sales tax, service tax etc.) or losses arising in or incurred by the Amalgamating
Company shall, for all purposes, be treated as and deemed to be the profits, income, taxes
or losses, as the case may be, of the Amalgamated Company.

The Amalgamated Company shall also be entitled, pending the sanction of this Scheme, to apply
to the central government, state government, and all other agencies, departments, statutory
authorities and Governmental Authorities concerned, wherever necessary, for such consents,
approvals and sanctions which the Amalgamated Company may require including the registration,
approvals, exemptions, reliefs, etc., as may be required/granted under any Applicable Law for the
time being in force for carrying on the business of the Amalgamating Company.

10 TREATMENT OF TAXES

10.1

Upon Part B of this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, any
surplus in the provision for taxation/ duties/ levies account including but not limited to the advance
tax, TDS or TCS and MAT credit, CENVAT credit or, GST Credit, as on the date immediately
preceding the Appointed Date will also be transferred from the Amalgamating Company to the
Amalgamated Company. Any refund under the IT Act or other Applicable Laws dealing with taxes/
duties/ levies, including GST, allocable or related to the business of Amalgamating Company or
due to the Amalgamating Company, consequent to the assessment made in respect of the
Amalgamating Company, for which no credit is taken in the book of accounts of the Amalgamating
Company as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date, shall also belong to and be
received by the Amalgamated Company and shall be deemed:{ have been on account of or paid
by the Amalgamated Company and the relevant Goy 'mmenta? ‘ 'u“thontxes shall be bound to
transfer to the account of and give credit for the same
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10.2

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

109

approval of this Scheme by the Court and upon relevant proof and documents being provided to
the said authorities.

Without prejudice to the generality of the above, deductions, benefits, right to carry forward and
set off accumnulated losses and unabsorbed depreciation, and credits (including but not limited to
MAT/CENVAT credits etc.). under the IT Act, Goods and Services Tax or Service Tax, any other
central government / state government incentive schemes etc., to which the Amalgamating
Company are/ would be entitled to in terms of the Applicable Laws of the central and state
government or of any foreign jurisdictions, shall be available to and vest in the Amalgamated
Company.

Upon Part B of this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, the tax
payments (including without limitation income tax, GST, tax on distribution of dividends, excise
duty, central sales tax, custom duty, applicable state value added tax and entry tax or any other
taxes as may be applicable from time to time) whether by way of tax deducted at source or collected
at source by the parties, advance tax or otherwise howsoever, by the Amalgamating Company on
or after the Appointed Date, shall be deemed to be paid by the Amalgamated Company and the
Amalgamated Company shall be entitled to claim credit for such taxes/duties paid against its tax/
duty liabilities, notwithstanding that the certificates/ challans or other documents for payment of
such taxes/duties are in the name of Amalgamating Company.

Upon Part B of the Scheme becoming effective on the Effective Date and with effect from the
Appointed Date, the Amalgamating Company and the Amalgamated Company are expressly
permitted to prepare and/or revise, as the case may be, their financial statements and statutory / tax
returns along with the prescribed forms, filings and annexures under the IT Act and/or in relation
to central sales tax, custom duty, entry tax, applicable state value added tax, GST and other tax
laws, if required, to give effect to the provisions of the Scheme.

Upon Part B of this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, all inter-
party transactions between Amalgamating Company and the Amalgamated Company shall be
considered as intra-party transactions for all purposes (including for tax compliances, credits,
refunds, etc.).

Upon Part B of this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date,
obligation for deduction of tax at source on any payment made by or to be made by the
Amalgamating Company or for collection of tax at source on any supplies made by or to be made
by Amalgamating Company shall be made or deemed to have been made and duly complied with
by the Amalgamated Company. Further, any tax deducted at source or collected at source by the
Amalgamating Company and Amalgamated Company on transactions with each other, if any (from
the Appointed Date until Effective Date) and deposited with Governmental Authorities shall be
deemed to be advance tax paid by the Amalgamated Company and shall, in all proceedings be dealt
with accordingly.

Upon Part B the Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the
Appointed Date, all tax compliances under any tax laws by the Amalgamating Company on or after
the Appointed Date shall be deemed to be made by the Amalgamated Company.

Upon Part B of this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, all tax
assessment proceedings and appeals of whatsoever nature by or against the Amalgamating
Company, pending or arising as at the Effective Date, shall be continued and/enforced by or against
the Amalgamated Company in the same manner and to the same extent as would or might have
been continued and enforced by or against the Amalgamating Company. Further, the
aforementioned proceedings shall neither abate or be discontinued nor be in any way prejudiciatly
affected by the reason of the amalgamation of the Amalgamating Company with the Amalgamated
Company or anything contained in Part B of this Scheme.

Upon Part B of this Scheme becoming effective and with-effect from the Appointed Date, all the
expenses incurred by the Amalgamating Company atd the Amalgamated Company in relation to
the amalgamation of the Amalgamating Compary




Scheme, including stamp duty expenses and / or transfer charges, if any, shall be aliowed as
deduction to Amalgamated Company in accordance with Section 35DD of the IT Act over a period
of 5 (five) years beginning with the previous year in which Part B of the Scheme becomes effective.

10.10  Upon Part B of this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, all the
deductions otherwise admissible to the Amalgamating Company, including payment admissible on
actual payment or on deduction of appropriate taxes or on payment of TDS (like Section 43B,
Section 40, Section 40A etc. of the IT Act) will be eligible for deduction to the Amalgamated
Company upon fulfilment of required conditions under the IT Act.

10.11  The amalgamation under this Scheme is in compliance with the IT Act, specifically Section 2(1B)
and other relevant provisions. If any of the terms of this Scheme are inconsistent with the provisions
of Sections 2(1B) of the IT Act, the provisions of Sections 2(1B) of the IT Act shall to the extent
of such inconsistency, prevail and this the Scheme shall, stand and be deemed to be modified to
that extent to comply with the said provisions.

11 CONDUCT OF AFFAIRS AFTER THE EFFECTIVE DATE

11.1  The Amalgamated Company, shall, at any time after Part B of this Scheme becomes effective on
the Effective Date, in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required under any law, contract
or otherwise, be entitled to do and take all such actions as may be required to give full effect to the
provisions of this Part B and for this purpose the Amalgamated Company shall, under the
provisions hereof, be deemed to be authorised on behalf of the Amalgamating Company. Without
prejudice to the generality of the above, the Amalgamated Company shall be entitled and desmed
to be authorised to:-

() execute appropriate deeds of confirmation or other writings or arrangements with any
party to any contract or arrangement (including without limitation any bank guarantee,
performance guarantee, fixed deposit, letters of credit, bill of entry etc.) in relation to
which the Amalgamating Company have been a party or to the benefit of which the
Amalgamating Company may have been entitled, and to make any filings with the
Governmental Authorities, in order to give formal effect to the provisions of Part B of
the Scheme; and

(ii) do all such acts or things as may be necessary to effectually transfer/obtain in favour of

‘ the Amalgamated Company the approvals, consents, bids, awards, tenders, exemptions,
registrations, no-objection certificates, permits, quotas, rights, entitlements, licenses
and certificates etc. which were held or enjoyed by the Amalgamating Company
including without limitation, execute all necessary or desirable writings and
confirmations on behalf of the Amalgamating Company and to carry out and perform
all such acts, formalities and compliances as may be required in this regard.

112 The provisions of this Clause shall operate notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in
any deed or writing or certificate or license or the terms of sanction or issue or any security, all of
which instruments and documents shall stand modified and/or superseded by the foregoing
provisions.

12 SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

Except as expressly provided hereunder including in Clause 10.4 and Clause 10.5, the transfer of
properties and liabilities to, and the continuance of proceedings by or against, the Amalgamated
Company as envisaged in this Part B shall not affect any transaction or proceedings already
concluded by the Amalgamating Company on or before the Appointed Date and after the
Appointed Date and until the Effective Date, and to-such end and intent the Amalgamated
Company accepts and adopts 21l acts, deeds and thirigs deng and executed by the Amalgamating
Company in respect thereto as done and executed.on behalf ofitself. ©
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13 CHANGE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL OF THE AMALGAMATED COMPANY

13.1

Upon this Scheme becoming effective on the Effective Date, the authorised share capital of
Amalgamating Company as on the Effective Date shall stand transferred to and be
merged/amalgamated with the authorised share capital of the Amalgamated Company, and the fee,
if any, paid by the Amalgamating Company on its authorised share capital shall be set off against
any fee payable by the Amalgamated Company on such increase in its authorised share capital,
consequent to the amalgamation. Accordingly, Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of
the Amalgamated Company shall stand modified and shall read as under:-

"“The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is INR 9,72,75,00,000 (Rupees Nine Hundred
Seventy Two Crores and Seventy Five Lakhs) consisting of 59,00,50,000 (Fifty Nine Crores and
Sfifty thousand) Equity Shares having face value of INR 10 (Rupees Ten) and 38,27,00,000 (Thirty
Eight Crores and Twenty Seven Lakh) preference shares having face value of INR 10 (Rupees
Ten)”

It is hereby clarified that the consent of the shareholders of the Amalgamated Company and
shareholders of the Amalgamating Companies to Part B of this Scheme shall be sufficient for the
purposes of effecting the aforesaid additions in the Memorandum of Association of the
Amalgamated Company and that no further resolutions, whether under the applicable provisions
of the Act or under the Articles of Association, shall be required to be separately passed. All actions
taken in accordance with this Clause shall be deemed to be in full compliance of Sections 61 and
64 and other applicable provisions of the Act and rules and regulations issued thereunder and no
further resolutions or actions under any other provisions of the Act or the rules or regulations issued
thereunder would be required to be separately passed or undertaken by the Amalgamated Company.

14 AMENDMENT TO OBJECTS OF THE AMALGAMATED COMPANY

14.1

Upon Part B of the Scheme becoming effective from the Effective Date, the following sub-clause
shall be deemed to have been automatically added to Clause I (A) (Main Objects) of the
Memorandum of Association of the Amalgamated Company immediately after the existing sub-
clauses of Clause III (A) and the “Objects Clause” in the Memorandum of Association of the
Amalgamated Company shall be deemed to have been amended to that extent by inserting below
clause in the main objects of the Amalgamated Company:-

“To carry on the business of manufactures, processors, vefiners, smelters, makers, converts,
finishers, importers, exporters, agents, merchants, buyers, sellers and dealers in all kinds and
Jorms of steels including tools and alloy steels, stainless and all other special steels, iron and other
metals and alloys, all kinds of goods, products, articles or merchandise whatsoever manufactured
wholly or partly from steels and other metals and alloys; and also the business and iron masters,
steel and metal converters, colliary proprierors, coke manyfacturers, ferroalloy manufactures ,
miners, smelters and engineers in all their respective branches and to search for, get , work, raise,
make, merchantable , manufacture , process, buy , sell and otherwise deal in iron , Pig Iron,
Granulated slag, Tron Ore Fines, steel and other metal, coal , coke, brick-earth, Sfire-clay, bricks,
ores, minerals and mineral substances, gases, alloy. Metal, metal scrap, chemicals and chemical
substances of all kinds and to set up Steel and non-ferrous melting furnaces, converiers, AP Lines
and casting facilities 1o produce stainless steel, ferrous and non-ferrous metals, alloy steels, steel
and non-ferrous ingots, continuous cast slabs, blooms, rounds, billets of various cross-sections,
alloys and special steel, to make and deal in ferrous/non-ferrous and special alloys & steels
including non-metoilic for the purpose of use in Defence, dero & Space, nuclear and for other
applications.

To carry on the business of purchase, sale, manufacture, process, import, export, buyers, sellers,

traders, merchants, distribution, deal in, to act as inde agent, commission agent, distributors,
whole sellers, retailers, broker, contractor, or otherwise ith raw and process materials, semi
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14.2

products and end products of Low ash metallurgical Coke, carbon, chemicals, coal, coke,
petroleum coke products, calcined petroleum coke, ferro alloys, electrodes, petro products and
petro products of all kinds & specificarion and other allied items and industriol raw materials.

To manufacture, purchase, sell, deal in soft coke, special smokeless fiel (SSF) with coal tar
recovered by CMPDIL Techiology, Industrial coke, coke as substitute to charcoal, processing and
distillation of coal tar, coal tar chemicals, any other type of coke and organic chemicals based on
carbon and tar directives, charcoal , bone charcoal, activated charcoadl, activated carbon, black
or any other carbon products, dyes dye intermediaries, coal mining, use of waste hear for
processing and production of any other article etc.

To carry on in all its branches the business of manufacturers and dealers in carbon black of all
types, gas black, ebony black, jer black, hydrocarbon black, Satin black and silicate of carbon
either from nanral and/or artificial gas or from other source.

To carry on all or any of the business of manyfacturing, developing, assemblers, filiers, engineers,
consultants, erectors, founders, smelters, refiners, makers, drawers, sinkers, miners, workers,
repairers, hire purchase dealers, import and export agents, representatives, contractors and
dealers of and In forging, casting of steel, stainless and special steels, carbon steel and mild steel,
alloys and ferrous and non-ferrous metals, auto parts, tools and implements, dies. jigs, steel pipes
and tubes and pipe fittings, iron and steel products, cast iron and steell and tubular structural.”

It is hereby clarified that the consent of the shareholders of the Amalgamated Company and
shareholders of the Amalgamating Companies to Part B of this Scheme shall be sufficient for the
purposes of effecting the aforesaid amendments in the “Objects Clause™ in the Memorandum of
Association of the Amalgamated Company and that no further resolutions, under the applicable
provisions of the Act, shall be required to be separately passed. All actions taken in accordance
with this Clause 14 of Part B of this Scheme shall be deemed to be in full compliance of Section
13 and other applicable provisions of the Act and rules and regulations issued thereunder and no
further resolutions or actions under any other provisions of the Act or the rules or regulations issued
thereunder would be required to be separately passed or undertaken by the Amalgamated Company.

15 DISCHARGE OF CONSIDERATION

15.1

Upon Part B of the Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date, and upon the amalgamation
of the Amalgamating Company into and with the Amalgamated Company, the Amalgamated
Company shall, without any further act or deed, consent or instrument, issue and allot its shares
on a proportionate basis to shareholders of the Amalgamating Company, whose name is recorded
in the register of shareholders of the Amalgamating Company as on the Effective Date, as under,
in consideration for the amalgamation of the Amalgamating Company with and into the
Amalgamated Company.

Based on (i) the valuation report issued by Niranjan Kumar, a registered valuer, dated J anuary 28"
2022, the Board of directors have determined the following share exchange ratio:

“10,765(Ten Thousand Seven Hundred and Sixty Five) fully paid up equity shares of face value of
Rs. 10 each of the Amalgamated Company shall be issued and allotied as fully paid up equity
shares to the equity shareholders of the Amalgamating Company, for every 1,000 (One Thousand)
Sully paid up equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each held by them in the Amalgamaiing
Company.”

“1 (One) 10% Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of the
Amalgamated Company having a face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up (with same rerms and
conditions in all respect as that of existing 10% Nowi-Ctifiulative Non-Convertible Redeemable
Preference Shares issued by Amalgamating Compapy) shallbe issued for every 1 (One) fully pe
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15.7

15.8

15.9

up Non- Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference shares of face value of Rs. 10 each
held by them in the Amalgamating Company.”

Any fractional entitlement of shares arising out of the aforesaid share exchange process, if any,
will be rounded off to the nearest higher integer.

In the event of any increase in the issued, subscribed or paid up share capital of the Amalgamating
Company or the Amalgamated Corpany or issuance of any instruments convertible into equity
shares or restructuring of its equity share capital including by way of share split/consolidation/issue
of bonus shares, free distribution of shares or instruments convertible into equity shares or other
similar action in relation to share capital of the Amalgamating Company or the Amalgamated
Company at any time as of the Effective Date, the share exchange ratic shall be adjusted
appropriately to take into account the effect of such issuance or corporate actions and assuming
conversion of any such issued instruments convertible into equity shares.

The new equity shares of the Amalgamated Company issued as per this Clause shall be subject to
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of Amalgamated Company and shall rank pari passu
in all respects, including dividend and voting rights, with the existing equity shares of the
Amalgamated Company.

The issue and allotment of new equity / preference shares by Amalgamated Company to the
shareholders of the Amalgamating Company as provided in this Part B of the Scheme is an integral
part thereof and shall be deemed to have been carried out in full compliance with all the procedures
laid down under Section 62 read with Section 42 of the Act and any other applicable provisions of
the Act and the rules and regulations issued thereunder.

In accordance with the regulatory requirements, all new equity / preference shares required to be
issued by the Amalgamated Company to the shareholders of the Amalgamating Company shali be
issued in dematerialized form and shall be credited to the depository account of the equity /
preference shareholders of the Amalgamating Company to the extent the details of such depository
participant accounts have been provided to/are available with the Amalgamating Company before
the Effective Date.

For the purpose of allotment of equity shares of Amalgamated Company pursuant to the above
sub-Clause 15.2 of Part B of the Scheme, in case any shareholder of the Amalgamating Company
on the Effective Date holds equity shares in the Amalgamating Company in physical form and/or
details of the depository participant account of such shareholder have not been provided to the
Amalgamating Company before the Effective Date, the Amalgamated Company shall not issue its
equity shares to such shareholder but shall subject to Applicable Laws, issue the corresponding
number of equity shares in dematerialised form, to a demat account held by a trustee nominated by
the Board of Directors of Amalgamated Company or into a suspense account opened in the name
of the Amalgamated Company with a depository participant or into an escrow account opened by
the Amalgamated Company with a depository, as determined by the Board of the Amalgamated
Company. The equity shates of the Amalgamated Company so held in a trustee's account or
suspense account or escrow account, as the case may be, shall be transferred to the respective
shareholder as per his entitlement once such shareholder provides details of his/ her / its depository
participant account to the Amalgamated Company in accordance with Applicable Laws, along with
such documents as maybe required under Applicable Laws.

Approval of this Scheme by the shareholders of the Amalgamated Company shall be deemed to
mean that the shareholders have also accorded all relevant consents under the Act for the issue and
allotment of the new Equity / Preference Shares by the Amalgamated Company to the shareholders
of the Amalgamating Company.

The Board of Directors (including any committee thereof) of Amalgamating Company and the
Amalgamated Company shall be empowered to remove such difficulties as may arise in the course
of implementation of this Scheme and registration of: hareholders in the Amalgamated
Company on account of the difficulties if any in the- 5
modification to the Scheme will be made which a
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secured creditors without seeking their approval.

16 DISSOLUTION OF AMALGAMATING COMPANY

Upon Part B of this Scheme becoming effective on the Effective Date, Amalgamating Company
shall stand automatically dissolved as an integral part of this Scheme, without being liquidated or
wound-up and without requiring any further act, instrument or deed from the Amalgamating
Company and/or the Amalgamated Company.

17 ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

Upon Part B of the Scheme becoming effective, with effect from the Appointed Date, the
Amalgamated Company shall account for the amalgamation in its books of accounts, as per
‘Acquisition Method” in accordance with accounting principles as laid down in Ind AS-103
notified under Section 133 of the Act and under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as may be amended from time to time, such that:

M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

In line with the recognition principles provided under Indian Accounting Standard 103 on
Business Combinations, the Amalgamated Company shall recognise al} assets and liabilities
of the Amalgamating Company transferred to and vested in the Amalgamated Company
pursuant to Part B of this Scheme at their respective fair values as on the Appointed Date.
Such assets may also include acquired identifiable intangible assets, whether previously
recorded in the books of accounts of the Amalgamating Company or not. Upon Part B of the
Scheme coming into effect, the above recognition shall result in the Amalgamated Company
recording all the assets and liabilities of the Amalgamating Company transferred to and
vested in it pursuant to this Scheme.

The Amalgamated Company shall record issuance of the new equity shares ar fair value and
accordingly credit to its share capital account the aggregate face value of the new equity
shares issued by the Amalgamated Company. The excess of the fair value of the new equity
shares over the face value of new equity shares issued by the Amalgamated Company in
accordance with Clause 15 shall be credited to the securities premium account.

Inter-company balances between the Amalgamated Company and the Amalgamating
Company, if any, shall stand cancelled and there shall be no further obligation in that behalf.

Excess, if any, of fair value of new equity shares issued as per sub-Clause (ii) above over the
fair value of net assets taken over as per sub-Clause (i) above, after giving the effect to sub-
Clause (iii) above, shall be recorded as goodwill. In case of deficit, it shall be credited to
capital reserve account.

PART C
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

18 CONDITIONALITY OF THE SCHEME

18.1 The effectiveness this Scheme is conditional upon and subject to the following:

(2)

(b

This Scheme being approved by the requisite majorities of such classes of shareholders and
creditors of the Companies as may be required under-Applicable Laws or as may be directed
by the Court;

the sanction of the Scheme by the Court;
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(¢)  the receipt of such other approvals including approvals of any Governmental Authority as
may be necessary under Applicable Laws or under any material contract to make this Scheme
or the relevant Part of this Scheme effective; and

(d)  the certified copies of the order of the Court sanctioning this Scheme (wholly or partially)
being filed with the Registrar of Companies by each of the relevant Companies.

1% EFFECTIVENESS OF THE SCEHME

19.1

Subject to Clause 18 of this Scheme, upon this Scheme becoming effective on the Effective Date, the
following shall be deemed to have occurred on the Appointed Date and shall become effective and
operative in the sequence and in the order mentioned hereunder:

) Amalgamation of Amalgamating Company into and with the Amalgamated Company in
accordance with Part B of this Scheme;

20 APPLICATIONS TO THE COURT

20.1

The Companies shall, with all reasonable dispatch, make a joint application to the Court, under
Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act, seeking orders for dispensing with or
convening of the meetings of the different classes of their respective shareholders and/or creditors
and for sanctioning this Scheme with such modifications, as may be approved/required by the Court
or any other Governmental Authority.

Upon this Scheme being approved by the requisite majority of the shareholders and creditors of the
Companies (wherever required), the Companies shall, file a joint petition before the Court for
sanction of this Scheme under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act, and for
such other order or orders, as the Court may deem fit for bringing this Scheme into effect. Upan this
Scheme becoming effective, the shareholders and the creditors of the Companies shall be deemed to
have also accorded their approval under all relevant provisions of the Act for giving effect to the
specific provisions contained in this Scheme and shall be binding upon shareholders and creditors of
respective companies.

21 MODIFICATIONS/AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

21.1

The Companies, acting through their respective Boards of Directors, may assent to any modifications
or amendments to this Scheme, which the Court and/or any other Governmental Authorities may
deem fit to direct or impose, or which may otherwise be considered necessary or desirable for settling
any question or doubt or difficulty that may arise in implementing and/or carrying out this Scheme
pravided however that no modification to the Scheme will be made which adversely affects the rights
or interest of the secured creditors without seeking their approval. The Companies, acting through
their respective Boards of Directors, be and are hereby authorised to take all such steps and do all
acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, desirable or proper to give effect to this Scheme and to
resolve any doubts, difficulties or questions, whether by reason of any orders of the Court or of any
directive or any other Governmental Authorities or otherwise howsoever, arising, out of, under, or by
virtue of this Scheme and/or any matters related to or connected therewith, provided however that no
modification to the Scheme will be made which adversely affects the rights or interest of the secured
creditors without seeking their approval.

2 If, at any time, before or after the Effective Date, any provisions or Parts of this Scheme are found 1o

be, or interpreted to be, invalid or illegal or inconsistent with any Applicable Laws, or rejected, or
unreasonably delayed, or not sanctioned by the Court, or is or becomes unenforceable, under present
or future Applicable Laws, or due to any change in any. Applicable Laws, then it is the intention of
the Compames that such part shall be severable from'the. r@mamder of this Scheme and other Parts /
provisions of this Scheme shall not be affected there%y unles: deletion of such Part sha]! cause
this Scheme to become materially adverse to any oj* he Ccmpa

[
3%
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of Directors of the relevant Companies. In such a case, the Companies, acting through their respective
Boards of Directors, may at their discretion, either bring about such modification in this Scheme, as
is likely to best preserve for the relevant Companies, the benefits and obligations of this Scheme
and/or withdraw the Scheme or any Part thereof, wholly or partially.

21.3 The Companies, acting through their respective Boards of Directors, shall each be at liberty to
withdraw this Scheme, wholly or partially, in case any condition or alteration imposed by the Court,
or any other Governmental Authority is unacceptable to any of them or otherwise if so decided by
their respective Board of Directors. In the event any Parts or provisions of this Scheme are withdrawn
and the Companies decide to implement the remaining Parts or provisions of this Scheme, to the
extent of such withdrawn provisions, this Scheme shall become null and void and no rights or
liabilities whatsoever shall accrue to, or bs incurred by, the relevant Companies, their respective
shareholders and/or creditors and/or any other persons with respect to such provisions or Parts of the
Scheme.

21.4 Upon coming into effect of the Scheme, the Amalgamated Company and/or the Amalgamating
Company shall, with reasonable dispatch / timelines apply for transition of all licenses and statutory
registrations of the Amalgamating Company including but not limited to product registrations
(including applications and authorizations for product registrations), manufacturing licenses,
insurance policies, product permissions, certificates, market authorizations, filings, industrial
licences, municipal permissions, approvals, consent, permits, quotas, incentives, subsidies and
recognitions. The period between the Effective Date and the last date on which the transfer of all such
aforementioned licenses and statutory registrations have occurred is hereinafter referred to as
"Transitory Period". During the Transition Period the Amalgamating Company, may procure or use
or manufacture or sale, all materials and products under the respective country registrations including
the packing material, art work, label goods, cartons, stickers, wrappers, labels, containers, point of
sale material, sign board, samples, closures, publicity materials in the name and form/format of the
Amalgamated Company under any license and/or statutory registration, if any, while conducting the
business with a view to avoid any disruption of business, to ensure continuity of operations and
uninterrupted supply of the products.

21.5 Even after the Scheme becomes operative, the Amalgamated Company shall be entitled to operate all
Bank Accounts and use all bank guarantees and letter of credit of the Amalgamating Company, and
release all monies and complete and enforse all subsisting contracts and transactions in respect of the
Amalgamating Company in the name of Amalgamating Company in so far as may be necessary, till
the transfer of rights and obligations of the Amalgamating Company to the Amalgamated Company
until this Scheme is formally accepted by all the parties concerned.

22 EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS/SEVERABILITY

22.1 In the event that the scheme is not sanctioned by the NCLT or in the event any of the other requisite
consents, approvals, permissions, sanctions or conditions are not obtained or complied with or for
any other reason, the scheme cannot be implemented, the scheme shall not take effect and shalf be
withdrawn and in that event no rights or liabilities, whatsoever, shall accrue to or be incurred inter-
se by the parties or their shareholders or creditors or employees or any other person.

22.2 Inthe event any of the sanctions, consents or approvals referred to in Clause 18 above are not obtained
or received and/or the Scheme, or any Part thereof, has not been sanctioned by the Court, the Board
of Directors of each of the Companies, shall, by mutual agreement, determine whether:

(a) this Scheme shall stand revoked and cancelled in entirety and shall be of no effect, save
and except in respect of any act or deed done prior thereto as is contemplated hereunder or
as to any rights and/or liabilities which might have arisen or accrued pursuant thereto and
which shall be governed and be preserved or worked out as is specifically provided in the
Scheme or under Applicable Law and in sue ch Company shall bear and pay its
respective costs, charges and expenses foratid in Cofriection with the Scheme; or
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(b) such Part shall be severable from the remainder of the Scheme and the remainder of the
Scheme shall not be affected thereby, unless the deletion of such Part shall cause the
Scheme to become materially adverse to any Company, in which case each of the
Companies, (acting through their respective Boards of Directors) shall attempt to bring
about a modification in the Scheme, as will best preserve for the Companies, the benefits
and obligations of this Scheme, including but not limited to such Part. Provided, however,
that no modification to the Scheme shall be made which adversely affects the rights or
interests of the secured creditors, without seeking their approvals.

23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

o
LD
(¥8)

This Scheme is presented and drawn up to comply with the provisions/requirements of Sections 230
to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act, for the. purpose of amalgamation of the
Amalgamating Company into and with the Amalgamated Company;

This Scheme has been drawn up to comply with the conditions relating to (a) “amalgamation” with
respect to Part B of the Scheme as defined under Section 2(1B) of the IT Act, respectively.

The Companies undertake to comply with all Applicable Laws, including making the requisite
intimations and disclosures to any statutory or regulatory authority and obtaining the requisite
consent, approval or permission of the Central Government, RBI (if required) or any other statutory
or regulatory authority, which by Applicable Law may be required for the implementation of this
Scheme.

24 CANCELLATION OF INTER-SE TRANSACTIONS

24.1

Upon this Scheme becoming effective on the Effective Date and with effect from the' Appointed Date,
all loans, advances, trade receivables and other obligations or liabilities due, from or by or any
guarantees given on behalf of the Amalgamating Company to / by the Amalgamated Company or
vice versa, if any, and all contracts, arrangements and transactions, of any nature whatsoever, between
any of the Amalgamating Company and the Amalgamated Company (other than this Scheme) shall
stand automatically cancelled and terminated and shall be of no effect, without any further act,
instrument or deed being required from any of the Companies and without any approval or
acknowledgement of any third party. No further taxes, fees, duties or charges shall be required to be
paid by the Amalgamated Company on account of such cancellation or termination.

25 CAPITAL AND DIVIDENDS

25.1

252

253

COSTS

Nothing in this Scheme shall be interpreted to restrict the ability of any of the Companies to declare
and/or pay dividends, whether interim and/or final or issue bonus shares, to their respective
shareholders prior to the Effective Date.

It is clarified that the aforesaid provisions in respect of declaration of dividends are enabling
provisions only and shall not be deemed to confer any right on any shareholder of the Companies to
demand or claim any dividends which, subject to the provisions of the Act, shall be entirely at the
discretion of the respective Boards of Directors of the Companies, and if applicable as per the
provisions of the Act, shall also be subject to the approval of the shareholders of the relevant
Company or Companies.

Nothing in this Scheme shall be interpreted to restrict the ability of any of the Companies to raise
capital or funds whether by way of equity or debt, in.any-manner whatsoever, at any time prior to the
Effective Date. S

24




25.4 All costs, charges, taxes incleding stamp duty, levies and all other expenses, if any (save as expressly
otherwise agreed) of the Amalgamating Company arising out of or incurred in connection with

implementing Part B of this Scheme and matters incidental thereto shall be borne by the Amalgamated
Company.




Registered Yoluer - Secwrities or Finandal Assets

Date: 28 January 2022

o, To,

The Board of Directors, The Board of Directors,
Jindal United Steel Limited, Jindal Coke Limited,
0.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar, 0.P. Jindal Marg, Hisar,
Haryana - 125005 Haryana - 125005

Subject: Recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of Jindal
Coke Limited ('JCL') with Jindal United Steel Limited (‘JUSL")

Dear Sir/Madam,

We refer to the engagement letter dated 27 December 2021 and discussion undertaken with
the Management of Jindal United Steel Limited ('JUSL’ or ‘Amalgamated Company’) and
Jindat Cake Limited (‘(JCL" or "Amalgamating Company’) (hereinafter both together referred to
as ‘the Management’), wherein the Management has requested Niranjan Kumar, Registered
Valuer ~ Securities or Financial Assets (NK', ‘we’ or 'us’) to undertake a valuation exercise and
recommend a share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of JCL (‘Amalgamating
Company’) with JUSL (‘Amalgamated Company’) (‘Proposed Amalgamation’).
Hereinafter the Amalgamated Company and Amalgamating Company shall together be
referred to as the Transacting Companies’; and the Management including the Board of
Directors of the Transacting Companies shall together be referred to as ‘the Management'.

Please find enclosed the report (comprising 37 pages including annexures) detailing our
recormimendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation, the methodologies
employed and the assumptions used in our analysis.

This report sets out our scope of work, background, source of information, procedures
performed by us and our recommendation of the share exchange ratio.

BACKGROUND, SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

Jindal United Steel Limited (‘JUSL' or 'Amalgamated company’) was incorporated on 01
December 2014 and is engaged in the business of hot rolling and cold rolling of a wide array
of stainless steels including austenitic, ferritic, martensitic and other special stainless-steel
grades for multiple use cases ranging from pipe and tube segment to nuclear and automotive
segment in coil, plate and sheet form. The Company has manufacturing facility located at
Jajpur, Odisha.

Jindal Coke Limited ('JCL’ or 'Amalgamating Company’) was incorporated on 02 December
2014 and is engaged in the business of manufacturing, processing, finishing and dealing in all
kinds and forms of coke and coke products. The Company has manufacturing facility located
at Jajpur, Odisha.

We understand that the Management of the Transacting Companies are contemplating a
scheme of arrangement, wherein they intend to amalgamate JCL with JUSL in accordance

N5-1003, Hills and Dales Ph 3, NIBM Annexe, Pune - 411060, Mob.: +81 9921915656 | niranjan@nskumar.com | www.nskumar.com
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with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory
modifications, re-enactment or amendments thereof for the time being in force {“the Act”) read
with the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (“the
Rules”), as amended from time to time and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act
and any other applicable law for the time being in force and in a manner pravided in the Draft
Scheme of Arrangement (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Scheme’). Further as a consideration
for the proposed amalgamation, the equity shareholders and preference shareholders of
Amalgamating Company will be issued equity shares and redeemable preference shares
('RPS") respectively of Amalgamated Company in the share exchange ratio as may be decided
by the Board of Directors based on share exchange ratio recommended by a Registered Valuer
as required under the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

In connection with the above-mentioned proposed amalgamation, the Management has
appointed Niranjan Kumar, Registered Valuer - Securities or Financial Assets ('NK'} to submit
a report recommending a share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation as at the
report date ('Valuation Date’),

We would like to emphasize that certain terms of the proposed amalgamation are stated in
our report, however the detailed terms of the proposed amalgamation shall be more fully
described and explained in the Scheme document to be submitted with relevant authorities in
relation to the proposed amalgamation. Accordingly, the description of the terms and certain
other information contained herein is qualified in its entirety by reference to the underlying
Scheme.

We understand that the appointed date for the proposed amalgamation shall be 07 April 2021
as defined in the scheme or such other date as the competent authority may direct or approve.
We have determined the share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation as at the report
date,

The scope of our services is to conduct a relative {(and not absolute) valuation exercise as at
the Valuation Date to determine the equity value of the Transacting Companies using
internationally accepted valuation methodologies as may be applicable to the Transacting
Companies and then arrive at the share exchange ratio and report on the same in accordance
with generally accepted professional standards including ICAl Valuation Standards, 2018
notified by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

This report is our deliverable for the said engagement and is subject to the scope,
assumptions, exclusions, limitations and disclaimers detailed hereinafter. As such, the report
is to be read in totality and in conjunction with the relevant documents referred to therein.

EiiT1@ 1  Recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed
amalgamation of JCL with JUSL Page 2 of 37
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SOURCES OF INFORMATION

In connection with preparation of this report, we have used and relied on the following sources
of information:

- A. Company specific information
information provided by the Management which includes:

«  Limited reviewed unaudited financial statements for the six months’ period ended 30
September 2021 and audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March
2021 CFY217) of JUSL,

« Unaudited provisional financial statements for the six months’ period ended 30 September
20271 ('PE22") and audited financial staternents for the financial year ended 371 March 2021
(FY21) of JCL;

« Details of key corporate actions initiated in JUSL subsequent to 30 September 2021 until
the report date including further issue of shares and conversion of NCCCPS into equity
shares. ‘

= Financial projections of the Transacting Companies from 01 April 20271 (FY22)) to 31 March
2026 ('FY26") ('Management Projections’) which represent the management’s best
estimate of the projected future financial performance of the Transacting Companies,

s Draft scheme of arrangement between the Transacting Companies pursuant to which
proposed amalgamation is to be undertaken;

« Valuation report dated 06 January 2022 with respect to fair valuation of tangible fixed
assets held by the Transacting Companies, prepared and issued by RBSA Valuation
Advisors LLP;

« Latest shareholding pattemn of the Transacting Companies as at report date;

= Terms of 0.01% non-cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares (‘NCCCPS)
issued by JUSL and outstanding as at the report date including nature of instrument,
dividend rate, conversion terms, tenure, etc,

« Terms of 10.0% non-cumulative non-convertible redeemable preference  shares
('NCNCRPS') issued by JCL and JUSL and outstanding as at the report date including nature
of instrument, dividend rate, tenure ete.; and

+ Discussions and correspondence with the Management in connection with business
operations, past trends, key developments, proposed future business plans and prospects,
realizability of assets, etc.

B. Industry and economy information:
= Information available in public domain and databases such as Yahoo Finance, Capitaline,
NSE, BSE ete.; and

s Such other information and documents as provided by the Management for the purposes
of this engagement. “

1 %ﬁ Recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed
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Besides the above listing, there may be other information provided by the Management which
may not have been perused by us in detail, if not considered relevant for our defined scope.

We have also considered/ obtained such other analysis, reviews, explanations and information
considered reasonably necessary for our exercise, from the Management.

<<zz< This space has been left blank intentionally>>>>>
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PROCEDURES ADOPTED

Procedures used in our analysis included such substantive steps as we considered necessary
under the circumstances, including, but not necessarily limited to the following:

+ Discussion with the Management to:

Understand the business and fundamental factors that affect its earning generating
capability including strength, weakness, opportunity and threat analysis and historical
financial performance;

- Enquire about current state of affairs, business plans and the future performance
estimates;

¢ Analysis of information shared by Management,

¢ Reviewed the draft scheme of arrangement between the Transacting Companies pursuant
to which the proposed amalgamation is to be undertaken;

s Reviewed the limited reviewed unaudited financial statements for the six months' period
ended 30 September 2021 and audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31
March 2027 (‘FY217) of JUSL;

+  Reviewed the unaudited provisional financial statements for the six months’ period ended
30 September 2021 and audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March
2027 (FY217) of JCL;

« Reviewed the shareholding pattern of the Transacting Companies as at report date;

¢ Reviewed the terms of 0.01% NCCCPS issued by JUSL and outstanding as at report date
including nature of instrument, dividend rate, conversion terms, tenure etc

o Reviewed the terms of 10.0% NCNCRPS issued by JCL and JUSL and outstanding as at the
report date including nature of instrument, coupon rate, tenure etc.;

s Reviewed the cashflow projections provided by the Management including understanding
basis of preparation and the underlying assumptions;

s Confirmed that there was no significant changes in the financial performance of
Transacting Companies between 30 September 2021 and the report date except for the
funds raised by JUSL by way of further issue and conversion of NCCCPS into equity shares,

= Discussion with the Management with respect to key corporate action initiated in JUSL
subsequent to 30 September 2027 until the report date including further share issue and
conversion of NCCCPS into equity shares,

» Discussion with the Management with respect to realizability of the assets of the
Transacting Companies and adjustments if any, required to their current carrying values;

» Discussion with the Management in relation to existence of any liability including
contingent liabilities in addition to the liabilities appearing in the financial statements of the
Transacting Companies;

+  Considered the fair value of tangible fixed assets held by Transacting Companies based on
valuation report dated 06 January 2022, prepared and issued by RBSA Valuation Advisors
LLP,

N
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= Discussions with the Management to obtain requisite explanation and clarification of data
provided;

+ Selection of appropriate internationally accepted valuation methodology/ (ies) after
deliberations and consideration to the sector in which the Transacting Companies
operates;

s Arrived at the valuation of the Transacting Companies using the method/(s) considered
appropriate;

= Arrived at the value of equity shares of Transacting Companies after giving due weightage
to the value arrived under the different methods;

» Considered the terms of NCNCRPS proposed to be issued as consideration; and

= Arrived at the final share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of JCL with JUSL.

<<<<<This space has been feft blank intentionally>>>>>
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TRANSACTING COMPANIES
A. Jindal United Steel Limited ((JUSL’ or ‘Amalgamated company’)

I Equity Share Capital

The equity shareholding pattern of JUSL as at the report date is set out below:

OPJ Steel Trading Private Limited 34,15,89,879 74.0%
Jindal Stainless Limited 12.00,18.377 26.0%
Total 461608315  100.0%

. Preference Share Capital

In addition to the above-mentioned equity shares, JUSL has also issued 5,50,31,563 0.01%
non-cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares ('NCCCPS') and 8,76,73,311 10%
non-cumulative non-convertible redeemable preference shares (NCNCRPS') both having face
value of INR 10/- each to Jindal Stainless Limited,

a) Keyterms of above-mentioned NCCCPS is set out below:

Nature

Dividend Rate 0.01%

Face Value INR 10 each

Tenure On or before 10 years form the date of allotment i.e. 25 October 2018

Conversion Ratio 1(0One) 0.01% NCCCPS shall be compulsorily convertible into 1 (One) equity share

Nature Non Cumulative Non Convertible Re
Dividend Rate 10.0%

Face Value INR 10 each
Tenure On or before 20 years form the date of allotment i.e. 13 October 2016

deemable Preference shares

<<z<<This space has been left blank intentionally>>>>>
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B. Jindal Coke Limited (\JCL' or ‘Amalgamating Company’)

I. Equity Share Capital

The equity shareholding pattern of JCL as at the report date is set out below:

Four Seasons Investments Limited (FSIL) 2,40,00,000 74.0%
Jindal Stainless Limited 84,32,3772 26 0%
Others ‘ 60 0.0%
Total 3,24,32,432 ~ 100.0%

. Preference Share Capital

in addition to the above-mentioned equity shares, JCL has also issued 10,92,64,641 10% non-

cumulative non-convertible redeemable preference shares (NCNCRPS') having face value of
INR 10 each to Jindal Stainless Limited.

Key terms of above-mentioned NCNCRPS is set out helow:

Number of NCNCRPS 9,16,47,073

Nature Non Cumutative Nan Convertible Redeemable Preference shares
Dividend Rate 10.0%

Face Value INR 10 each

Tenure

On or before 20 years form the date of allotment i e. 13 October 2016

Number )f 'NCN

S 1,76,17,56
Nature Non Cumulative Non Convertible Redeemable Preference shares
Dividend Rate 10.0%
Face Value INR 10 each
Tenure

On or before 20 years form the date of allotment i.e. 25 October 2018

<<<<<This space has been left blank intentionally>>>>>
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

ay Jindal United Steel Limited (JUSL’ or 'Amalgamated company’)

Snapshot of the limited reviewed unaudited financial statements for the six months’ period
ended 30 September 2021 {‘PE22") and audited financial statements for the vear ended 31
March 2021 ('FY2717) of JUSL is set out below:

Balance sheet as at Profit and loss for the period/ year ended
INRin Crore i

Equity and liabilities Revenue from operatior - 6880
Shareholders’ fund Total revenue 688.0
Share capital 428 .4 428.4 Expenses
Other equity 66.3 12 Cost of goads sold (100.0) {91.4)
Mon current liabilities Ermployee benefit expense (13.8) (25.5}
Long term borrowings 2,300.8 2,563.3 Other expense (296.4) (4011
Other non current liabilities 4.0 37 EBITDA 277.9 386.1
Current liabilities Depreciatian (152.7)
Short terrm borrowings 3.9 7.5 E??‘T 23%5\
Trade payables 199.3 787 g{{;imﬁ cost ) S , {"303' ;’
Sther current habifities 35.0 Jther income 28.2 7.2
ey sy samy PO beoesmioion) 1 (e
Assels R : E Exceptionalitern {0.2) (0.0).
Nxm édrrem asgets Pt ! 03"6, (64‘@
Net fixed assets 26987 27516 To @8.2) 2t
Net ssets 2,698, PAT 67.4 (41.4)
Other non current assets 203 177.6
Current assets
Inventories 34.3 198
Trade receivables 255 158
Cash and cash equivalents 18.4 14.1
Other current assets 2455 1365
TotalAssets 30426 31154

<<<<<This space has been left blank intentionally>»»>x
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b) Jindal Coke Limited ('JCL’ or ‘Amalgamating Company’)

Snapshot of the unaudited provisional financial statements for the six months’ period ended
30 September 2021 and audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(‘FY271) of JCL is set out below:

Balance sheetas at Profit and loss for the period/ year ended
INR it Cror InR i Crore

Revenue from operations 4941 » 763‘3

Yotal revenue 4941 7635

Share capital 32.4 32.4 Expenses Q -

Other equily 319.7 196.2 ‘{;‘QST of goods S(’?!d UL)OQ} 33)%

Mon current liabilities trm)iny@e henefit expense ( (fﬂ.}:} {l i),:&)

) . . . Other expense 49.1) {73.2)

Long term borrowings 455.9 4971 CBITDA . 1889 147 6

‘ Other ﬂfm ‘cz:s:lrfent Habilities 72.6 54.5 Depraciation (10.6) (20.0)

Current liabilities EBIT ) 1776 1276

Short term borrowings 27 2.3 s e 17 9 51.0)

Trade payables 98.2 10.8 iy‘:;ims;:g:i Jélé}; {);;}

_ Other current liabilities 689 341 PBT (before exceptional item) 1613 81.8

Total equity and labilities 1,050.5 8273 Exceptional item 20 11

Assets PBT 163.3 82.9

Non current assets Tax 329 (@5

Net fixed assets 484.2 49492 PAT 123.4 57.8
Other non current assets 1197 1053

Current assets

inventories 2469 99.9
Trade receivables 140.2 47.8
Cash and cash equivalents 11.4 48.5
Othercurrentassets 480 317
Total Assets S 1,050.5 827.3

<<<<<This space has been left blank intentionally>»>>>>
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VALUATION APPROACHES
Basis and Premise of Valuation

For the purpose of determining the share exchange ratio for proposed amalgamation,
valuation of the equity shares of the Transacting Companies as on the report date is carried
outin accordance with ICAl Valuation Standards (“ICAI VS”), considering ‘Fair Value' base and
‘geing concern value' premise. Any change in the valuation base, or the valuation premise
could have a significant impact on the valuation outcome of the Company.

Basis of Valuation

It means the indication of the type of value being used in an engagement. Fair Value as per
ICAIVS is defined as under: "Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the valuation
date.”

Premise of Value

Premise of Value refers to the conditions and circumstances how an asset is deployed.
Valuation of the Specified Business is carried out on a Going Concern Value premise which is
defined under ICAI VS as under:

"Going concern value is the value of a business enterprise that is expected to continue to
operate in the future, The intangible elements of going concern value result from factors such
as having a trained work force, an operational plant, the necessary licenses, systems, and
procedures in place, etc.”

Itis pertinent to note that the valuation of any business/company or its assets is inherently
imprecise and is subject to various uncertainties and contingencies, all of which are difficult
to predict and are beyond our control. In performing our analysis, we made numerous
assumptions considering inter-alia dependency and financial assistance from existing
shareholders and general business and economic conditions, many of which are beyond the
control of the company. In addition, this valuation will fluctuate with changes in prevailing
market conditions, and prospects, financial and otherwise, of the business, and other factors
which generally influence the valuation of the company, its business and assets.

The application of any particular method of valuation depends on the purpose for which the
valuation is done. Although, different values may exist for different purpose, it cannot be too
strongly emphasized that a valuer can only arrive at one value for one purpose. Our choice of
methodology of valuation has been arrived at using usual and conventional methodologies
adopted for transactions of similar nature and our reasonable judgment, in an independent
and bona fide manner based on our previous experience of assignments of a similar nature.

LRI Z T Recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed
Registered Voluer - Securitias o Finandial Assets amalgamation of JCL with JUSL Page 11 of 37

63



The following are commonly used and accepted methods for determining the value of the
equity shares of a company:

1. Asset Approach - Net Asset Value method
2. Market Approach:

a) Market Price method

b) Comparable Companies Market Multiple method
3. Income Approach ~ Discounted Cash Flow method

For the proposed amalgamation, we have considered the following commonly used and
accepted methods far determining the value of equity shares of the Transacting Companies
for the purpose of recommending fair share exchange ratio to the extent relevant and
applicable:

1. Asset Approach - Net Asset Value Method ('NAV)

The asset-based value analysis technique is based on the value of the underlying net assets
of the business, either on a book value basis or realizable value basis or replacement cost
basis. This methodology is likely to be appropriate for business which derives value mainly
from the underlying value of its assets rather than its earnings. This value analysis approach
may also be used in case where the firm is to be liquidated or in case where the assels base
dominates earning capability. It is also used where the main strength of the business is its
asset backing rather than its capacity or potential to earn profits. '

JUSL is primarily engaged in hot rolling and cold rolling of stainless steel on job work basis and
has large asset hase primarily in plant and machinery. We have therefore used Net Asset Value
('NAV’') Method to arrive at the equity value of JUSL.

JCL is primarily engaged in manufacturing, processing, finishing and dealing in all kinds and
forms of coke and coke products and has large asset base primarily in plant and machinery. We
have therefore used Net Asset Value (NAV’) Method to arrive at the equity value of JCL.

2. Market Approach
a) Market Price Method

The market price of an equity share as quoted on a stock exchange is normally considered as
the value of the equity shares of that company where such quotations are arising from the
shares being regularly and freely traded in, subject to the element of speculative support that
may be inbuilt in the value of the shares.

The equity shares of Transacting Companies are not listed on any stock exchange, we have
therefore not used this method to arrive at the fair value of equity shares of Transacting
Companies.

b) Comparable Companies’' Multiple (CCM) / Comparable Transaction Method (CTM)

Under CCM, the value of shares/ business of a company is determined based on market
multiples of publicly traded comparable companies. This valuation is based on the principle
that market valuations, taking place between informed buyers and informed sellers,
incorporate all factors relevant to valuation. CCM applies multiples derived from similar or
‘comparable’ publicly traded companies. Although no two companies are entirely alike, the
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companies selected as comparable companies should be engaged in the same or a similar
line of business as the subject company. Relevant multiples need to be chosen carefully and
adjusted for differances between the circumstances,

Based on our discussion with the Management, we understand that there are a no comparable
listed companies which operate in a similar line of business and having similar financial/
operating metrics as that of the Transacting Companies, we have therefore not used CCM
Method.

Under CTM, the value of shares/ business of a company is determined based on market
multiples of publicly disclosed transactions in the similar space as that of the subject
company. Mulliples are generally based on data from recent transactions in a comparable
sector, but with appropriate adjustment after consideration has been given to the specific
characteristics of the business being valued.

Based on our discussion with the Management, we understand that there are no recent
comparable transactions involving comparnies of similar nature and having a similar operating/
financial metrics as that of the Transacting Companies, we have therefore not used CTM method.

3. income Approach - Discounted Cash Flows Method ((DCF)

DCF method values a business based upon the available cash flow a prudent investor would
expect the subject business to generate over a given period of time. This method is used to
deterrnine the present value of a business on a going concern assumption and recognizes the
time value of money by discounting the free cash flows for the explicit forecast period and the
perpetuity value at an appropriate discount factor. Free cash flows are the cash flows

- expected 1o be generated by the company that are available 1o equity shareholders of the
company. The terminal value represents the total value of the available cash flow for all
periods subsequent to the forecast period. The terminal value of the business at the end of
the forecast period is estimated and discounted to its equivalent present value and added 1o
the present value of the explicit forecast period cash flow to estimate the value of the
business.

Using the DCF analysis involves determining the following:
Estimating future cash flows:

Free cash flows are the cash flows expected to be generated by the company that are available
to all providers of capital.

Appropriate discount rate to be applied to cash flows i.e., Weighted Average Cost of Capital
("WACCY:

This discount rate, which is applied to the free cash flows, should reflect the opportunity cost
to all the capital providers (namely shareholders and lenders), weighted by their relative
contribution to the total capital of a company. The opportunity cost to the capital providers
equals the rate of return the capital provider expects to earn on other investments of
equivalent risk

To arrive at the total value attributable to the equity shareholders of the business, value arrived
through DCF method for the company is adjusted for the value of loans, excess cash, inflow
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on exercise of options, non-operating assets/ labilities (e.g. fair value of investments, any
contingent liabilities, etc ). The total value for equity shareholders is then divided by the total
number of equity shares (on fully diluted basis) to arrive at the value per share of the company.

Though JUSL has incurred loss in previous vear, going forward, the Management expects JUSL
to make profits and generate surplus cash in future, we have therefore used DCF Method to arrive
at the equity value of JUSL, ’

JCL is profit making and generate surplus cash, going forward as well JCL is expected to make

profits and generate surplus cash, we have therefore used DCF Method to arrive at the equity
value of JCL.

«<<<< This space has been left blank intentionally>>>>>
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RECOMMENDATION OF SHARE EXCHANGE RATIO FOR THE PROPOSED AMALGAMATION

The fair exchange ratio has been arrived at on the basis of a relative (and not absolute) equity
value of the Transacting Companies for the proposed scheme of arrangement based on the
various methodologies mentioned herein earlier. Suitable rounding off has been carried out
wherever necessary to arrive at the recommended share exchange ratio for equity
shareholders of JCL.

Refer Annexure 1 for value per share under different methods prescribed and the share exchange
ratio,

For the preference shareholders holding 10% non-cumulative non-convertible redeemable
preference shares (NCNCRPS') issued by JCL, JUSL will issue 10% NCNCRPS, on the same
terms and conditions in all respect as is existing in JCL (Amalgamating Company).

I light of the above and on a consideration of all the relevant factors and circumstances as
discussed and outlined herein above including scope, limitations and assumptions described
in this report, we recommend the share exchange ratio as follows:

a) To the equity shareholders of JCL

10,765 (Ten Thousand Seven Hundred and Sixty-Five) equity shares of JUSL having a face
value of INR 10 each fully paid-up shall be issued for every 1,000 (One Thousand) equity
shares held in JCL having face value of INR 10 each fully paid-up.

b) To the preference shareholders of JCL

1 (Gne) 10% Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of JUSL
having a face value of INR 10 each fully paid-up (with same terms and conditions in all
respect at that of existing 10% NCNCRPS issued by JCL); shall be issued for every T (One)
10% Non- Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference shares held in JCL having
face value of INR 10 each fully paid-up.

Respectfully submitted,

Q &

Niranjan Kumar

Registered Valuer ~ Securities or Financial Assets
|1BBI Registration Number: IBBI/RV/06/2018/10137
Date: 28 January 2022 ICAIRVO/06/RV-P0O00021/2018-19

Place: Pune UDIN: 221271635AAAAAQE734
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SCOPE LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSIONS AND DISCLAIMERS

Provision of valuation opinions and consideration of the issues described herein are areas of
our regular practice. The services do not represent accounting, assurance, accounting/ tax
due diligence, consulting or tax related services that may otherwise be provided by us.

This report, its contents and the results herein are specific and subject to:

« the purpose of valuation agreed as per the terms of this engagement;
+ the date of the report;
« shareholding pattern of the Transacting Companies as at the report date;

= limited reviewed unaudited financial statement of JUSL for the six months’ period ended
30 September 2021;

= unaudited provisional financial statement of JCL for the six months’ period ended 30
September 2021;

» realisation of cashflow projections as provided by the Management and the assumptions
underlying the financial projections;

= key corporate actions initiated in the Transacting Companies subsequent to 30 Septermnber
2021 until the report date including further share issue and conversion of NCCCPS into
equity shares;

= terms of 0.01% NCCCPS issued by JUSL and outstanding as at report date indt dmg the
potential equity dilution upon their conversion into equity shares in the ratio of 1

+ terms of 10.0% NCNCRPS issued by JCL and JUSL and outstanding as at the report date
including nature of instrument, dividend rate, tenure etc;

+ realizability of the assets (except tangible fixed asset and security deposit) at the values
carried in the books of accounts of the Transacting Companies;

= realizability of the tangible fixed assets at the fair value estimated by RBSA Valuation
Advisors LLP vide valuation report dated 06 January 2022;

+ o additional outflow towards liabilities other than those recorded in the books of accounts
of the Transacting Companies; and

s data detailed in the section - Sources of Information

A value analysis of this nature is necessarily based on the prevailing stock market, financial,
economic and other conditions in general and industry trends in particular. It is based on the
information made available to us as of the date of this report, events occurring after that date
hereof may affect this report and the assumptions used in preparing it, and we do not assume
any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm this report.

The ultimate analysis will have to be tempered by the exercise of judicious discretion by the
valuer and judgment taking into account the relevant factors. There will always be several
factors e.g. Management capability, present and prospective yield on comparable securities,
market sentiment, location specific factors etc., which are not evident on the face of the
financial statement but which will strongly mﬂuence the worth of eqmty share of the
Transacting Companies.

The recommendation(s) rendered in this report only represent our recommendation(s) based

upon information furnished by the Transacting Companies till the date of this report and other
sources, and the said recornmendation(s) shall be considered to be in the nature of non-

&
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binding advice (our recommendation should not be used for advising anybody to take buy or
sell decision, for which specific opinion needs to be taken from expert advisors).

The determination of fair value for arriving at share exchange ratio is not a precise science
and the conclusions arrived at in many cases, will, of necessity, be subjective and dependent
on the exercise of individual judgment. There is, therefore, no indisputable single fair value.
While we have provided our recommendation of the share exchange ratio based on the
information available to us and within the scope and constraints of our engagement, others
may have a different opinion. The final responsibility for the determination of the share
exchange ratio at which the proposed amalgamation shall take place will be with the Board of
Directors of the Transacting Companies, who should take into account other factors such as
their own assessment of the proposed amalgamation and input of other advisors.

In the course of our analysis, we were provided with both written and verbal information,
including market, technical, financial and operating data including information as detailed in
the section ~Sources of Information.

In accordance with the terms of our engagement, we have assumed and relied upon, without

independent verification of;

s the accuracy of information made available to us by the Management which formed a
substantial basis for the report; and

+  the accuracy of information that was publicly available.

We have not carried out a due diligence or audit or review of the Transacting Companies for
the purpose of this engagement, nor have we independently investigated or otherwise verified
the data provided.

We are not legal or regulatory advisors with respect to legal and regulatory matters for the
proposed amalgamation. We do not express any form of assurance that the financial
information or other information as prepared and provided by the Companies is accurate. Also,
with respect to explanations and information sought from the Management/ Company's
advisors, we have been given to understand by the Management that they have not omitted
any relevant and material factors and that they have checked the relevance or materiality of
any specific information to the present exercise with us in case of any doubt.

Accordingly, we do not express any opinion or offer any form of assurance regarding its
accuracy and completeness. Our conclusions are based on these assumptions and
information given by/ on behalf of the Management. The Management has indicated to us that
they have understood that any omissions, inaccuracies, or misstatements may materially
affect our recommendation. Accordingly, we assume no responsibility for any errors in the
information furnished by the Transacting Companies and their impact on the report. Also, we
assume no responsibility for technical information (if any) furished by the Transacting
Companies. However, nothing has come to our attention to indicate that the information
provided was materially misstated/ incorrect or would not afford reasonable grounds upon
which to base the report. We do not imply and it should not be construed that we have verified
any of the information provided to us, or that our inquiries could have verified any matter, which
a more extensive examination might disclose.

The report assumes that the Transacting Companies comply fully with relevant laws and
regulations applicable in all its areas of operations and that the Company will be managed in
a competent and responsible manner. Further, except as specifically stated to the contrary,
this report has given no consideration on to matters of a legal nature, including issues of legal
title and compliance with local laws and litigation and other contingent liabilities that are not
represented to us by the Management.
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This report does not look into the business/ commercial reasons behind the proposed
amalgamation nor the likely benefits arising out of the same. Similarly, the report does not
address the relative merits of the proposed amalgamation as compared with any other
alternative business transaction, or other alternatives, or whether or not such alternatives
could be achieved or are available. This report is restricted to recommendation of share
exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation only.

We must emphasize that the latest financials of Transacting Companies as at the report date
were not provided by the Management for our value analysis, however the Management has
represented that they do not expect any significant changes in financial performance between
30 September 2027 and the report date and key corporate action events post 30 September
2021 have been provided to us which has been considered while undertaking the valuation
workings. We have therefore considered the financials as at 30 September 2021 of
Transacting Companies for the purpose of our value analysis and adjusted the same for key
corporate actions until the report date.

We would like to emphasize that for the purpose of determining fair market value of tangible
fixed assets of the Transacting Companies, we have entirely relied on the valuation report
dated 06 January 2022 prepared and issued by RBSA Valuation Advisor LLP.

Given that outstanding NCCCPS of JUSL are convertible into equity shares onva 1:1 basis (i.e.
1 {One) NCCCPS would be converted into 1 (One) Equity Share), we have therefore considered
the said conversion ratio to arrive at the potential number of equity shares to be issued on
conversion of NCCCPS and calculated the per share equity value of JUSL on a fully diluted
basis for the purpose of our value analysis.

We have been informed by the Management that they have recently raised funds aggregating
to INR 40.0 Crores by further issue of 2,45,39,878 equity shares having face value of INR 10
each. Accordingly, we have added the above-mentioned subscription amount i.e., INR 40.0
Crore to the equity value of JUSL arrived under both methods i.e. NAV method and DCF
method.

No investigation of the Company’s claim to title of assets has been made for the purpose of
this report and the Company's claim to such rights has been assumed to be valid. No
consideration has been given to liens or encumbrances against the assets, beyond the loans
disclosed in the accounts.

We would like to emphasize that as consideration for the proposed amalgamation, preference
shareholders of JCL would be issued 10% NCNCRPS of JUSL on the same terms and
conditions in all respect as that of existing 10% NCNCRPS in JCL. We have therefore not
valued 10% NCNCRPS of Transacting Companies independently, since the right of preference
shareholders of JCL would remain same with the issue of same instruments with similar rights
for the balance remaining period in JUSL.

We must emphasize that realization of forecasted free cash flow or the realizability of the
assets at the values considered in our analysis wili be dependent on the continuing validity of
assumptions on which they are based. Our analysis, therefore, will not, and cannot be directed
te providing any assurance about the achievability of the final projections. Since the financial
forecasts relate to the future, actual results are likely to be different from the projected results
because events and circumstances do not occur as expected, and the differences could be
material. To the extent that our conclusions are based on the forecasts, we express no opinion
on achievability of those forecasts. The fact that we have considered the projections in this
valuation exercise should not be construed or taken as our being associated with or a party to
such projections.
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Certain terms of the proposed amalgamation are stated in our report, however the detailed
terms of the proposed amalgamation shall be more fully described and explained in the
Scheme document to be submitted with relevant authorities in relation to the proposed
amalgamation. Accordingly, the description of the terms and certain other information
contained herein is qualified in its entirety by reference 1o the Scheme document.

The fee for the Engagement is not contingent upon the results reported.

We owe responsibility only to the Board of Directors of the Transacting Companies who have
appointed us, and nobody else.

We do not accept any liability to any third party in relation to the issue of this report. It is
understood that this analysis does not represent a fairness opinion. In no circumstance shall
our liability exceed the amount as agreed in our Engagement Letter,

This valuation report is subject to the laws of India.

Neither the report nor its contents may be referred to or quoted in any registration statement,
prospectus, offering memorandum, annual report, loan agreement or other agreement or
document given to third parties, other than in connection with the purpose of determining the
fair share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation and relevant filings with regulatory
authorities in this regard, without our prior written consent.

«e<<<This space has been left blank imtentionally>>>>>
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Annexure

Summary of equity share exchange ratio

Amalgamation of JCL (‘Amalgamating Company’) with JUSL (‘Amalgamated Company’)

Note: Suitable rounding off has been carried out while arriving at the above-mentioned share
exchange ratio '

<<w<<This space has been left blank intentionally>>>>>
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Annexure H
Jindal United Steel Limited (‘(JUSL') or (‘Amalgamated Company’)
Caleulation of equity value per share of JUSL

Valuation Methodologies Adopted: Discounted Cashflow (‘DCF’) Method and Net Asset Value
('NAV') Method.

VALUATION SUMMARY

For the purpose of arriving at the per share equity value of JUSL, we have used mix of Net
Asset Value Method ('NAV’) Method and Discounted Cashflow (‘DCF’) Method.

Different values have been arrived under each of the above-mentioned methodologies.
However, for the purpose of arriving at the fair value it is necessary to give appropriate weights
to the values arrived at under each methodology. Weights have to be assigned after giving due
considerations to qualitative factors relevant to the Company.

We have assigned equal weightage to the value arrived under each of the methods for the
purpose of arriving at the fair equity value of JUSL.

We would like to emphasize that NCCCPS are convertible into equity shares ona 1:1 basis (i.e.
1 (One) NCCCPS would be converted into 1 (One) Equity Share), we have therefore considered
the said conversion ratio to arrive at the potential number of equity shares to be issued on
conversion of NCCCPS and calculated the per share equity value on a fully diluted basis for
the purpose of our value analysis

INRin Crore

Net Asset Value (NAV) method 692.7  50.0% 346.3
Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method - 9932 50.0% - 496.6
Equity value of JUSL as atreport date 843.0
No. of equity shares outstanding on fu lly dituted basis as at report date  51,66,39,878
Eqwty Value per share (INR per share} of JUSL as at report date 16.3

A. Net Asset Value (NAV) Method

We have relied on the limited reviewed unaudited financial statement of JUSL for the six
months period ended 30 September 2021 for the purpose of our value analysis

We must emphasize that the latest financials of JUSL as at the report date were not provided
by the Management for our value analysis, however the Management has represented that
they do not expect any significant changes in financial performance between 30 September
20271 and the report date and key corporate action events post 30 September 2021 have been
provided to us which has been considered while undertaking the valuation workings. We have
therefore considered all assets and liabilities appearing in the limited reviewed balance sheet
as at 30 September 2021 for the purpose of our analysis

Further based on the discussion with the Management, we have considered JUSL to be going
concern and accordingly have assumed that all the assets (except tangible fixed asset and
security deposit) would be realisable at the value at which they are carried in the balance sheet
and all the known liabilities have been duly recorded, and there would be no additional cash
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outflow on account of any unrecorded liability. Accordingly, we have reduced the value of all
liabilities from the value of asset to calculate the net asset value of JUSL.

Forvaluing the tangible fixed asset held by JUSL, we have entirely relied on the valuation report
dated 06 January 2022 prepared and issued by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP,

Based on discussion with the Management, we understand the Company has received
refundable security deposit kept with Jindal Stainless Limited (‘JSLy amounting to INR 204.6
Crore during October 2021, hence we have considered the same for the purpose of our value
analysis.

We have been informed by the Management that they have recently raised funds aggregating
to INR 40.0 Crores by further issue of 2,45,39,878 equity shares having face value of INR 10
each. Accordingly, we have added the above-mentioned subscription amount i.e., INR 40.0
Crore to the equity value of JUSL arrived under NAV Method.

The net asset value of JUSL based on the limited reviewed unaudited balance sheet as at 30
September 2021 is set out below:

INRIn O

alue of assets
Non current assets

Net fixed assets 26987 2.78%1
Other non current assets 203 20.3
Current assets
Inventories 343
Trade 1 5% 25.5
Cash and cash equivalents 18.4
Other current assets - ) 2455
Total assets (A) ’ ‘ 30426
B8 Value of liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Long term borrowings 2,155.1 21551
Long term provisions 4.0 4.0
Current liabilities
Short term borrowings 30 39
Trade payables 199 3 199.3
Other current liabilities o | 308 308
Total liabilities (B) . 23932 2393.2
€ NAVattributable to shareholders of JUSL (C) = {(A)-(8)] ‘ 649.4 807.4
Adjusted for:
D Cashreceived upon preferential issue of equity shares 40.0
£ Redecmable preference share capital as at the report date (547 (154.7)
F Adjusted NAV attributable to equity shareholders of JUSL (F) = [(D)+(E)] 494.7 692.7

B. Discounted Cash Flows ('DCF’) Method

The equity value analysis of JUSL as at the report date has been carried out on a going concern
basis. In our fair value analysis, we have used DCF method based on the cash flow projections
provided to us by the Management (‘Management Projections’) and have relied on the limited
reviewed unaudited financial statements for the six months’ period ended 30 September 2021.

The Free Cash Flows to Firm (‘FCFF') method has been used to determine the enterprise value
of JUSL. The FCFF method involves an estimation of post-tax-free cash flows over the forecast
period after considering the entity's requirements for reinvestment in terms of capital
expenditure, incremental working capital, project specific needs etc. The free cash flows
represent the cash available for distribution to both the owners of and lenders to the business.
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The free cash flows are discounted by the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) to arrive
atthe enterprise value. The WACC represents the returns required by the investors of debt and
equity weighed to their relative funding in the entity. The returns expected would depend on
the perceived level of risk associated with the business of the Company and the industry in
which the entity operates.

For arriving at the enterprise value of JUSL, we have relied on the Management projections for
the period from FY22 to FY26, as prepared and provided to us by the Management (as set out
on subsequent pages). We did not carry out any validation procedures or due diligence with
respect to the information provided/ extracted or carry out any verification of the assets or
comment on the achievability of the assumptions underlying the Management Projections,
save for satisfying ourselves to the extent possible that they are consistent with other
information provided to us during the course of this engagement,

We must emphasize that the latest financials of JUSL as at the report date were not provided
by the Management for our value analysis, however the Management has represented that
they do not expect any significant changes in financial performance between 30 September
2027 and the report date and key corporate action events post 30 septerber 2027 have been
provided to us which has been considered while undertaking the valuation workings. We have
therefore considered all assets and liabilities appearing in the limited reviewed balance sheet
as at 30 September 2021 for the purpose of our analysis. Further, we have adjusted the actual
performance for the six months’ period ended 30 September 2021 from the annual estimate
of FY22 in order to arrive at the projected cash flow for the remaining six months' period from
071 October 2027 to 31 March 2022 ('PE22").

The projected free cash flows based on these financial projections are set out on below:

INR In Crore

EBITDA (excluding other income)  227.7 546, 4 6  667.0  667.0
Depreciation (79.5) (162.4) (178.0) (193.7) (197.5)  (200.0)
EBIT 148.2 3837 398.4 4129 4695 467.0
Tax Expense (651) (67.0) (69.6) (72.1) (820)  (117.5)
EBIT (net of tax) 83.2 3167 3288 3407 3875 349.5
Adjustments for:

Depreciation 79.5 1624 1780 1937 1975 200.0
Changes in working capital (69.9) 109 2.3 2.3 4.6 .
Capitalexpenditure  (79.4) (2650) (220.0) (65.0) (650)  (65.0)
Free Cashflow to Firm (FCFF) 134 2249 289 5246 4845

*PE22: Six months period ended 37 March 2022
FYXX: Financial year ended 31 March 20XX

Terminal cash flow (terminal value)

The terminal value refers to the present value of the business as a going concern beyond the
period of projections up to infinity. This value is estimated taking into account expected
growth rates of the business in future, sustainable capital investments required for the
business as well as the estimated growth rate of the industry and economy.

Based on discussions with the Management, we understand that taking into consideration the
growth outlook, demand prospects etc,, the Company does not expect significant growth
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beyond FY26. Hence, the cash flow of FY26 has been used as the base to determine the
terminal value and suitable adjustments have been made to the same based on discussion
with the management. The terminal value after discounting has been estimated at INR 1,851.7
crore.

Discount factor

The discount factor considered for arriving at the present value of the FCFF is the WACC, which
comprises of cost of debt and equity (Detailed working set out in subsequent pages)

The WACC has been estimated at 15.0% after giving appropriate allowances for illiquidity of
shares and company specific risk including risk associated with achieving the financial
projections, ete.

Given that cashflows are estimated to accrue evenly over the year, we have used the mid-
period discounting convention to discount the cash flows.

Other Consideration

To arrive at the equity value of JUSL, enterprise value arrived using DCF Method has been
adjusted for the following -

a) Gross dabt

Gross debt outstanding as at 30 September 2021 comprises of term loan from bank, 10.0%
NCNCRPS and inter corporate loan from related party aggregating to an amount of INR 2,313.7
crore.

B) Surplus assets

Surplus assets as at 30 September 2021 comprises of investments in mutual funds,
investments in equity shares of Jindal Stainless Limited and cash and cash equivalents
aggregating to an amount of INR 95.7 crore.

¢} Security Deposit

Based on discussion with the Management, we understand that Company has received
refundable security deposit kept with Jindal Stainless Limited (\JSL') amounting to INR 204.6

Crore during October 2021, hence we have considered the same for the purpose or our value
analysis.

d) Present value of MAT credit

Based on discussion with the Management, we understand that Company has brought forward
unabsorbed depreciation as at 31 March 2021 and therefore the Company will set off the said
unabsorbed depreciation against the taxable income for the respective years till FY27 and
would pay MAT at the rate of 17.5% of book profits.

Given this background, Company would have accumulated MAT credit amounting to INR 230.8
Crore till FY27 which will be utilized by the Company in the future years. Further, we also
understand that upon full utilization of accurmnulated MAT credit, the Company will transition
into the new tax regime and pay corporate tax at the rate of 25.2%.

Accordingly, for the purpose of calculating the terminal value we have considered tax rate of
25.2% and have also considered the present value of MAT credit utilization in the future years
amounting to INR 77.7 Crore.

e) Cash received upon preferential issue of equity shares.

We have been informed by the management that they have recently raised funds aggregating
to INR 40.0 Crores by further issue of 2,45,39,878 equity shares having face value of INR 10
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each. Accordingly, we have added the above-mentioned subscription amount i.e., INR 40.0
Crore to the equity value of JUSL arrived under DCF method.

Calculation of equity value of JUSL as at the report date under DCF Method is set out below:

INR in Crore

Free Cas m . 4.5 2887 4717 5246
Discounting i’acto; 0.97 0.87 076 066 057
ﬁlscoumeci cash flows 12.9 1957 2187 3104 3002 ? QE? 9
interprase Value of JUSL as at report date 2 889 S
Adjustments for:
Gross debt outstanding as at 30 September 2021 (2,313.7)
Surplus assets as at 30 September 2021 95.1
Refund of security deposit from JSL 204.6
Present value of MAT credit utilisation 77.7
Cash received upon preferential issue of equity shares - ) 40.0
Fquzty value of JUSL as at report date 993.2

*PEZ2: Six months period ended 31 March 2022
FYXX: Financial year ended 31 March 20XX
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Following is the summary of financial projections provided by the Management of JUSL:
a} Projected Balance Sheet

Balance sheet as at

INR in Crore

Equity and liabi

Share capital 4825 482.5 482.5 482.5 482.5
Other equity 159.6 305.8 4655 640.2 864.5
Mon current liabilities

Long term borrowings 1,976.2 1,950.0 1,917.7 1,882.6 1,838.9
Other non current liabilities 158.3 158.3 158.3 158.3 158.3
Current labilities :
Short term borrowings 19.1 279 34.0 36.7 45.4
Trade payables 78.5 80.3 853 90.2 1001
Other current liabilities 41.3 513 513 1.3 513
Total equity and liabilities 29155 30562 31945 33419 35410
Assete ’ ? ‘

MNon current asseis

Net fixed assets 2,698.5 2,801 1 2.843.1 2,714.4 2,582.0
Other non current assets 3.7 3.7 3.7 3.7 3.7
Current assets

Inventories 231 23.6 251 26.5 29.4
Trade receivables 18.5 189 20.1 21.2 23.5
Cash and cash equivalents 91.6 128.7 2225 495.9 822.3
Othercurrentassets 801 801 801 801 801
Total assets - 29155 30562  3,1945 33419 35410

<<<<<This space has been left blank intentionally=>»>>>
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b) Projected Statement of Profit and Loss

Profit and loss statement for the year ended

INR in Crore

Revenue -
Revenue from operations 11084 11340 12036 12732 14125
Total revenue 14,1084 1340 12036 12732 14125
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses (26.4) {26.4) (28.7) 311 (35.7)
Other expenses . (550.6)  (561.4)  (598.5)  (6356)  (709.6)
EBITDA 5314 546.1 576.4 606.6 667.0
Depreciation  (159.0)  (162.4)  (1780)  (193.7)  (1975)
EBIT 372.4 383.7 398.3 412.9 469.5
Finance cost (200.0) (206.5)  (204.9) (201.2)  (197.7)
Other income o225 : R
PBT 1948 177.2 1934 2117 271.8
Taxexpense L@ @10 (338 (37.0) (47.5)
PAT 1608 1463 1596 1747 2243
<<<<<This space has been left blank intentionally>>>>>
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Discount Factor:

Calculation of Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC') used for the purpose of
discounting:

WACC has been calculated using the below formula:
WACC = rg*(1-t) *D/ (D+E) + r,*E/ (D+E);

Where 'D" and 'E" represents debt and equity respectively; and “rg*{1-1)" represents cost of
debt (post-tax) and "r." represents cost of equity.

e The cost of debt (post-tax) has been computed using the formula:
ro (post-tax) = rp (pre-tax)*(1-t)

Where r (post-tax) = Cost of debt (post tax); ry (pre-tax) = Cost of debt {pre-tax); t = tax
rate applicable to the company

* The cost of equity (re) has been computed using the Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM")
formula:

re = rp + B(rv-re) + company specific risk premium

Where 1y = Risk free rate; ry=Market return; B=Sensitivity to the market/ measure of market
risk

Calculation of WACC:
(i) Calculation of cost of equity using CAPM Mode!

Risk-free rate (A) :
Equity risk premium (B} 6.4%

Relevered beta (C) ; o 1.87

Cost of equity before considering company specific risk [(D) = (A)+((By(C)} 18.2%
Company specific risk premium (L) - - - o 4.0%
Adjusted cost of equity [(F) = (D)+(E)] N ‘ ; 22.2%

(i) Calculation of cost of debt (post-tax):

Cost of debt (pre tax) (A)
Taxrate (8) .
Cost of debt (post tax) [(C)=(A)*(1-(B))]

(iii) Calculation of WACC

Cost of equity (ke) 50.0%  22.2% 11.1%
Costofdebt (kd)  50.0%  7.8% 3.9%
Wacc e 15.0%
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MNote:
a) Risk-free rate: Average 3 months daily yield of 10 Year Indian Government Bond.

b)  Equity risk premium: Aswath Darmodaran database on country wise equity risk premium
(ERP).

¢} Costof debt: Based on discussion with the Management, we understand that to fund the
business operations and capex requirements of the company, it can avail loan from

financial institutions at an interest rate of 10.4%,

d) Cost of equity calculated using CAPM formula as mentioned above have been adjusted
for various factors such as:

i) uncertainty associated with future financial projections (i.e. projections risk);
i) JUSL being an unlisted company

In light of above, we have therefore considered a risk premium of 4.0% to arrive at the
adjusted cost of equity.

e} Calculation of Levered Beta used for the purpose of Cost of Equity (COEY):
Levered beta applicable for JUSL is calculated using the below formula:
Bi =By *[1+((1-1)xD/E)]

Where By is levered beta applicable to JUSL; By is mean of unlevered beta of peer companies,
''is tax rate applicable to JUSL; and 'D’ and ‘E’ refers to debt and equity respectively.

Unlevered beta of the following companies has been considered to calculate the levered beta
applicable to JUSL for arriving at the cost of equity of JUSL:

Calculation of levered beta for cost of equity:

Unlevered Beta (A) 1.07
Tax rate (B) 25.2%
Debt-Equity Ratio (C) 1.00

Re-levered Beta [(D) = (AY(1+((1-B)*(C))]  1.87
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Annexure i
Jindal Coke Limited ('JCL’ or 'Amalgamating Company’)
Calculation of equity value per share of JCL.

Valuation Methodologies Adopted: Discounted Cashflow ('DCF') Method and Net Asset Value
('NAV") Method.

VALUATION SUMMMARY

For the purpose of arriving at the per share équity value of JCL, we have used mix of Net Asset
Value Method ('NAV') Method and Discounted Cashflow ('DCF) Method.

Different values have been arrived under each of the above-mentioned rmethodologies.
However, for the purpose of arriving at the fair value it is necessary to give appropriate weights
to the values arrived at under each methodology. Weights have to be assigned after giving due
considerations to qualitative factors relevant to the Company.

We have assigned equal weightage to the value arrived under each of the methods for the
purpose of arriving at the fair equity value of JCL.

INRin Cr

Net Asset Value (NAV) metho 3384 50.0% 169.2
Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method B 8010 50.0% 4005
Equity value of JCL as at report date 569.7
No. ofequity shares outstanding as atreportdate  3,24,32.432
Equity Value pei share (INR per share) of JCL as at ?épor% date 175.6

A. Net Asset Value (NAV) Method

We have relied on the unaudited provisional financial statement of JCL for the six months
period ended 30 September 2021 for the purpose of our value analysis.

We must emphasize that the latest financials of JCL as at the report date were not provided
by the Management for our value analysis, however the Management has represented that
they do not expect significant change in net asset position between 30 September 2021 and
the report date. We have therefore considered all assets and liabilities appearing in the
unaudited provisional balance sheet as at 30 September 2021 for the purpose of our analysis.

Further based on the discussion with the Management, we have considered JCL to be going
concern and accordingly have assumed that all the assets (except tangible fixed asset and
security deposit) would be realisable at the value at which they are carried in the balance sheet
and all the known liabilities have been duly recorded, and there would be no additional cash
outflow on account of any unrecorded liability. Accordingly, we have reduced the value of all
liabilities from the value of asset to calculate the net asset value of JCL.

For valuing the tangible fixed asset held by JCL, we have entirely relied on the valuation report
dated 06 January 2022 prepared and issued by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP.

Based on discussion with the Management, we understand that Company has kept refundable
security deposit amounting to INR 125.0 Crore with Jindal Stainless Limited ('JSL). For the
purpose of calculating the net asset value attributable to equity shareholders as at the report
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date, we have considered the amount of INR 125 Crore to be realisable value instead of its
book value reported as per Ind-AS.

Based on discussion with the Management, we understand that Company has decided to
transition into the new tax regime and pay corporate tax at the rate of 25.2%. Considering this
MAT credit amounting to INR 30.0 crore available with Company as at 30 September 2021
does not have any realisable value, hence we have considered the same for the purpose of our
vatuation analysis.

The net asset value of JCL based on the unaudited provisional balance sheet as at 30
September 2027 is set out below:

i~

INR |

A Value of assets
Non current assets

Net fixed assets 4847
Other non current assets 1197
Current assels
Inventories 2469 2469
Trade receivables 1402 140.2
Cash and cash equivalents 114 1.4
Other current a gsets o o B 48.0 433
Total assets {A) / ' ' 1 {}Si) 5 1,066.8

B Value of Habilities
Non-Current Liabilities

Long term barrowings 346.7 346.7
Long term provisions 1.6 1.6
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 71.0 1011
Current Habilities
Short term borrowings 2.7 2.7
Trade payables 898.2 98.2
Other current liabilities o - 68.9 689
7ota i:abmt‘es (8) 589.1 619.1
€ NAV attributable to shareholders of JCL €)= [(A)-(B)] 461.4 447.6
Adjusted for:
D Redeemable preference share ¢ apital as at the report date {109.3) (109.3)
E  Adjusted NAV attributable to equity shareholders of JCL (€)= [(C)+(D)] 352.1 338.4

B. Discounted Cash Flows ('DCF’) Method

The equity value analysis of JCL as at the report date has heen carried out on a going concern
basis. In our fair value analysis, we have used DCF method based on the cash flow projections
provided to us by the Management (‘Management Projections’) and have relied on the
unaudited provisional financial statements for the six months’ period ended 30 September
2021.

The Free Cash Flows to Firm ( -F) method has been used to determine the enterprise value
of JCI.. The FCFF method mvoive an estimation of post-tax-free cash flows over the forecast
period after considering the entity's requirements for reinvestment in terms of capital
expenditure, incremental working capital, project specific needs etc. The free cash flows
represent the cash available for distribution to both the owners of and lenders to the business.

The free cash flows are discounted by the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) to arrive
at the enterprise value. The WACC represents the returns required by the investors of debt and
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equity weighed to their relative funding in the entity. The returns expected would depend on
the perceived level of risk associated with the business of the Company and the industry in
which the entity operates.

For arriving at the enterprise value of JCL, we have relied on the Management projections for
the period from FY22 to FY26, as prepared and provided to us by the Management (as set out
on subsequent pages). We did not carry out any validation procedures or due diligence with
respect to the information provided/ extracted or carry out any verification of the assets or
comment on the achievability of the assumptions underlying the Management Projections,
save for satisfying ourselves to the extent possible that they are consistent with other
information provided to us during the course of this engagement.

We must emphasize that the latest financials as at the report date were not provided by the
Management for our value analysis, however the Management has represented that they do
not expect significant change in net asset position between 30 September 2021 and the report
date. We have therefore considered the financials as at 30 September 2021 for the purpose
of our value analysis. Further, we have adjusted the actual performance for the’six months’
period ended 30 September 2021 from the annual estimate of FY22 in order to arrive at the
projected cash flow for the remaining six months’ period from 01 October 2021 to 31 March
2022 ('PE22).

The projected free cash flows based on these financial projections are set below:

!

EBITDA (excluding other income and non operating expenses) 1304 2172 2097 2448 3033 252.5

Depreciation ) (105)  (21.7)  (285) (354) (36.1) (40.03
EBIT V 1199 1956 1812 2093 2672 2125
Tax expense (27.2)  (45.2)  (24.6) (298 (60.0) (53 5)
EBIT (net of tax) 92,7 1503 1565 179.6 2073  159.0
Adjustments for:

Depreciation 10.5 21.7 28.5 354 361 4041
Changes in working capital 1925 33 (irsy 24y (183 -
Capital expenditure ; (99.4) (165.0) (165.0) {200y (200} (20.0}
Free Cashflow to Firm (FCFF) o 1962 103 86 1707 2051 179.0

PEZZ: Six months period ended 31 March 2022
FYXX: Financial year ended 31 March 20X

Terminal cash flow (terminal value)

The terminal value refers to the present value of the business as a going concern beyond the
period of projections up to infinity. This value is estimated taking into account expected
growth rates of the business in future, sustainable capital investments required for the
business as well as the estimated growth rate of the industry and economy.

Based on discussions with the Management, we understand that taking into consideration the
growth outlook, demand prospects etc., the Company does not expect significant growth
beyond FY26. Hence, the cash flow of FY26 has been used as the base to determine the
terminal value and suitable adjustments have been made to the same based on discussion
with the management. The terminal value after discounting has been estimated at INR 789.6

crore.
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Discount factor

Thediscount factor considered for arriving at the present value of the FCFF is the WACC, which
comprises of cost of debt and equity.

The WACC using the above parameters has been estimated at 13.6% after giving appropriate
allowances for illiquidity of shares and company specific risk including risk associated with
achieving the financial projections, etc.

Given that cashflows are estimated to accrue evenly over the year, we have used the mid-
period discounting convention to discount the cash flows.

Gther Consideration

To arrive at the equity value of JCL, enterprise value arrived using DCF Method has been
adjusted for the following -

a) Gross debt

Gross debt outstanding as at 30 September 20271 comprises of term loan from bank and 10.0%
NCNCRPS aggregating to an amount of INR 458.6 crore.

b) Surplus assets

Surplus assets as at 30 September 2021 comprises of investments in equity shares of Jindal
Stainless Limited and cash and cash equivalents aggregating to an amount of INR 11.7 crore.
¢} Security Deposit

Based on discussion with the Management, we understand that Company has kept refundable
security deposit amounting to INR 125.0 crore with Jindal Stainless Limited (JSL) for the
period of 25 years i.e., upto FY33 and the fair value of the same as at 30 September 2021 is
INR 13.1 crore. We have therefore considered the same for the purpose of our value analysis.

Calculation of equity value per share for JCL as at the report date using the DCF method is
set out below:

INR in Crore

Free Cashflow to Firm 1962 103 86 170.7 2051

Discounting Factor 097 088 077 068 060 |
Discounted cash flows 1901 90 6.6 1164 1231 4453
Terminal Value ... 7896
Enterprise Value of JCL as at repbft date 1,234.8
Adjustments for:

Gross debt outstanding as at 30 September 2021 (458.6)
Surplus assets as at 30 September 2021 1.7
Fair value of refundable security deposit. .~~~ 131
Equity value of JCL as at report date 801.0

*PE22: Six months period ended 31 March 2022
FYXX: Financial year ended 31 March 20XX
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Following is the summary of financial projections provided by the Management of JCL:
a) Projected Balance Sheet

Balance sheet as at

INR irn Crore

Equ Ha

Share capital 32.4 32.4 32.4 32.4 32.4
Other equity 398.2 521.4 6481 795 .4 983.0
Non current liabilities

Long term borrowings 440.8 437.4 419.6 394.9 369.7
Other non current liabilities 72.5 72.5 72.5 72.5 72.5
Current liabilities '

Short term borrowings 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 50
Trade payables 759 69.5 73.3 85.3 105.2
Qt}he‘_{vgurrem liabilities 37.2 37.4 51.9 58.7 S 89.2
Total equity and liabilities 10620 1,757 13029 14483  1627.1
Assels LEOa

Non current assets

Net fixed assets 573.2 716.5 852.9 837.5 821.5
Other non current assets 101.9 98 8 959 93.2 90.8
Current assetis

Inventories 145.4 133.2 140.6 163.5 2017
Trade receivables 46.3 48.9 56.9 70.2 70.2
Cash and cash equivalents 163.6 146.8 1251 252.4 411.5
Other current assets 315 815 . 315 315 815
Total assets ~1,0620  1,1757 13029 14483  1,627.1

<<<<< This space has been left blank intentionally>>>>>
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b) Projected Statement of Profit and Loss

Profit and loss statement for the year ended

Revenue

Revenue from operations 10115 926.7 977.9 1,137.3 1,403.0

Total revenue 10115 926.7 977.9  1,137.3  1,403.0

Expenses

Employee benefit expenses (10.4) (10.4) (10.5) (10.5) (10.5)
Other expenses (6826)  (699.1)  (7577)  (8820) (1,089.2)
EBITDA - 3186 2172 2097 2448  303.3

Depreciation (21.09 (21.7) (285)  (354)  (36.1)
EBIT - 297.5 1956 181.2 209.3 267.2

Finance cost - (33.2) (32.5) (32.3) (31.0) {28.7)
Other non operating expenses {4.8) {4.8) (4.8 (4.8) (4.8)
Exceptional tems 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

Other income ; 15 1.7 1.9 21 23

PBT 262.0 161.0 147.0 176.7 2371

Tax expense (60.0) (37.7) (20.3) (25.4) (53.5)
PAT ; 2020 1232 126.7 1513 1835

<<<<< This space has been left blank intentionally>>>>>
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Calculation of Weighted Average Cost of Capital ('WACC") used for the purpose of
discounting:

WACC has been calculated using the below formula:
WACC = rg*(1-1) *D/ (D+E) + r.*E/ (D+E);

Where ‘D" and 'E' represents debt and equity respectively; and “rg*(1-1)" represents cost of

debt (post-tax) and “r.” represents cost of equity.

« The cost of debt (post-tax) has been computed using the formula:
o (post-tax) = rp (pre-tax)*(1-t)

Where r {p@&atwtax}' = Cost of debt (post tax); ru (pre-tax) = Cost of debt (pre-tax); t = tax
rate applicabie to the company

» The costof equity (re) has been computed using the Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM"
formula:

re= e + B(rm-re) + company specific risk premium

Where rr = Risk free rate; ry=Market return; B=Sensitivity to the market/ measure of market
risk

Calcutation of WACC:
(i) Calculation of cost of equity using CAPM Model:

(8]

Risk-free rate (A) .
Equity risk premium (B) 6.4%

Relevered beta (C) } 139
Cost of equity before considering company specific risk [(D) = (A}+((B)*(C))]  15.1%
Company specific risk premium (E) B R . 5.0%

201%

Adjusted cost of equity [(F) = (D)}+(E)]

(i) Calculation of cost of debt (post-tax):

Cost of debt (pre tax) (A) 9.5%
25.2%
7.1%

Taxrate B) B
Cost of debt (post tax) [(C)=(A)*(1-(B))]

(iii} Calculation of WACC:

Cost of equity (ke) 50.0% 10.1%
Cost of debt (kd) 50.0% 7% 36%
WACC 13.6%
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Note:

a) Risk-free rate: Average 3 months daily yield of 10 Year Indian Government Bond.

b)  Equity risk premium: Aswath Damodaran database on country wise equity risk premium
(ERP}.

¢} Cost of debt: Based on discussion with the Management, we understand that to fund the
business operations and capex requirements of the company, it can avail loan from
financial institutions at an interest rate of 9.5%.

d) Cost of equity calculated using CAPM formula as mentioned above have been adjusted
for various factors such as:

I uncertainty associated with future financial projections (i.e. projections risk);
fi. JCL being an unlisted company

Inlight of above, we have therefore considered a risk premium of 5.0% to arrive at the adjusted
cost of equity.

e) Calculation of Levered Beta used for the purpose of Cost of Equity (COE):
Levered beta applicable for JCL is calculated using the below formula:
BL = BU*[1+ ((1 - t) x D/E)]

Where BL is levered beta applicable to JCL; BU is mean of unlevered beta of peer companies;
s tax rate applicable to JCL; and 'D" and ‘E’ refers to debt and equity respectively.

Unlevered beta of the following companies has been considered to calculate the levered beta
applicable to JCL for arriving at the cost of equity of JCL:

i

i the manufacture 114 2

Nippan €
Limited

e and Engineening  The Company | wipally en
> ral coat and powder and granula:

Sungoke Energy ine ed i the produchon of coke 135 408% 5 40803 TOoo2ia .65

al coatio a refractory oven

.80

*Sonree Reulors

Calculation of levered beta for cost of equity:

Unlevered Beta (A) 0.80
Taxrate (B) 25.2%
Debt-Equity Ratio (C) 100

Re-levered Beta (D) = (A)*(1+((1-B)*(C))|
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REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF JINDAL UNITED
STEEL, LIMITED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 232(2)(C) OF THE

COMPANIES ACT, 2013, AT ITS MEETING HELD ON 28" JANUARY, 2022

[. This Composite Scheme of Arrangement ("Scheme") is presented pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, and the rules and regulations issued thereunder and also read with Sections 2(1B)
and the other applicable provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961, in each case, as
amended from time to time and as may be applicable, for:

i.  Amalgamation of Jindal Coke Limited (the "Amalgamating Company") into and
with Jindal United Steel Limited (the "Amalgamated Company"); and

ii.  Other matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected herewith.

2. The Board of Directors of the Amalgamated Company (*Board™) at its meeting held on

28" January, 2022 had approved the Scheme.

The Scheme is subject to the approval of:
i.  Approval of Board of Directors of all the Applicant Companies;

(923

ii.  Approval of the shareholders/ members and secured and unsecured creditors
of the Applicant Companies as directed by the Hon’ble National Company
Law Tribunal (“NCLT"”}); and

iii.  Order of the Chandigarh bench of NCLT approving the Scheme.

4. As per Section 232(2)(c) of the Act, a report is required to be adopted by the Directors of
the merging companies, explaining effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders,
promoter and non-promoter sharecholders and Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP™)
laying out in particular the share exchange ratio, specifying any special valuation

difficulties.

Jindal United Stesl Limnited
CH: U281 18HR2014PLCOS3875
Corporate Office: Jindal Centre, 12 Bhikaiji Cama Place, New Delhi - 1100686, India
Regisiered Office: 0P Jindal Marg, Hisar - 125008 (Haryana) india
T +91 011-26188345, 41462000, 61462000 F: 91 11 419591639 E: info.jusk@iindalstainless .com Wi www jindaluniiedsteel com
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5. Following documents were placed vbefore the Board:

i.  Draft copy of the Scheme;

ii.  Valuation Report dated 28" January, 2022 issued by Mr. Niranjan Kumar,
Registered Valuer (IBBI Registration No.- IBBI/RV/06/2018/10137);

iii.  Audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021, March 31,

2020 and March 31, 2019 along with unaudited financial statements for the

period ended September 30, 2021.

6. The Need and Rationale for the Scheme:

i.  The Amalgamated Company proposes to enter into this Scheme with
Amalgamating Company to consolidate their respective manufacturing/service
capabilities thereby increasing efficiencies in operations and use of resources
and better catering to stainless steel and steel industry, to consolidate their
diversified product and services portfolio for improving overall customer
satisfaction, to pool their human resource talent for optimal utilization of their
expertise, to integrate the marketing and distribution channels for better
efficiency, and to ensure optimization of working capital utilization.

ii.  The management of the respective Companies are of the view that the
amalgamation proposed in this Scheme is, in particular, expected to have the
following benefits: |
a. Reduction in management overlaps and elimination of legal and regulatory

compliances and associated costs due to operation of multiple entities.

b. Optimization of the allocated capital and availability of funds which can
be deployed more efficiently to pursue the operational growth
opportunities

c. Consolidation of businesses under the Amalgamation, which would result

in pooling of financial, managerial, technical and human resources,

stakeholders

Jingda! United Sieel Limilled
Cin: L1281 13HR2014PLCOS3875
Corporate Offica: Jinda! Centre, 12 Bhikaiji Cama P . Mew Dalhi - 1100686, bidia

Registered Cifice: O.P Jindal Marg, Hisar - 125008 (Haryans) india,
T +31 011-28188346, 41482000, 81462000 F: +91 11 41658168 E: inio.jusl@jindalstaini: ori W www [indaiunitedsteet.com
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d. Consolidation of production capabilities to create larger scale of business

and operations to cater to demand of stainless steel and steel industry.

e. Consolidation of the complementing strengths will enable the
Amalgamated Company to have increased capability for offering
diversified products and services on a single platform.

f. The combined financial strength is expected to further accelerate the
scaling up of the operations of the Amalgamated Company.

g. The consolidation of funds and resources will lead to optimization of
working capital utilization and stronger financial leverage given the
simplified capital structure, improved balance sheet, optimized
management structure and consolidation of cross location talent pool.

iii.  The management of the respective Companies are of the view that this Scheme
is in the interest of the customers, employees, lenders, shareholders, and all
other stakeholders of the respective Companies. Further, the Scheme will
enable the synergies that already exist between the Amalgamating Company
and the Amalgamated Company in terms of services and resources to be used

optimally for the benefit of their stakeholders.

7. Share Entitlement Ratio Report:
Exchange ratio as per the Valuation report dated 28" January, 2022 issued by

Mr.  Niranjan  Kumar, Registered Valuer (IBBI Registration No.-
IBBI/RV/06/2018/10137) is as under:

i.  Following share exchange ratio has been determined for the allotment of the
equity shares of the Amalgamated Company having face value of Rs. 10/-
each to the shareholders of the Amalgamating Company as on the Part B
Record Date (as defined in the Scheme), in consideration for the

amalgamation of the Amalgamating Company with and into the Amalgamated

Company:

Jindal United Stee] Limitad
G U28113HR2014PLC053875
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“10,765 fully paid up equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each of the
Amalgamated Company shall be issued and allotted as fully paid up equity
shares to the equity shareholders of the Amalgamating Company, for every
1,000 fully paid up equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each held by thent in
the Amalgamating Company. ”

ii. Following share exchange ratio has been determined for the allotment of the
preference shares of the Amalgamated Company having face value of Rs. 10/-
each to the preference shareholders of the Amalgamating Company as on the
Part B Record Date (as defined in the Scheme), in consideration for the
amalgamation of the Amalgamating Company with and into the Amalgamated
Company:

“1 (One) fully paid Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference
Shares of face value of Rs. 10 each of the Amalgamated Company shall be
issued and allotied as fully paid up preference shares to the preference
shareholders of the Amalgamating Company, for every 1 (One) fully paid up
Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference shares of face value

of Rs. 10 each held by them in the Amalgamating Company.”

No special valuation difficulties were reported.

8. Effect of the Scheme on the equity shareholders of the Amalgamated Company:

The Board reviewed the Valuation Report dated 28" January, 2022 issued by
Mr. Niranjan  Kumar, Registered  Valuer  (IBBI Registration ~ No.-
IBBI/RV/06/2018/10137) for determination of share entitlement ratio under the Scheme.

The Board is of the informed opinion that the proposed Scheme is in the best interests of

the Amalgamating Company and its shareholders and creditors.

9. Effect of the Scheme on the KMPs of the Amalgamated Company:

Jindai United Steet Limited
CHp: U281 13HR2014PLC0B38TS
Corporate Office: Jindtal Centre, 12 Bhikaiji Gama Place, New Dethi - 110066, India
Registered Office: O.F Jindal Marg, Hisar - 125008 (Haryana) India
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There is no impact of the Scheme on the KMPs of the Amalgamated Company. Further,

none of the KMPs have any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of shares held by

them, if any, in the Amalgamated Company.

Adoption of the Report by the Directors:

The Directors of the Company have adopted this Report after noting and considering the

information set forth in this Report and documents placed before the Directors.

For and Behalf of the Board

For Jindal Umt@d)St}a\l imited

; S ’\\

/p -

Om Parkash Verma
Director

DIN: 07137865
Address: Jindal Centre, 12, Bhikaiji Cama Place,
New Delhi - 110066

/wr\. S

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28" January, 2022

Jindad United Steel Limited
CIN: U2B113HR2014PLO0OR2E7S
Cmporme CGfiice: Jindal Cenire, 12 Bhikaiii Cama Place, New Deihi - 1100686, India
Registered Office: O.F Jindal Marg, Hisar - 125005 (Haryana) india
T +91 011-26188345, 41462000, §1462000 F: +-91 11 41659168 E: info jusi@jindalstainless com W www jindalunitedste

gy

al.cam




REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF JINDAL COKE
LIMITED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 232(2)}(C) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013, AT ITS MEETING HELD ON 287" JANUARY, 2022.

. This Composite Scheme of Arrangement ("Scheme") is presented pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, and the rules and regulations issued thereunder and also read with Sections 2(1B)
and the other applicable provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961, in each case, as
amended from time to time and as may be applicable, for:

i.  Amalgamation of Jindal Coke Limited (the "Amalgamating Company") into and
with Jindal United Steel Limited (the "Amalgamated Company"); and

ii.  Other matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected herewith.

2. The Board of Directors of the Amalgamating Company (“Board”) at its meeting held on

28" January, 2022 had approved the Scheme.

The Scheme is subject to the approval of:
i.  Approval of Board of Directors of all the Applicant Companies;

ii.  Approval of the shareholders/ members and secured and unsecured creditors

L)

of the Applicant Companies as directed by the Hon’ble National Company

Law Tribunal (“NCLT™); and
iit.  Order of the Chandigarh bench of NCLT approving the Scheme.

4. As per Section 232(2)(c) of the Act, a report is required to be adopted by the Directors of
the merging companies, explaining effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders,
promoter and a non-promoter sharcholders and Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP?")
laying out in particular the share exchange ratio, specifying any special valuation

difficulties.

Jindal Coks Limited
T U23101HR2014PLE053884
orpovete Oiffcs: Jindal Centre, 12 Bhikaiji Cama Place, New Delhi - 110086, india
Pegistersd Gifice: O.R Jindal Marg, Hisar - 125005 (Haryana) India
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5. Following documents were placed before the Board:
i.  Draft copy of the Scheme;
ii.  Valuation Report dated 28" January, 2022 issued by Mr. Niranjan Kumar,
Registered Valuer (IBBI Registration No.- IBBI/RV/06/2018/10137);
iii.  Audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021, March 31,

2020 and March 31, 2019 along with unaudited financial statements for the

period ended September 30, 2021.

6. The Nced and Rationale for the Scheme:
i. The Amalgamated Company proposes to enter into this Scheme with

Amalgamating Company to consolidate their respective manufacturing/service
capabilities thereby increasing efficiencies in operations and use of resources
and better catering to stainless steel and steel industry, to consolidate their
diversified product and services portfolio for improving overall customer
satisfaction, to pool their human resource talent for optimal utilization of their
expertise, to integrate the marketing and distribution channels for better
efficiency, and to ensure optimization of working capital utilization.

ii.  The management of the respective Companies are of the view that the
amalgamation proposed in this Scheme is, in particular, expected to have the
following benefits:

a. Reduction in management overlaps and elimination of legal and regulatory
compliances and associated costs due to operation of multiple entities.

b. Optimization of the allocated capital and availability of funds which can
be deployed more efficiently to pursue the operational growth
opportunities

c. Consolidation of businesses under the Amalgamation, which would result
in pooling of financial, managerial, technical and human resources,

thereby creating stronger base for future growth and value acgrgt’i.i')f:_

stakeholders

Jindal Coke Limited
CiN: U23101HR2014PLCO53884
Dorporats Offica: Jindal Centre, 12 Bhikaiji Cama Place, New Delhi - 110088, India
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d. Consolidation of production capabilities to create larger scale of business
and operations to cater to demand of stainless steel and steel industry.

e. Consolidation of the complementing strengths will enable the
Amalgamated Company to have increased capability for offering
diversified products and services on a single platform.

f. The combined financial strength is expected to further accelerate the
scaling up of the operations of the Amalgamated Company.

g. The consolidation of funds and resources will lead to optimization of
working capital utilization and stronger financial leverage given the
simplified capital structure, improved balance sheet, optimized
management structure and consolidation of cross location talent pool.

ili.  The management of the respective Companies are of the view that this Scheme
is in the interest of the customers, employees, lenders, shareholders, and all
other stakeholders of the respective Companies. Further, the Scheme will
enable the synergies that already exist between the Amalgamating Company
and the Amalgamated Company in terms of services and resources to be used

optimally for the benefit of their stakeholders.

7. Share Entitlement Ratio Report:

Exchange ratio as per the Valuation report dated 28" January, 2022 issued by
Mr.  Niranjan  Kumar, Registered  Valuer (IBBI  Registration = No.-
IBBI/RV/06/2018/10137) is as under:

i.  Following share exchange ratio has been determined for the aflotment of the
equity shares of the Amalgamated Company having face value of Rs. 10/-
each to the equity shareholders of the Amalgamating Company as on the Part
B Record Date (as defined in the Scheme), in consideration for the

amalgamation of the Amalgamating Company with and into the Amalgamated

Company:

Jindal Coke Limited
Cir: U23101HR2014PLC0O53884
Corporate Qffice: Jindal Centre, 12 Bhikaiji Cama Place, New Daihi - 110066, India
Fegisterad Office: O.F Jindal Marg, Hisar - 125005 (Haryana) India
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10,765 fully paid up equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each of the
Amalgamated Company shall be issued and allotted as fully paid up equity
shares to the equity shareholders of the Amalgamating Company, for every
1,000 fully paid up equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each held by them in
the Amalgamating Company.”

ii.  Following share exchange ratio has been determined for the allotment of the
preference shares of the Amalgamated Company having face value of Rs. 10/-
each to the preference shareholders of the Amalgamating Company as on the
Part B Record Date (as defined in the Scheme), in consideration for the
amalgamation of the Amalgamating Company with and into the Amalgamated
Company: ,

1 (One) fully paid Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference
Shares of face value of Rs. 10 each of the Amalgamated Company shall be
issued and allotted as fully paid up preference shares to the preference
shareholders of the Amalgamating Company, for every 1 (One) fully paid up
Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference shares of face value

of Rs. 10 each held by them in the Amalgamating Company.”

No special valuation difficulties were reported.

8. Effect of the Scheme on the equity shareholders of the Amalgamating Company:

The Board reviewed the Valuation Report dated 28" January, 2022 issued by
Mr. Niranjan ~ Kumar,  Registered  Valuer  (IBBI Registration  No.-
IBBI/RV/06/2018/10137) for determination of share entitlement ratio under the Scheme.

The Board is of the informed opinion that the proposed Scheme is in the best interests of
the Amalgamating Company and its shareholders and creditors. The impact of the
Scheme on the shareholders would be the same in all respects and no shareholder is

expected to have any disproportionate advantage or disadvantage in any manner.

Jindal Coke Limited
Citi U23101HR2014PLC053884
Torporate Office: Jindal Centre, 12 Bhikaiji Cama Place, New Dethi - 1100686, India
Registered Offies: OR Jindal Marg, Hisar - 125005 (Harvana) india
T -+91 011-28188345, 41452000, 61462000 F: +91 11 41659169 & info.jel@jindaistainiess.com W: www.jindalcoke.com
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9. Effect of the Scheme on the KMPs of the Amalgamating Company:

There is no impact of the Scheme on the KMPs of the Amalgamating Company. Further,

none of the KMPs have any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of shares held by

them, if any, in the Amalgamating Company.

Adoption of the Report by the Directors:

The Directors of the Company have adopted this Report after noting and considering the

information set forth in this Report and documents placed before the Directors.

For and Behalf of the Board

For Jindal Coke Limited

Shashibhushan Shobhnath Upadhyay
Wholetime Director

DIN: 07314313

Address: Jindal Centre, 12, Bhikaiji Cama Place,
New Delhi - 110066

Place: New Dethi
Date: 28" January, 2022

Jindal Coke Limiled
it U23101HR2014PLC053884
Corporate Offce: Jindal Centre, 12 Bhikaiji Cama Place, New Delhi - 170088, india
Ragistered Office: O.F Jindal Marg, Hisar - 125005 {Haryanaj india
To +81 011-26168345, 41462000, 61462000 £ +81 11 41656168 E; info. joli@jindalstainless.com W www jindalcoke.com
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Avneorne - C
N.C. AGG & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
102, Harsha house, Karampura Commercial Complex,
New Delhi-110 015 Ph: (O) 25920555 556 (R) 25221561

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To
The Members of JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the statement of Profit and loss
(Including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the [Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022,and its Loss, total comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rule thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this Auditors’ Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with

misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factorsin
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication. :
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
‘A’ a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to Annexure ‘B’.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations as on March 31, 2022.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;
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(h) The managerial remuneration for the year ended 31st March, 2022 has been paid/ provided for by
the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to

the Act.

(i) Asper the management representation we report,

(i)

(i)

(iii)

no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the company to or in any other
person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding that
the intermediary shall whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries.

no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entities including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”) with the understanding that such company shall whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures performed, we report that nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations given under sub-clause (i) and (ii) by the
management contain any material misstatement.

(i) Nodividend has been paid by the company

For N.C. Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 003273N

e

G. K. Aggarwal

Partner

M. No. 086622

Date: 29t April, 2022
Place: New Delhi
UDIN: 22086622AIGENU4775
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ANNEXURE "A’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Annexure referred to in our report of even date to the members of JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED
on the accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022)

1.

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Intangible assets.

b) A major portion of the PPE has been physically verified by the Management in accordance
with a phased programmed of verification once in four years adopted by the company. In our
opinion, the frequency of the verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the company
and the nature of its assets. To the best of our knowledge, no material discrepancies have been
noticed on such verification.

¢) The Company does not have any immovable property wherein reporting requirement with
respect to title deed of immovable properties is applicable.

d)The Company has not revalued its PPE and Intangible assets during the year. Hence, the
reporting requirement of para 3(i)(d) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

As explained to us and as per the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings
have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988. Hence, Para 3(i)(e) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

(a) As explained to us, the management during the year has physically verified inventories. In
our opinion, the coverage and procedure of verification is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10%
or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed.

(b) No working capital limit has been sanctioned and availed by the Company. Hence, the
reporting requirement of para 3(ii)(b) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and According to the information and the explanations given to us, the company
during the year has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Hence, the provisions of Para 3(iii)(a-f) of the order
are not applicable to the company.

The Company has not granted any loans or given any guarantee and security covered under
Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of
the order are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon..

According to the information given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits or
amount which are deemed to be deposits, the provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act, 2013 or any other relevant provisions of the companies Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time. No order has been
passed with respect to Section 73 to 76, by the Company Law Board or National Company
Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other tribunal.
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We have broadly reviewed the books of account and records maintained by the company
pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records
under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the company’s products and
are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed records have been made and maintained.
We have, however, not made a detailed examination of records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employee’ state
insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities and there are no undisputed dues outstanding as at 31st March, 2022 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material statutory
dues referred in aforesaid clause 7(a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and as per the information and explanations furnished to us, there are no
unrecorded transactions or transactions disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act. Hence, the para 3(viii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion, on the basis of books and records examined by us and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loan
or other borrowing and payment of interest to any lender. Hence, the para 3(ix) of the order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion, and as per the information and explanation furnished to us, the Company
is not willful defaulter by any bank or other financial institution or any other lender.

(c) In our opinion and as per the information and explanation furnished to us, the term loan
availed were utilized for the purpose for which the loan were taken.

(d) On the basis of books and records examined by us, the company has not raised any short
term fund. Hence, Para 3(ix)(d) of the order not applicable to company.

(e) On the basis of books and records examined by us, the Company has not taken any funds from

from any entity or person to meet the obligation of its subsidiary.

(f) On the basis of books and records examined by us and as explained to us, the Company has
not raised loan during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary.

10. (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public

offer or debtinstruments. Hence, the para 3(x) of the order is not applicable to the Company.
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JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

(f)Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Net Credit Sales / {Average of opening and closing trade receivable

for the period)

(g) Trade payables turnover ratio : {Cost of material consumed+ Purchase of stock-in-trade+
Changes in inventories )/ (Average of opening and
closing trade payable for the year)

(h) Net capital turnover ratio : Total Turnover / Shareholder's equity

Shareholder’s equity : Equity Share Capital + Reserves (Excluding Revaluation Reserve)

(i} Net Profit ratio : Net Profit/Total income

(j) Return on Capital employed: EBIT/ Capital employed

EBIT : {Profit before tax + finance cost)

Capital employed : (Total Assets - Current Liability)

xii.  Atits meeting held on 28 January, 2022, the Board considered and approved a Composite Scheme
of Arrangement pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of Companies Act,
2013, amongst the Company and Jindal Coke Limited ('Scheme'). The aforementioned Scheme is
subject to necessary statutory and regulatory approvals under applicable laws, including approval
of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench (“NCLT").

¥

xiii.  The company has not advanced/ loaned/ invested funds {borrowed/share premium/any other
sources of kind of funds) to any other person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
{intermediaries), with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
intermediary shall {a) directly/ indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner by or on behalf of the company (uitimate beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee,
security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The company has not received any funds from any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Funding Party), with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise] that
the company shall {a) directly/ indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate beneficiaries) or (b} provide any guarantee,
security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

xiv.  Noincome has been surrendered or disclosed for which transaction was not recorded in the books
of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961). :

xv.  CSR provisions under section 135 of the Companies Act are not applicable to this company.

xvi.  There is no transaction related to Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency. Hence, Not applicable.

49, Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever considered necessary to conform to
current year’s classification.

50. Figures in bracket indicate previous year figures.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has made private placement of shares, through
preferential issue during the year, in compliance of Section 42 and 62 of the companies Act,
2013 and the amount raised have been used for the purposes for which it has been raised.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the
Management and based on our examination of the books and records of the Company and in
accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have been informed that no
case of frauds by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported by the Company.

(b) Asinformed to us and as per the information and explanation furnished to us, there was no
reportin prescribed form ADT-4 under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Companies Act,2013
required to be filed. Hence, the reporting para 3(xi)(b) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) No whistle blower complaints were received by the Company. Hence, the reporting para
3(xi)of the order is not applicable to the Company.

The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Act, and where applicable the details have
been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us. In our opinion and as per the
information and explanation furnished to us, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business. The report of the internal auditor
furnished for the period as submitted to us, was considered in framing the opinion.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons
connected with him as covered under Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to
be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly,
provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion and as explained to us by the management, the Company has not conducted
any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid certificate of
registration from Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) In our opinion and as per the information and explanation furnished to us, the Company is
not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulation made by the Reserve Bank
Of India. Hence, the reporting para 3(xvi)(c) and (d)of the order is not applicable to the
Company.
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17. The Company has not incurred cash loss during the year and in the immediately preceding
previous year.

18. There was no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year. Hence, the reporting para
3(xviii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

19. In our opinion and based on the books and relevant documents and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of
the Board of Directors and management plan no material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

20 The Company is not required to incur any amount under Corporatize Social Responsibility (CSR).
Hence, the reporting clause 3(xx) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

21. There are no qualifications or adverse remark by the respective Auditor in the separate
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) of the companies included in the consolidated
financial statements. Hence, the reporting para 3(xxi) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

For N.C. Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 003273N

T

G. K. Aggarwal
Partner

M. No. 086622
Date: 29t April,2022

Place: New Delhi

UDIN: 22086622AIGENU4775
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure referred to in our report of even date to the members of JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED
on the accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JINDAL UNITED STEEL
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company and the
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
‘testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31st March, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company and the components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For N.C. Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 003273N

G. K. Aggarwal
Partner

M. No. 086622

Date: 29t April, 2022
Place: New Delhi
UDIN: 22086622AIGENU4775




JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

CIN-U28113HR2014PLCO53875
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022

(¥ inlakhs)
Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Proparty, Plant and Equipment 2 2,61,173.43 2,73,834.43
(b) Capitat Work-in-Progress 41 4,853.80 1,061.96
() Goodwill 3 242.78 242.78
{d) Other Intangible Assets 4 27.09 20.50
(e) Financial Assets
{1) Investments 5 14.02 4.67
(i) Other Financial Assets 6 5.16 2,029.10
(f) Other Non-Current Assets 7 5,041.42 15,728.30
(2) Current assets
(8) Inventories 8 4,931,28 1,977.88
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 9 7,563.33 7,525.11
(H) Trade Receivables 10 4,498.60 1,583.03
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 346.74 563.89
(v} Other Bank Balances 12 879.68 844.45
(v) Other Financlal Assets 13 680.43 844.07
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 14 3,566.07 1,180.92
(d) Deffered Tax Asset (Net) 14A - 3,008.28
{e) Other Current Assets 15 710.95 1,087.51
Total Assets 2,94,534.78 3,11,536.88
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(2) Equity Share Capital 16 46,160.83 42,844.59
(c) Other Equity 16A 15,410.82 (120.60)
Liabititles
(1) Non-Currant Liabilities
(a) Financlat Liabilitles
() Borrowings 17 2,17,943.15 2,56,328.68
(b) Provisions 18 426.34 366.06
(c) Deffered Tax Liabilitles (Net) . 14A 3,019.73 -
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financlat Liabdlitles
{I) Borrowings 19 1,750.66 745.07
(iit) Trade Payables
~ Due to Micro and small enterprises 20 614,17 324.68
~ Due to other than Micro and small enterprises 20 5,984.84 7,544.51
(lv) Other Financial Uiabllitles 21 2,684.10 2,816.28
(b) Other Current Liabilities 22 520.94 676.48
{c) Provisions 23 19.20 11,13
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,04,534.78 3,11,5636.88
1-51
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M.No. 086622

Place : New Delhi
Dated :29th April 2022

o

<O P:‘: Uﬂ .

e

Chief Financlal Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED
CIN-U28113HR2014PLC053875

Statement Of Profit And Loss For The Year Ended March 31,2022

Year Ended March Year Ended March
Particulars Note No, 31,2022 31,2021
I.R from Op i 24 1,48,334.07 90,407.78
II. Other Income 25 1,487.96 723.33
Total Income (I +11) 1,49,8?3_.03 91,%
X1l Expenses:
Raw Materfal Consumed 26 26,213.89 7,929.32
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in 27 (2,344.49) 1,206.14
progress and Trading goods
Employee Beneflt Expenses 28 2,999.18 2,546.41
Finance Costs 29 23,649.37 30,472.72
Dep and Amor 30 15,827.99 15,267.32
Other Expenses 31 62,483.82 40,111.02
Total Expenses 1,28,029.76 97,532.94
IV. Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary Items mnd tax (I+1I-111) 20,892.27 (6,401.83)
V. Exceptional Items (Gain})/Loss 32 15.05 0.36
VI. Profit/(L.oss) before Tax (IV ~ V} 20,872.22 (6,402.19)
VIL Tax expense:
(1) Deferred Tax 44 6,028.39 (2,266.87)
6,0268.39 {2,266.87)
VIIL Profit/(Loss) for the year after taxation (VI-VII) 14,648.83 (4,135.32)
IX, Othar comprehensive income:
ftems that witl not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re ment gains (! )} on defined benefit plans (10.92) 20.44
Tncome tax effect 275 (7.14)
Galn / (Loss) on Fair valuation of Long Term Investment 9.35 3.01
Income tax effect on above (2.35) {1.05)
Tatal Other compreheasive income {IX) {1.17) 15.26
X. Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VIII+1X) 14,847.66 {4,120.06)
XI. Earning per equity share of face value of 210/~ epch.
(1) 8asic . 40 2.98 {0.87)
(2) Oiluted 2.98 {0.87)
Significant A ting Policies and Notes to Financlal Statements 1-51
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JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED
CIN-U28113HR2014PLCO53875

Stat t of Ch in Equity for the year ended March 31,2022
A. Equity Share Capital
{% in Lakhs)
Balance &5 at March 31,2020 Changes in equity share capital | Salance as &t March | Changes In equity | Balance as xt March
during 2020-21 35,2028 share capital during 31,2022
2021-22
38,114 86 735,73 42,844 59 331824 46,160:83
8. Other Equity
0.01% Non Reserves and Surplus Tverss of Other Comprenensive Income Yotal
Cumaiative
Particutars P Tl Retained Earnings Share premium Re-mepsurement of | Gain / (Loss) on Fair
the net defined valustion of
Preforence Shares benefit plans
(NCCCPS)
[Batance ws at March 31, 2020 739514 (2,346.60) - {1858 (0.76) 5,229.20
Profit/{LossYor the yesr {4,135.32) {4,135,32)
R of the net defined benefit plans (net of taxes) 13.30 13.30
Gain / (Loss) on Fair valuation of Investment {net of taxes) 1.96 1.96
Shares Converted during the year 18 {2} (1)) (1,233.78) {1,229.74)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 5,365.40 (6,481.92)] - (5.29) 120 (120.60)
Brofit/(Loss)for the yesr 14,848.83 14,848.83
Premium on share sliotment 1,546.01 1,546.,01
Re-megsurement of the net defined benefit plans (net of taxes) (8.17)] (8.17)]
Gain / (Loss) on Fair valuation of (nvestment (net of taxes) 7.00 7.00
Shares Converted during the year 16 (e) (1)} (862.25) 1(862.25),
Batance ax at March 31, 2022 5,503.15 8,366.91 1,546.01 (13.46) 15,410.82
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Jindal United Steel Umited .
Jrverme 4’/f { .
For N.C. Aggarwsl & Co.
Chartered Accountants Om Praksh verma
Eirm Registration No. 003273 Direcrar Time Director
.C_"—TQ‘ - DiN-07137865 DIN-03633751
- .- . ’
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PARTHER . . i et / PO
D g L (/47
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JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED
CIN-U28113HR2014PLCO53875

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2022

(¥ in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS For the year Ended For the year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

A. CASH INFLOW {OUTFLOW) FROM THE GPERATING ACTIVITIES
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX 20,892.27 20,892.27 (6,401.83) (6,401.83)
Adjustments for : .
Add/{Less)

Depreciation 15,927.99 15,267.32

fnterest Expense 23,166.57 30,176.02

Profit on sale of fixed assets (32.89) (65.66)

Loss on sale of asset '52.60 -

Acturail Gain/(Loss) (10.92) 20.44

Interest Income {282.91) 38,820.44 (635.12) 44,763.00
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES
Adjustments for:~

Inventaries (2,953.40) 1,587.43

Trade Receivables {2,915.57) (1,281.86)

Loans and advances and other assets 12,502.76 2,117.39

Trade and Other Payables (1,458.48) 5,175.31 683.50 3,106.46
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS 64,888.02 41,467.63

Exceptional Items (15.08) (15.05) (0.36) {0.36)

Tax Paid (2,385.15) 1,767.50
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 62,487.82 43,234.77
B. CASH INFLOW/{OUTFLOW)FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

(Increase)/Decrease In Current Investment (38.22) (7,525.11)

Interest tncome 995.94 456.26

Sale of fixed assets 42.59 106.06

Capital expenditure (7,127.72) (5,739.59)
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW)FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (6,127.40) (12,702.38)
C. CASH INFLOW/{OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase/(Decrease) in Non-Current Borrowings (41,327.63) {2,692.86)

Interest paid (20,255.54) (31,165.99)

Increase/(Decrease) in Current Borrowings 1,005.59 {392.54)

Issue of Equity Share Capital 4,000.00 3,499.9%
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (56,577.58) (30,751.40)
NET CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (217.16) (219.01)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 563.89 782.90

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 346.73 563.89

NOTE:

1. Increase/{decrease) in Non-current and current borrowlings are sh
2. Figures in bracket Indicates cash outflow.

net of repay ts

3. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the Indirect method setout in IND AS-7 "Statement of Cash Flows'.

As per our report of even date attached

For N.C. Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 003273N

— - 4’ .

G.K. Aggarwal ek
PARTNER

M.No. 086622

Place : New Dethi

Dated :29th April 2022

O yerms
Om Praksh Verma
Director

~ DIN-07137865

“Narlider Dhankar - @%ww =

Chief Financial Officer

=

Director
DIN-03633751

Compan® Secretary
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JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements
1. Significant accounting policies

A. Corporate and General Information

lindal United Steel Limited ("JUSL)” or (“the Company”’} is domiciled and incorporated in India. The Company is
a leading manufacturer of hot rolled products of stainless steel and carbon steel. The Registered Office of the
Company is located at O.P. lindal Marg, Hisar. The Company has acquired the HSM Plant from Jindal Stainless
Limited pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between the Company and Jindal Stainless Limited
as a part of integrated steel plant to be set up at Jajpur, Orissa.

B. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared complying in all material respects with the indian Accounting
Standards {IndAS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rule 2015, The financial statements comply with IND AS notified by Ministry of Company
Affairs (“MCA”). The Company has consistently applied the accounting policies used in the preparation for all
periods presented.

The significant accounting policies used in preparing the financial statements are set out in Note no.1C of the
Notes to Financial Statements.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification dated March 24, 2021, amended Division 1i of
Schedule [ of the Companies Act, 2013, These amendments are applicable for the reporting period beginning
on or after April 1, 2021. The amendment encompasses significant additional disclosure requirements and
includes certain changes to the existing disclosures. The Company has applied and incorporated the
requirements of amended Division Il of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 while preparing these
standalone financial statements based on available information including exposure draft of revised guidance
note on Division lI- Ind AS schedule i to the Companies Act, 2013 issued by the corporate laws & corporate
governance committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants India (ICAl).

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions. Actual
results could vary from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accouriting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the
revision effects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future years (refer Note no. 1C{xviii) on Significant accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgements).

C. Significant Accounting Policies

i) Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and under the historical cost
convention except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below.
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ii} Property, Plant and Equipment

a) For transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of previous GAAP
for all its tangible assets as of 1% April, 2015 (transition date) and use that carrying value as its deemed cost
on transition date. '

However, under the previous GAAP, the Company has fair valued all its Property, Plant and Equipment on
transfer of business to the Company under Composite Scheme of Arrangement (Refer Note No 36).

b) Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

c) Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided as per guidance set out in Schedule Il of the Act on straight
line method, on remaining Useful life on transfer of Property, Plant and Equipment under Compaosite Scheme
of Arrangement. However, in respect of certain Plant and Machinery, electrical installation and Factory
Building, depreciation is provided as per their useful lives assessed on the basis of technical evaluation by
the external valuer, as stated below:

Category of Assets Years
-Building 25-45
-Plant and Machinery Up to 35 Years

ifi). Intangible Assets
The identifiable intangible assets are recognised:

i) When the Company controls the asset,
ii) It is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and

iii} The cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Computer software’s are capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and are
amortised over the period of license, generally not exceeding five years on straight line basis. The assets’ useful
lives are reviewed at each financial year end.

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost and is tested for impairment at the end of each Financial Year.
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iv}. Impairment of non-current assets

An asset is considered as impaired when at the date of Balance Sheet there are indications of impairment and
the carrying amount of the asset, or where applicable the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs
exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the net asset selling price and value in use).The carrying
amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the reduction is recognized as an impairment loss in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The impairment loss recognized in the prior accounting period is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount. Post impairment, depreciation is provided on the
revised carrying value of the impaired asset over its remaining useful life.

v). Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes Cash on hand and at bank, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and short term
depaosits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdraft as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.

vi). Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value except scrap, which is valued at net realizable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories comprises of cost of
purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their respective present
location and condition. Cost is computed on the weighted average basis.

vii). Employee benefits

i} Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in
which the related services are rendered.

ii) Leave encashment being a short term benefit is accounted for using the Projected Unit Credit Method, on the
basis of actuarial valuations carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and
losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to
profit and lass in the period in which they arise.

iii} Contribution to Provident Fund, a defined contribution plan, is made in accordance with the statute, and is
recognised as an expense in the year in which employees have rendered services.

iv) The cost of providing gratuity, a defined benefit plans, is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method,
on the basis of actuarial valuations carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or
credited to Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise. Other costs are accounted in
statement of profit and loss.
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v) The Company’s liability towards employee benefits such as gratuity, leave encashment, and other terminal
benefits are provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation. Company does not operate any Defined plan for
Gratuity; hence, the liability is recognised in the books. The liahility towards terminal benefit is un-funded.

viii), Foreign currency reinstatement and translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements have been presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at rates prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Subsequently monetary items are translated at closing exchange rates of balance sheet date and
the resuiting exchange difference recognised in profit or loss. Differences arising on settlement of monetary
items are also recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the transaction. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Exchange component of the gain or loss arising on fair valuation of non-monetary items is
recognised in line with the gain or loss of the item that gave rise to such exchange difference.

ix). Financial instruments — initial recognition, subsequent measurement and impairment

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value,
Transaction cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets or financial liabilities
{Other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss account ) are added to
or deducted from fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

Financial Assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost or fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income or fair value through Profit or Loss, depending on its business model for managing those financial assets
" and liabilities and the assets and liabilities contractual cash flow characteristics.

Financial Assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business
whose objective is to hold these assets to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
amount outstanding.

Financial Assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are
held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and selling financial
assets. ”
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at
fair value through ather comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction cost directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets and liability at fair value thorough profit or loss are immediately recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities including interest bearing loans and borrowings and trade payables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR) except those designated in an
effective hedging relationship.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

x}. Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds. '
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

For general borrowing used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Company
that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing costs capitalized during a period does not exceed the amount of
borrowing cost incurred during that period.

All other borrowing casts are expensed in the period in which they occur.

xi). Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax (including MAT). Tax is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income, in such cases the tax is also recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income. Any subsequent change in direct tax on items initially recognised in equity or other comprehensive
income is also recognised in equity or other comprehensive income, such change could be for change in tax rate.

Current tax provision is computed for Income calculated after considering allowances and exemptions under
the provisions of the applicable Income Tax Laws. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are off set, and

presented as net.

fo o
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Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance
sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using
the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses
and allowances to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be utilised. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax rates. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off
set, and presented as net.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Credit of MAT is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed
to be carried farward. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the
said asset is created by way of a credit to the profit and loss account and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The
Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit
entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period.

xii}. Revenue recognition and Other income

Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognized at the fair value of consideration received or receivable and represents the net invoice
value of goods supplied to third parties after deducting discounts, volume rebates and outgoing sales tax/GST
and are recognized either on delivery or on transfer of significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods.

Sale of Services-Job work

Revenue from job work charges is accounted for on the basis of work performed and rendering of service as per
the terms of the specific contract.

Other Operating Income

Incentives on export as per the policy of government are recognized in books after due consideration of
certainty of utilization.

Other Income
Interest

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
rate applicable.
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xiii). Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share
to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the
reporting year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, if any.

xiv). Provisions and contingencies

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying ecanomic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value
of money is material, provisions are discounted using equivalent period government securities interest rate.
Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot
be made. Infarmation on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. Contingent
assets are not recognised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is
no longer a contingent asset, but it is recognised as an asset.

xv}. Current /non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification.

The Company has presented non-current assets and current assets before equity, non-current liabilities and
current liabilities in accordance with Schedule Ill, Division Il of Companies Act, 2013 notified by MCA.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

e J3e.
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All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:
a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
b} it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,
¢} It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or
cash equivalents.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

xvi). Lease

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.
To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses

whether:

(i) The contract involves the use of an identified asset

(ii) The Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the
lease and

(iii) The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU"} and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short term leases) and leases of low value assets. For these short term and leases of low
value assets, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over

the term of the lease.
And in case entity is lessor, it identifies whether the lease is defined as finance or operating lease as per the

criteria given in Ind AS 116.
In case of Operating lease, an entity recognises lease payment as income on straight line basis

in case of Finance lease, an entity initial measurement

(i) Derecognises the carrying amount of underlying assets

(ii} Recognise the net investment in lease

(iii) Recognise profit and loss on selling profit or selling loss
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And on subsequent measurement, entity recognises finance income over the lease period and reduces the net
investment in the lease for lease payment received and recognise income from any variable lease payments and
recognises any impairment of the net investment in the lease

xvii). Recent accounting pronouncements

New and amended standards applied
The group has applied the following amendments to Ind AS for the first time for their annual reporting period
commencing 1 April 2021:

« Extension of COVID-19 related concessions — amendments to ind AS 116
« Interest rate benchmark reform — amendments to Ind AS 109, Financia! Instruments, ind AS 107, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, Ind AS 104, Insurance Contracts and Ind AS 116, Leases.

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies {indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective
1 April 2022. These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the group in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”} amended the Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013 on 24 March 2021
to increase the transparency and provide additional disclosures to users of financial statements. These
amendments are effective from 1 April 2021.

Consequent to above, the group has changed the classification/presentation of

(i) current maturities of long-term borrowings

(ii) security deposits, in the current year

The current maturities of long-term borrowings (including interest accrued) has now been included in the
“Current borrowings” line item. Previously, current maturities of long-term borrowings and interest accrued
were included in ‘other financial liabilities' fine item.

Further, security deposits (which meet the definition of a financial asset as per Ind AS 32) have been included in
‘other financial assets’ line item. Previously, these deposits were included in ‘loans’ line item.

xviii}. Significant accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
estimates,assumptions and judgements, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statement:

(i) Property, plant and equipment

External adviser or internal technical team assess the remaining useful lives and residual value of property, plant
and equipment. Management believes that the assigned useful lives and residual value are reasonable, the
estimates and assumptions made to determine depreciation are critical to the Company’s financial position and
performance.

- yrrtiag
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{ii) Income taxes .

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferred tax assets and
liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The
factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the

amounts reported in the financial statements.

(iii} Contingencies

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending
matters with accuracy.

{iv) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The input to these models is taken from ohservable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair value. Judgements include
consideration of input such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

{v} Defined benefit plan

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

(2.5
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Property, Plant and Equiptment

(% in Lakhs}
. . N Furniture and
Particulars Building Plant and Machinery Fixtures Office equipment Total

Gross Block
As at March 31,2020 39,286.00 2,45,758.70 114.79 30.25 2,85,189.74
Additions 235.90 6,611.95 14.05 6,861.90
Disposal - 8067.98 . 807.98
As at March 31,2021 39,521.90 2,51,562.67 128.84 30.25 2,91,243.66
Additions 96.47 3,184.02 11.51 36.13 3,328.13
Disposal - 266.96 266.96
As at March 31,2022 39,618.37 2,54,479.73 140.35 66.38 2,84,304.83
Ac ed Depr i
As at March 31,2020 344.91 2,539.46 26.45 8.69 2,819.51
Charge for the Year 1,381.76 13,847.04 12.96 5.54 15,257.30
Disposal 767.58 767.58
As at March 31,2021 1,736.67 15,618.92 39.41 14.23 17,409.23
Charge for the Year 1,399.71 14,501.58 14.21 11.33 15,926.83
Disposal 204.66 204.66
As at March 31,2022 3,136.38 29,915.84 53.62 25.56 33,131.40
Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31,2021 37,785.23 2,35,943.75 89.43 16.02 2,73,834.43
As at March 31,2022 36,481.99 2,24,563.89 86.73 40.82 2,61,173.43

Note: Property, Plant and Equipment has been hypothecated to lenders for Term Borrowings (Refer Note No.17)
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3. Goodwill

Particulars Goodwill ¥ Total

Gross Block

As at March 31,2020 242.78 242.78

Additions - R
Disposal -

As at March 31,2021 242.78 242.78

Additions - -
Disposal

As at March 31,2022 242.78 242.78

Accumulated Depreciation

As at March 31,2020 - -

Charge for the year - -
Disposal - -

As at March 31,2021 - -

Charge for the year - -
Disposal - -

As at March 31,2022 - -

Net carrying amount

As at March 31,2021 242.78 242.78

As at March 31,2022 242.78 242.78

* Refer Note No 33 (2) (C)
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4. Other Intangible Assets

[Particuiars Software Total

Gross Block
As at March 31,2020 94.93 94,93
Additions 2.49 2.49
Disposal - -

As at March 31,2021 97.42 97.42
Additions 7.75 1.75

Disposal - -
As at March 31,2022 105.17 105.17

Accumulated Depreclation

As at March 31,2020 66.80 66.90
Charge for the year 10.02 10,02
Disposal b -
As at March 31,2021 76.92 76.92
Charge for the year 1.16 1.16
Disposal - -
qm at March 31,2022 78,08 78,08

Net carrying amount

As at March 31,2021 20.50 20.50
As at March 31,2021 27.09 27,09

>
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Particulars

As at March 31,2022

As at March 31,2021

8. Hon - Current Investments

(At macket Valus)

{¥in takt
As at Hacch 34,2022 A3 at Harch 31,2021
Particutars He. of Shares | Face Vatue (2} Amosunt MNo. of Shares Face Value {3} Amount
LONG TERM - NON TRADE
guorio
Oesignated at Falr Value through
ather Comprehensive Income
Tindal Statniess Limited 6,920 2.00 14.02 6,920 2.0 .67
Total 6,920 14.02 §,920 4.67
Aggregale amount of quoted investments 14.02 4.67
{AL market Value)
. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON CURRENT
Secutity Deposit 0.5 3,313.07
Interest Acerued - 1162
Bank Deposits (with remalning maturity of mare than 12 months)* 4.41 4.41
Tatal Other Financial Assets - Noa Current 5,16 2,029.10
7. OTHER HON-CURRENT ASSETS
Capitai Advances 5,042.42 365.13
Prepaid Expenses - Non Curremt® - 15363.17
Total Other Non-Current Assets 5,041.42 15,728.10
* Towrards Secunly depourt pad to JSL for (A7.81es a5 per Scheawe
t#etar notm 0o 33}
B. INVENTORIES
Inventitories - Stores and Spares
Fintshed Good 2,5831.33 238,84
Stores and Spares 2,347.95 1739.04
Total Inventarias 4,931.28 1,977.88
9. Current Investments
As st March 31,2022 As at March 31,2021
Panticulars . of Units Amauat Wo. of Units Rmount

INVESTHENTS IN MUTUAL FUNDS ’
FULLY PAID-UP (UNQUOTED)
Designated at Fale Valua through Profit and Loss
581 Saving Fund-Direct plan-Growth - . 44,44,651 1,519.88
58 Saving Fund-Regular-Growth 2,24,47,977 7,563.33 1,84,37,307 6,005.23

1,24,47,977 7,563.33 1,28,81,958,27 781511
Aggregate ameunt of unquoted Investments 7,5¢3.33 7,515.13
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Pacticutars

As at March 31,2022

As st March 31,2021

10, TRADE RECEIVABLES

Unsecured B
Considered good 4,498.50 1,563.03
Total Trade Receivables 4,498.60 1,503.03
Patticulars ‘Gutstanding for fellawing periods fram due date of payment
Hot due Less than 6 months & months -1 1-2 years 2-3 yeats Morethan 3 years Total
year
{1} Undisputed Trade receivablas - 1,518.48 2,954.32 1238 186 0.03 11.53 4,498.60
cansidered good ‘
(#) Undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - - - -
consigened Soudtul
() Disputad Trade Receivadles - - - ° )
considered geod .
{tv) Dispated Trade Recelvibles . - - - - -
jronsidered doubthnl
1,518.48 2,954.32 12.38 1.86 0.03 11.83 4,498.60
Particolars ‘Outstanding for following perlods from due date of payment
Hot dus Less than § months | 6 menths -1 1-2 years 2-3 yaars Horethan 3 years Total
year
{1} Undisputed Trade recelvables - 1,093.04) 2009 458.34 0.03 11.53 - 1,581.03
considered good
{H) Undisputed Trade Racebvables ~ . - . - . <
considered doublful
(W) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - °
considered good
{Iv) Disputed Trade Recelvables - - - - - -
considerad doubths
1,09.04 20,00 453.34 0.03 31.53 . 1,583.03
13, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with Banks
On aurrent sccounts 346.59 15.31
Bank Deposits with ariginal matwity of less than three months - $48.52
Cash on hand 0.05 (X
Totst Cash wnd Cash equivalents 346.74 563,89
12. OTHER BANK BALANCES
Bank deposits with original maturity of more than thres moath but residual maturity of less than 127 months a79.68 84445
879.68 B44.45
13. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSEYS
Other Receivables (Unbifled revenua from services) £78.61 840.34
Interest Acyuds But act due on Bank doposit 192 322
Total Othrer Flnanclisl Assats €30.43 844.07
14, CURRENT TAX ASSETS (RET)
TDS Recoverable 3,566.07 1,180.92
Totsl Cucrent Yax Assats (Het) 3,566.07 1,180,92
14 A. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (NET)
A, ASSETS
(1)Amount atiowable la Income tax on payment basis 1,628.02 $33.10
(1) Finacial asset & finadat Babilites messured & arnorticed cost - 343.59
{HyCarried Forward fosses 10,450.85 34,947.79
Total Deferred Tax Assets 13,078.87 35,824.48
B LIABILITY
{1NDiference between WOV ax per books and Income Tax 16,069.88 32,723.87
{#) Rnadal asset & finacial iabifiles measured at amortized cost 872 93.03
Total Deferred Tax Liabilitles 16,098.80 32,816.2¢0
€, Net Assets of Temporary Ditfarence (A-8) {3,015.73) 3,008.28
D, MAT Credit Entitlement *
Net Defarred Tax Assels/(Lisbility} (C+D} {3,019,23) 3,008.28
Deferred tax iy} focin of Profit and Loss sccount {6,028.39) 2,266.87
Deferred tax ssset/(Uablity) accounted for thraugh OCT 0.40 (8.13)
(6,027.99} 3,258.68

<
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{¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,3022 As st March 31,2021
15, Olher Currenl Assets
Prepaid Expenses 12101 827.64
Advances o vendors 463.08 2361
Advances recovenadit I Cash or Kad® 121.86 36.26

Yotal Othar Current Assets 7%2.” 1,087.61

~ Indudes GST Receivabis.

16. SHARE CAPITAL

{3) Authorised

$5,50,00,000 {45,50,00,000} Equity Sharws of 110/~ ach 55,500.00 45,5080.00
26,59,00,600 (26,50,60,000) Prefarence Shares of T10/- e3ch 26,500.00 16,500.00

$2.000.00 22.990.00

{b) Issued

451,808, 215 (42,84,45,937) Equity Shares of T10/- edch 45,169.81 42,844.59

A
(<) Subscribed snd Fully Paid-Up
461,608,315 (42,84,45,937) Equity Shares of 110/~ each 46,160.83 42,844.5%
o asifodd . 4284459

{d) Reconciistion of the numbaer of equity shares:

Shares autstanding as at the beglnning of the year 42,84,45,937 38,11,48,637
Add; Convessia of 9.01% Hon-Ci Shares 6,22,500 1,22,97,300
Add: Allated Equity Shares dufing the year 1,45,39,878 3,50,00,000
Equity Shares outstanding as at the end of the year 46,16,08,315 42,84,45,937
() Recanclilation of the numbar of NCCCPS:

€13 0.02% Non ity € Shares (HCCCPS)

Shares outstanding 35 at the beginning of the year 6,36,54,063 7,59,51,363
AdU: Shares alotted duding the yesr . - .
ess: Shares converted in to equal number of equity shares during the year 86,22,500 1.22,97,300
NCCCPS sutstanding 3 at the and of the year %,50,31,563 6,38,54,063
{1} (1} Cataits of equity shareholders holding mare then 5% shares in the company:

As at March 31,2022 As 3l March 31, 2021
M. of % of ”»

Hams of Shareholdasrs Shares heid MHolding o, of Shares hald of Holdi
OP) Steel Trading Private Umited 34,15,89,87% 74.00 31,70,50,001 74.00
Andal Stainiess Limited 12,00,18,377 26.00 11,13,35,877 6.00
Yotal 46,16,08,256 42,84,43,876
{1} (1§} Datails of 0.01% Non C [ bl neiding mora than $% shares in the companyt

As at March 31,1022 As at March 31,2021
e, of o of *

Hams of Sharehalders Shares hatd Wolding No. of Shares held of Hoiding
Hndat Stainless Umited 5,50,31,561 100 6,36,54,061 100
Toisl 5,54,31,363 $,36,54,063
() {31 Promoters holdings

$haras hald by promoters st the end of tha year % of change during As At
tha year March 33, 2021
$t No. Pramaotors Nama . Ho of shares % of Total] Tolsl No of shares
T
O} Steel Trading Private 34,15,89,879 74.00% 0.00%] 31,70,56,001
1 Umited
2 Jadst Stainkess Umted 12,00.18,377 26.00% 0.00%; 11,13,95,877
3 Pradueep Tahitand 19 0.00% ¢00% R
s Havoeet Raghuvansht 10 0.00%| 0.00%, -
5 Sanjay Gupta - 0.00% 0.00%, 0
& Rajesw Garg 1 0.00%| 0.00%j 10
? Hahadic Prasad Gupta 0 0.00%| 0.00%! 10
s Hahabl prashad Swam! 10 0.50%] 0.50%; 18
PRS- T TXC] K i3 RSN FA TR 1Y 2N
{g) Details of Sharu held by holding company
Ho. of o of e

Name of Sharcholders Shares hatd Rokting He, of Shares held of Hetding

OF) Steet Trading Private Limited 34,15,85,879 74.00 31,70,56,003 74.06

(h) Terma/Rights attachad to Equity Shares
The Company has ane class of equity shares having 3 face vatus of T10/- per equity share. Each equRy sharehoider Is entitied to one vote per shire, Further the equty shares Bsued dudng
the F.Y. 7G18-19 wil rank pari-passu with the exlsting equity shares.

(1) Tesms/Rights attachad 1o 0.01% Mon Jath Shares.
5,50,31,563, 0.01% NCCCPS shall be compuisorily Convertbie o one equity share of ¥ 10/-zach on o bafore 10 years from the date of aSotment,.s,25.10.2018 ot the option bl the
Company. These NCCCPS awnmhtmlmmumtrmdw Company with respect 10 paymant of dividend and shall have voting rights in respect of Centaln matters as per the
provisions of section 47(2) of the Comgaries Act,2013.
o"‘- .."-
D

. .
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Notes to Financial Statements

16A. Other equity

{€in Lakhs}

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 =~ 31 March 2021
A. 0.01% Non Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (NCCCPS)
Balance at the beginning of the year 6,365.40 7,595.14
Add: alioted during the year - -
Less-Canverted into equity shares during
the year (862.25) (1,229.74)
Batance at the end of the year 5,503.15 6,365.40
B. Retained earnings
Represents the undistributed surplus of the Company.
Balance at the beginning of the year (6,481.92) (2,346.60)
Add : Profit for the year 14,848.83 (4,135.32)
Balance at the end of the year 8,366.91 (6,481.92)
C. Re-measurement of the net defined benefit plans
Rep e amounts d of defined benefit plan
Balance at the beglnning of the year (5.29) {18.59)
Re-measurement of the net defined
benefit plans (net of taxes) (8.17) 13.30
Balance at the end of the year (13.46) (5.29)
D.Gain / {Loss) on Fair valuation of Investment (net of taxes)
Balance at the beginning of the year 1.20 (0.76)
Galn / (Loss) on Fair valuation of
Investment (net of taxes) 7.00 1.96
Balance at the end of the year 8.20 1.20

E.Share premium

Batance at the beginning of the year

Premium on share allotment 1,546.01 -

1,546.01 -

22—
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Particulars An 3t March 35,2027 Asat NN‘::"‘;.’Q?!

17. SORROWINGS - NOM CURKENT

Secured

Term Loans

Yerm Loans om Banks 2,02,475.92 1,40,861.35
Unsecured

30% Non-Cx Hon-C Shares * 8,767.33 8,767.33
Inter corporate loan Kom related party 6,700.60 6,700.00
*(refer note no. 33(2)}

Total Non-Cusrant borrowings 2,17,943.15 2,66,328.68
Term Loan frem Banks

{)The Tarm Loan Facitky 1 from banks ameunting to Rs. 1,86,857.73 Lakhs (Rs. 2,41,437.23 Lakhs) are n quarterly with for Re. 19466 iakhs

Guring FY 3022:23, Rs. 618.54 Lakhs during FY 2023-24, Rs. 234,00 Laidrs during FY 2024-25, RS. 1,005.14 Latns durng FY 202526, Rs. 1,434.48 Lakhs duriag FY 2016-27, Rs. 4,857.59
Lakhs during FY 2027-28, Rs. 19,062.60 Lakhs during FY 2028-19, Rs. 19,079.28 Lakhs duwing FY 2029-30, Rs. 20,446.53 Lakhs during FY 1030-31, Rs, 15,188.31 Laths during FY 2031-32,
Rs. 5,098.40 Lakhs durlng FY 2032-33 & FY 2033-34, Rs. 6,386.23 Lakhs during FY 2034-35, Rs. 7,647.60 Lakhs during FY 2035-36, As, 8,935.43 Lakhs during FY 2035-37, Rs. 10,858.93
Lakhs during FY 2037-38, Rs.11,547.66 Lakhs during FY 203839, Rs. 12,190.54 Lakhs during FY 2039-40, Rs. 14,120.93 Lakhe during FY 1040-41 and balance repayable Rs. 22,296 .88 Lakhs
in FY 2041-42

b)The Term Loan Faciity 2 from baaks smounting to Rs. 12,125.00 Laths s n guarterty with y for Re. 1,500.00 lakhs during FY 2022-23, fs
2,000.00 Lakhis during FY 2023-24, Re. 2,500.00 Lakhs during FY 2024-25 & FY 2025-26, Rs. 2,875.00 Lakhs dudng FY 2025-27 and balance repayable Rs. 750.60 Lakhs in FY 1027-28,

(€} The Term Loan Facidy 3 from banks amounting to Rs. 5,600.00 Lakhs (s in quactedy with foe Rs. 56,00 takhs dwing FY 2022-23 & FY 2023-
24, Rs. 448.00 Lakhs during FY 202425, Rs. 672.00 Lakhs during FY 2015-26, 5. 840.00 Lakhs during FY 2026-27 & FY 202728, Rs, 1,008.00 takhs durieg FY 2023-19 & FY 2029-30 and
balance repayable fis. 672.00 Lakhs o FY 2030-31. - .

(d)tne hong teirn 5 Inciude an of portian of upfront fees and lransaclion tosts smounting to Rs, 356.25 lakns

Facldy 1 i3 secured by frst part-gastus charge by way of mortgage of Campany’ #0d hy of bie fixed assets both present & haure and second par-
Pa35u charge by way of hypothecation and/or pladge of current 315els lochuding Anished Qoods, raw materisis, work-in-progress, consumable stores and tpares, book debts, tiis recetvatle,
2c bath present and future.

Faciy 1§ ks also secured by the boltowing additionsl securities

[0} and prrsonal of Mr. Raten Hnddl, snd
(4) Part-passu pledge of 100% equity shares, as heid by promoter (OPISTPL) in tha Company.

Faciity 2 Is secured by first park-passu charge by way of mortgage of Company’s [ and of bis fxed ssets both prasent & Adure and secand pan-
Pastu charge by way of hypathecation and/or pledge of cusrent assets including but aot Umited to Rnishied goods, 1aw materials, work-in-progress, CoAsUnadie storet and spaces, book debts,

Biils receivable, etc bath preset and A,

Fadility 3 15 sscured by Arst pari-passu charge by way of mostgage of Company's and of b fixed assels both present & Auture and second pad-
Passu chaige by way of fypothecation and/or pledge of current assets lncuding But Aot frdted to Ankshed poads, raw materlals, work-in-grogress, consumabie stores and 1pares, book debts,
it receivadie, ett both present and Rdure.

0% Non-C Shacas
4,76,73,311, 10% Non - O Hont - Shares ("HCNCRPS') are redeemable on or before 20 (twenty) years from the date of allotonent Le. 13th

Octaber, 2016, 3t the option of the company.

18. PROVISIONS

Pravision for Employee benefits
Provision for Graduity PR g 23278
Pravision Ror Leave Encashment 145,40 133,31
Yotsl Provislons 426.34 368.06
19. BORROWINGS - CURRENT
Secured®
Overdral from banks . 169.19
Current maturities of long term boerrowings 1,750.66 §75.08
Total Sorrawings 1,750.58 745.07
* Overdralt and Working capital faciity rom Bank ¥ secuned agalnst en mark of fixed deposit Reid by company.
20. TRADE PAYABLES
Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises (refer note A below) 614.47 324.68
D to craditors otherthan micro and 1mail enterprises. 5,984.84 7,544.5¢
Yotel Frada Payabies §,599.01 7,869.19
Particulars Outstanding for lollawing periads fram due date of payment
Luss than 1 year 1-1 yemrn 23 yaaes Worathan 3 years Total
£50.86 10.23 13.05 0.0 4.7
5.879.10 3845 14.03 53.16 5.904.84
{3l) Disputted dues-MSRE hd ol hd -
() Gsputind dues-Ohes - - - -
£,489,.96 48.68 27.09 33.18 4,399.01
Particulars Quistanding for fellowing perlods fram dua date of paymaent
Less then 1 yasr 1-2 years 2-3 years Mersitian 3 years Total
()} HSHE 302.94 13.23 [8%) 9.38 Hifl_‘
{11) Others 7,493.61 9.51 - 41.39 7,544.51
(11} Olsputted dues-MSME - - - -
[() Cisputted dues-Others - N - -
2,796.55 22.74 8,13 4177 7,869.19

. maa,
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{€sa Lokhs)

Particulars

As at March 31,2022 As st March 31,2023

A On the basis of confiymation obtained fom suppliers who have registered themselves under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Davelopment Act, 2006 (MSHED Act, 2006) and based on
tha fafarmation avallable voth the Company, dues divdosed as per the Micr, Small and Hedlum Encerprise Development Act, 2006 a2 the year end ace helow:

Particutars
aﬂuMpumwmmmtmmmmmhgwmwmwmrnuwe«durmxmummygw

Principat amount due
Interest amouR due

&) The amaunt of eerest paid by the buyer In terars of section 16, slong with the ameunts of the payment made (o the supplier beyand the
appointed day during each Moounting year

@, Mamdmi'mdmmwwwmnmwahymmm«(mnmhwaﬁwm& the appalinted day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified undec the A

aimeanmuuomxmmmremmmcxwmum;«mwym

{*) The amount of further kterest ramdining due and payable even in the mmwm. vl such date when the lnterest dues as above
are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose ol asa under section 13,

21, OVNER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Trtarest Accrued
Others:

Capitai Crediors
Other Qutstanding Liablintes

Total Other Financlal Uablilties

22. OTHER CURRENT LIASILIYIES

Qther Payadbles
Statutory Dues

Totasl Other Current Liabifittes
23, PROVISIONS

Provisian for Employee bensiils
Provision for Gratuity

Provision for Leave Encashment
Total Provisions

{Tnis space has been ntentionally fek Dlank)

ADErrerering

(34

As at March 31,2027 As at March 31,2021

612.62 32441

1.55 0.27

1.55 .27
827 59.34
621.69 131397
2,034.54 1,942.97
2,684.10 1,816.28

e ————— T

$20.94 87648
520.94 628.48
18.76 5.00
844 6.13
19.20 11.13
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Particulars Year Ended March  Year Ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021

24, Revenue from Operations

Job Charges received 1,17,440.18 79.313.11
Sale of Product . 30,893.89 11,084.67
Total Revenue from Operations 1,48,334.07 90,407.78

25. Other Income

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 32.89 65.66
Interest on Fixed Deposit 44.16 17166
Liability written Back 0.72 115
Profit on sale of Mutual Fund 160.93 15.65
Gatln/{Loss) on falr valuation of mutual fund 104.18 982
Interest Income on fair valuation of Security deposit 77.82 216.04
Interest on income tax refund . - 23157
Other Operating Income 164.98 11.48
Cther Non-Operating Income 902.28 .

Total Other Income 1,487.96 723.33

26. Raw Material Consumed
Raw Material Consumed 26,213.89 7,929.32

26,213.89 7,929.32

27.CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF
FINISHED GOODS ,WORK IN PROGRESS
AND TRADING GOODS

OPENING STOCK

Finished Goods 238.84 1,444.98

TOTAL OPENING STOCK 238.84 1,444.98

CLOSING STOCK

Finished Goods 2,583.33 238.84
2,583.33 238.84

TOTAL - CHANGES IN INVENTORIES { (Increase) / Decrease } (2,344.49) 1,206.14

28. Employee Benefits Expenditure

Salarles, Wages, Bonus and Other benefits 2,831.85 2,391.23
Contribution to provident and other funds 134.00 122,82
Staff Welfare Expenses 33.33 32.35
Total 2,999.18 2,546.41
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JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars

Year Ended March

Year Ended March

31, 2022 31, 2021
29. Finance Cost
Interest Expenses 23,166.57 30,176.02
Other Borrowing Costs 482.80 296.70
Total Finance Costs 23,649.37 30,472.72
30. Depreciation B Amartisation
Depreciation on Fixed Assets 15,926.83 15,257.30
Amortization of Intangible assets 1.16 10,02
Total Depreciation & Amortisation 15,927.99 15,267.32
31. OTHER EXPENSES
{a). Manufacturing Expenses
Consumption of Stores and Spare parts 7,453.89 4,925.23
Power and Fuel 37,015.55 23,532.36
tabour Processing & Transportation Charges 8,202.81 5,398.37
Repairs to buildings 44,30 18.82
Repairs to plant & machinery 689.14 335.67
Job work expenses 226.57 -
Other Manufacturing Expenses 276.46 237.86
ga!ggs!n 314448.31
(b). Administrative Expenses
Insurance 393.63 335.84
Rent 263.06 787.03
Rates and Taxes 42.51 2382
Legal and Professional 86.19 50.22
Postage, Telegram ,Telex and Telephone 16.91 14.86
Printing & Stationary 16.27 19.38
Travelling & Conveyance 1.23 1.56
Director’ Meeting Fees 0.53 023
Vehicle Upkeep and Maintenance 85.50 78.28
Auditor's Remuneration 5.05 505
Miscellaneous Expenses 6,256.64 4,199.54
7,167.52 5,515.81
(C). Selling Expenses
Other Selling Expenses 381.78 179.71
Freight Charges 973.20 (32.81)
1,354.98 136.90
Loss on sale of asset 52.60 -
52.60 -
Total Other Expenses 62,483.82 40,111.02
32, Exceptional Items
Exchange Fluctuation (15.05) (0.36)
Total Exceptional Items (15.05) (0.36)
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33. Composite Scheme of Arrangement

1. Composite Scheme of Arrangement (here in after referred to as ‘Scheme’) amongst Jindal Stainless Limited
Transferor Company / JSL} and its three wholly owned subsidiaries namely Jindal Stainless (Hisar) limited
(ISHL), Jindal United Steel Limited {JUSL) and lindal Coke Limited (ICL) under the provision of Sec 391-394
read with Sec 100-103 of the Companies Act, 1956 and other relevant provision of Companies Act, 1956
and / or Companies Act, 2013 has been sanctioned by the Hon'ble High Court of Punjab & Haryana,
Chandigarh vide its Order dated 21st September 2015, modified by arder dated 12th October, 2015.

Section Il of the Scheme comprising Transfer of the Business Undertaking 2 (as defined in the Scheme) of
the Transferor Company comprising, inter-alia, of the HSM Plant of the Company Located at Odisha and
vesting of the same with Jindal United Stee! Limited (JUSL) on Going Concern basis by way of Slump Sale
w.e.f. appointed date, i.e. close of business hours before midnight of March 31, 2015. Section H! of the
Scheme has become effective on 24th September 2016 [i.e. on receipt of approvals from the Orissa
Industrial Infrastructure Development Corporation (OlIDCO) for the transfer/grant of the right to use in the
land on which HSM Plants are located, to JUSL as specified in the Scheme].

2. Pursuant to the Section Il of the Scheme becoming effective:

a) Business undertaking 2 have been transferred by way of slump sale to and vested in the company with
effect from the said appointed date, i.e. close of business hours before midnight of March 31, 2015.

b) Business undertaking 2 has been transferred at a lump sum consideration of 241,267.33 Lakhs; (out
of this ¥215,000.00 Lakhs shall payable by the transferee company in cash, out of which X208,321.00
Lakhs paid by the company during the Financial Year 2016-17 & X 6,679.00 Lakhs paid by the company
during the Financial Year 2017-18) and against the balance amount of X26,267.33 Lakhs, the company
had to issue & allot to the transferor Company 8,76,73,311 nos. 10% non-cumulative non-convertible
redeemable preference shares having face value of X 10 each which has been issued during the year
2016-17 and 17,50,00,000 nos. 0.01% non-cumulative compuisorily convertible preference shares
having face value of X 10 each out of which 4,38,68,919 Issued and converted to equal no. of equity
share of X 10/- each at par during Financial Year 2016-17 and remaining 13,11,31,081 issued during the
financial year 2018-19, out of which 1,42,47,286 converted to equal no. of equity share of X 10/- each
at par during financial year 2018-19 and 4,09,32,432 converted to equal no. of equity share of X 10/-
each at par during financial year 2019-20 and 1,22,97,300 converted to equal no. of equity share of X
10/- each at par during financial year 2020-21 as specified in the Scheme.

¢) On transfer of Business Undertaking 2, the difference between the fair values of assets and liabilities
transferred to and vested in the Company and the lump sum consideration paid/to be paid as stated
above, amounting to $242.78 Lakhs has been considered to Goodwill.

3. Interms of the Scheme as stated above, all the business and activities of Business Undertaking 2 has been
carried on by JSL on or after the appointed date in trust in so far as may be necessary until all rights
license/permits stands fully developed.

4, IDCO (vide letter dt. No. IDCO:HO:P&A:LA-E:3642(V)/03-16/20731 Dt 24.09.2016) has given permission
for sub-lease of 382.02 Acres of land at Duburi, Dist- Jajpur, Odisha by JSL to JUSL. Accordingly JSL has
entered into long term Sub-lease of land to JUSL.

34. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of
advances) is X 16,837.90Lakhs (?1 432 01Lakhs as at 318 March 202;1 N
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JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

35. Exceptional item Includes Gain/ (Loss) (net) of (X 15.05 Lakhs), (previous year: net loss X 0.36 Lakhs) on
translation/settlement of foreign currency manetary items.

36. Based on the intimation received from supplier regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the required disclosure is given below * : '

(% in Lakhs)
Sl.No. | Particulars As at 31.03.2022 | As at 31.03.2021
1 Principal amount due outstanding 612.62 32441
Interest due on (1) above and unpaid 1.55 0.27

2

3 Interest paid to the supplier -
4 Payments made to the supplier beyond the - -
appointed day during the year.
Interest due and payable for the period of delay - -
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid 1.55 0.27
7 Amount of further interest remaining due and - ‘ -
payable in succeeding year

* To the extent information available with the company.

wn

2]

37. In the opinion of board, assets have a realizable value, in the ordinary course of business at least equal to
the amount at which they are stated.

38. Segment Reporting
Company has only one eligible business segment i.e. Steel Products.

39. Related Party Transactions

In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24, on related party disclosures, name of the related party,
related party relationship, transactions and outstanding balances including commitments where control
exits and with whom transactions have taken place during reported periods, are:

A. Key Management Personnel (KMP}):

St. Name Designation
No.
1 | Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta CFO (ceased w.e.f 07.10.2020)
2 | Mr. Akhand Kirty Company Secretary
3 | Mr. Rahul Himatsingka Wholetime Director
4 | Mr. Narinder Dhankar ' CFO (appointed w.e.f 01.11.2020)
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B. Related Parties :

Principal
place of % Shareholding/Voting
S| operation Principal Power
NO’ Name of the entity in the Group / Country | Activities/Nature
’ of of Business As at As at March
Incorpora March 312021
tion 31,2022 !
{i) | Holding Company:
OP] Steel Trading Private ,
Limited.(w.e.f. 27th December, India Trading of steel 74.00% 74.00%
2016

Entity Having Significant influence
over the company

U]

lindal Stainless Limited India Stainless Steel 2600% | 26.00%
manufacturing

Stainless Steel

Jindal Stainless(Hissar) Limited India manufacturing
C. Related Party Transactions {X in Lakhs)
sl . Shareholding Company
Particulars
No.
2021-22 2020-21
1 | Purchase of Goods 74,792.60 | 39,632.29
Jindal Stainless Ltd 74,792.60 | 39,614.90
Jindal Stainless{Hissar) Limited - 17.39
2 lob charges paid 47.48 -
Jindal Stainless Ltd 47.48 -
3 | Sale of Goods 35,569.11 | 13,988.03
Jindal Stainless Ltd 4,123.39 1,826.24
Jindal Stainless(Hissar) Limited 31,445.72 | 12,161.79
4 | Job work Charges-Received 1,16,154.18 | 84,631.86
Jindal Stainless Limited 1,16,154.18 | 84,631.86
g Sh?mng of Exp. Reimbursed/to be €3.20 20.89
Reimbursed ,
Jindal Stainless Ltd 63.20 20.89
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6 | Support Service Charges Paid 7,405.68 4,979.22
Jindal Stainless Ltd 7,405.68 4,979.22
2 Security deposit repaid 20,464.00 -
Jindal Stainless Ltd 20,464.00 -
8 | Interest paid 737.00 737.00
lindal stainless limited 737.00 737.00
D. Related Party Balances: (X in Lakhs)
Si. Shareholding Company
No Particulars As at 31 As at 31%
) March, 2022 | March, 2021
1 Equity Share Capital / Preference Share
Capital:
(i) | Equity Share Capital 46,160.83 42,844.59
Jindal Stainless Limited 12,001.84 11,139.59
OP] Steel Trading Private Limited 34,158.99 31,705.00
{ii) | 10% NCNCRPS 8,767.33 8,767.33
Jindal Stainless Limited 8,767.33 8,767.33
{iii} | 0.01% NCCC preference share 5,503.16 6,365.41
Jindal Stainless Limited 5,503.16 6,365.41
2 | Balance as at the end of the Year
Security Deposit receivable {Including . 20,464.00
Prepaid amount)
Jindal Stainless Limited* - 20,464.00
Receivable 2,049.40 456.48
Jindal Stainless{Hissar) Limited 1,270.83 456.48
Jindal Stainless Limited 778.57 ’
3 | Borrowings(inter corporate deposits) 6,700.00 6,700.00
Jindal Stainless Limited 6,700.00 6,700.00
4 | Payables - 4,068.77
Jindal Stainless Ltd{current Account Balance) - 4,068.77
Jindal Stainless{Hissar) Limited - -

* Dye to Implementation of Composite Scheme of arrangement. (Refer Note no.33)

Note: Above transaction does not include interest free security deposit of X 4,536 Lakhs payable to Jindal
Stainless Ltd as per infrastructure sharing agreement executed on 05th May, 2015, which is yet to be paid.
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E. Key Management Personnel (KMP)

{X in Lakhs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Short-Term benefits 127.36 143.90
Defined contribution plan
S# 4.74 4.84
Total 132.10 148.74

# as the liability for gratuity and leave encashment is provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a
whole, amounts accrued pertaining to key managerial personnel are not included above.

$ including PF, leave encashment paid and any other benefit.

40. Earnings Per Share (EPS) computed in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 33 “Earning Per

Share ",
{X in Lakhs)
iR Particulars As at 31.03.2022 | As at 31.03.2021
No.
a Net Profit/{Loss) after Tax as per Profit and Loss for basic EPS 14,848.33 -4135.32
b. Add : Interest Expenses on potential equity shares (net of tax) - -
c. Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax as per Profit and Loss for diluted EPS - -
d Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares for Basic EPS* 49,74,78,603 47,40,72,603
e Weighted average No. of Equity Shares for Diluted EPS 49,74,78,603 47,40,72,603
Basic EPS Per Share (in X)) 2.98 {0.87)
Diluted EPS Per Share { in X)) 2.98 {0.87)
Face Value Per Share (in X)) 10.00 10.00

*Including 55,031,563, 0.01% Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (NCCCPS) of
&10/- each (Previous Year-63,654,063 NCCCPS)

41. Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to manage finances for the Company’s operations. The Company has short term
current investments only. The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

i) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and
other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk
include loans and borrowings, deposits and investments. Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Interest
rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will ﬁuctuate ecause of
changes in market interest rates. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities hefd as’of March
31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. - .
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i) Credit risk .
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer

contract, leading to a financial loss.

iii} Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able ta meet its present and future cash and collateral
obligations without incurring unacceptable losses.

The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

Market Risk
The sensitivity analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of post-

employment benefit obligations provisions and on the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the
relevant Statement of Profit and Loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks.
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in foreign
currency exchange rates and interest rates. However, such effect is not material.

(a) Foreign exchange risk and sensitivity
The Company transacts business primarily in Indian Rupee, USD, Euro, CNY. The Company has foreign currency
trade payables and is therefore, exposed to foreign exchange risk, though not material.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity in the USD, Euro and CNY to the Indian Rupee with all other
variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax and other comprehensive income due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities is given below:

Foreign Exchange Risk And Sensitivity {Unhedged})

(X in Lakhs)
Effect on profit before Effect on profit before
particulars Change in currency | tax/preoperative expenses | tax/preoperative expenses
exchange rate For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31,2022 31,2021
usob +5% 84.65 (42.36)
-5% (84.65) 42.36
Euro +5% 116.00 3.20
-5% (116.0) (3.20)

The assumed movement in exchange rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market
environment.
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Summary of exchange difference accounted in Statement of Profit and Loss/preoperative expenses:

{X in Lakhs)
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars on on
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Net foreign exchange (gain) / losses shown as exceptional
item 15.05 0.36
Total 15.05 0.36

{b} Interest rate risk and sensitivity

The Comapny’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt
obligations with floating interest rates, any changes in the interest rates environment may impact future cost
of borrowing.

With all other variables held constant, the following table demonstrates the impact of borrowing cost on floating

rate portion of loans and borrowings.

(X in Lakhs)
Effect on profit before Effect on profit before
tax/preoperative tax/preoperative

expenses expenses

Increase /Decrease in For the Year ended 31 For the Year ended 31

Particulars Basis Points March 2022 March 2021

INR Borrowings +50 (1,021.13) (1,207.19)
-50 1,021.13 1,207.19

The assumed movement in basis points for interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable
market environment.

Interest rate & currency of borrowings
The below table demonstrates the borrowing of fixed and floating rate of interest:

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars For the Year For the Year
Ended 2021-22 | Ended 2020-21
Borrowing currency X ki
Total Borrowings 2,19,693.81 2,57,073.75
Floating Rate Borrowings 2,10,926.48 2,48,306.42
Fixed Rate Borrowings 8,767.33 8,767.33
Weighted Average Interest Rate (%) 9.94% 10.83%

(c) Commodity price risk and sensitivity
The Company is at present doing the major work on job work, so the commodity price risk is not materially
affected. Hence Commodity Price risk and sensitivity is not applicable.

Credit risk
The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks, mutual fund
instruments, C:F’
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Trade Receivable

The Company extends credit to customers in normal course of business. The Company considers factors such as
credit track record in the market and past dealings for extension of credit to customers. The Company monitors
the payment track record of the customers. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The
Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are
located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets.

As on 31.03.2022

Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment | Total
Not due | Less 6 1-2 2-3 More
than 6 | months - | years years than 3
months | 1year years

(i) Undisputed Trade | 1,518.48 | 2,954.32 | 12.38 1.86 0.03 11.53 | 4,498.60
receivables —~ considered good

{ii)Undisputed Trade - - - - - - -
Receivables ~  considered
doubtful

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - - -
considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - - -
considered doubtful

Total 1,518.4812,954.32 | 12.38 1.86 0.03 11.53 | 4,498.60

As on 31.03.2021

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment | Total
Not due | Less than | 6 months | 1-2 2-3 More
6 months | -1 year years years than 3
years
(i) Undisputed Trade | 1,093.04 20.09 458.34 0.03 11.53 - 1,583.03
receivables - considered
good
{ii)Undisputed Trade - - - - - -
Receivables - considered
doubtful
i Disputed Trade - - - - - -
Receivables considered good
{iv) Disputed Trade
Receivables considered - - - - -
doubtful '
Total 1,093.04 20.09 458.34 0.03 11.53 - 1,583.03

Financial instruments and cash deposits

The Company considers factors such as track record, size of the institution, market reputation and service
standards to select the banks with which balances and deposits are maintained. Generally, the balances are
maintained with the institutions with which the Company has also availed borrowings. Iﬁé,tbmpaqy\does not
maintain significant cash and deposit balances other than. : equared for its day to d operat&orfs\
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Liquidity risk

The Company’s objective is to; at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral
requirements. The Company relies on a mix of borrowings, capital infusion and excess operating cash flows to
meet its needs for funds. The current committed lines of credit are sufficient to meet its short to medium term
expansion needs. The Company monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient
cash to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing
facilities at all times so that the Company does not breach borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on
any of its borrowing facilities.

The table below provides undiscounted cash flows towards non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled
derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the

contractual maturity date.

For the Year ended 31 March 2022

{X in Lakhs)
Particulars
As at March 31, 2022
Carrying Less than 1-2 Year | 2-3 Year More than Total
Amount 1 Year 3 years
Interest bearing borrowings
{including current ]
maturities) 2,19,693.81 | 1,750.66 - -12,17,943.15 | 2,19,693.81
Trade payables 6,599.01 | 6,469.97 48.68 27.09 53.28 6,599.01
Other liabilities 2,684.10 | 2,591.48 37.68 23.84 31.10 2,648.10
Total 2,28,976.92 | 10,812.11 86.35 50.93 | 2,18,027.53 | 2,28,976.92
For the Year ended 31 March 2021
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars
As at March 31, 2021
Carrying | Less than 12 Year | 2-3 Year More than Total
Amount 1 Year 3 years
Interest bearing borrowings
(including current
maturities) 2,57,073.75 745.07 - -{2,56,328.68 | 2,57,073.75
Trade and other payables 7,869.19 | 7,796.55 22.74 8.13 41.77 7,869.19
Other liabilities 2,816.28 | 1,805.04 110.11 882.09 19.04 2,816.28
Total 2,67,759.22 | 10,346.66 132.85 890.22 | 2,56,389.49 | 2,67,759.22

us




JINDAL UNITED STEEL LIMITED

The Company is required to maintain ratios {including total debt to EBITDA / net worth, EBITDA to gross interest,
debt service coverage ratic and secured coverage ratio) as mentioned in the loan agreements at specified levels.
in the event of failure to meet any of these ratios these loans become callable at the option of lenders, except
where exemption is provided by fender.

Competition and price risk

The Company faces competition from local and foreign competitors. Nevertheless, it believes that it has
competitive advantage in terms of high quality products and by continuously upgrading its expertise and range
of products to meet the needs of its customers.

Capitatl risk management
The Company aim to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern
and to optimise returns to our sharehoiders.

The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key
elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion
to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. in order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company’s policy is ta maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to
maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its
business. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital
structure.

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital which is given as
under:-

Gearlng Ratio
(X in Lakhs])

Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31,2021
Loans and horrowings 2,19,693.81 2,57,073.75
{ess: Cash and cash equivalents 364.74 563.85
Net debt 2,19,347.07 2,56,509.86
Total capital 61,571.65 42,723.95
Capital and net debt 2,80,918.72 2,99,233.85
Gearing ratio 78% 85%

In order to achieve this overall ohjective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define
capital structure requirernents. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches of the financial covenants of any interest
bearing loans and borrowing for reported periods. :
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42. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial
instruments that are recognised in the financial statements

{X in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2621
Particulars Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
amount amount
Financial assets designated
at fair value through profit
and foss*
Investment {In mutual
funds - current} 7,563.33 7,563.33 7,525.12 7,525.12
financlal assets designated
at fair value through OC{*
Investment (In shares - non
current) 14.02 14.02 4.67 4.67
Financial assets designated
at amortized cost
Fixed Deposits BR4.09 884.09 848.86 848.86
Cash and cash equivalents 346,74 346,74 563.89 563.89
‘Trade Receivabie 4,498.60 4,498.60 1,583.03 1,583.03
Other Financial Assets 681.18 681.18 2,868.76 2,868.76
13,987.96 13,987.96 13,394.33 13,394.33

Financial liahiiities
designated at amortized
cost
Borrowings- fixed rate 8,767.33 8,767.33 8,767.33 8,767.33
Borrowings- floating rate 2,10,926.48 | 2,10,926.48 | 2,48,30642] 2,48,306.42
Trade payables 6,599.01 5,599.01 7,86%.19 7,869.19
Other financial liabilities 2,684.10 2,684.10 2,816.28 2,816.28

2,28,976.92 1 2,28/976.92| 2,67,758.22{ 2,67,759.22

*all the expenses carried to expenditure during construction period forming part of Capital Work in Progress.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned
above. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liabifity takes place either:

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
technigues as follows:

» Level 1: Quoted prices/NAV for identical instrurnents in an active market;

» Level 2: Directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

« Level 3; inputs which are not based on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities which are measured at fair vatue a5 at Balance Sheet date.
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When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair vatue of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair vaiue measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the fowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The Company recognises
transfers between levels of the falr value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change
has occurred.

The following table provides the fair vaiue measurement hierarchy of Company's asset and liabilities, grouped
into Level 1 to Level 2 as described below:

Assets [ Liabilities measured at fair vaiue {Accounted)
{%X In Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2071
Levell jLevel2 | Level3 | Levell | Level 2| Level3

Particulars

Financial assets

Investment
- In shares - Non-current 14.02 - - 4.67 - -
- In mutual funds - curreat | 7,563.33 - - 7,525.12 - -

Assets [ Liabilities for which falr value is disclosed:

(X in Lakhs)
i As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 | Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Liabillties

-Borrowings - Fixed

Rate i 8,767.33| ] 8,767.33 i
Other Financial

Liabilities i 2,684.10| ) 2,816.28 )

During the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, there were no transfers between Level 3 and Level
2 fair value measurements, and no transfer into and out of Leve! 3 fair value measurements, There is no
transaction/balance under level 3,

Following table describes the valuation techniques used and key inputs for valuation under fair value hierarchy
as of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 respectively:
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s} Assets/ Liabitities measured at fair vaiue{accounted)

Quantitative
Fair Valuation information
Particulars value Inputs used about significant
. technique
hierarchy unchservable
inputs
Financial assets
Investment in Mutual Funds- Level 1 Market As per NAV of
Current Valuation Mutual Fund i
techniques
Investment in Quoted Equity Level 1 Market Quoted price in
Shares Valuation Stock Exchange
techniques -
by Assets / Liabilitles for which fair value is disclosed
Particulars Fair Value Valuation inputs Used
Hierarchy Technique
Financial Liabilities .
Other Borrowings ~ Fixed | Level 2 Discounted Cash | Prevailing interest rates in
Rate Flow market, Future pay-outs
Other Financial Liabilities Level 2 Discounted Cash | Prevailing interest rates to
Flow discounted Future cash flows

43. Income tax expense

For the year

Far the year

Adjustments in respect of income tax of previous year

: Particulers ended March ended March
31,2022 31,2021
Current Tax --
Deferred Tax
Relating to Origination and reversal of temporary differences 6,028.39 (2,266.87}
6,028.39 (2,266.87)
Tax Expenses attributable to current year's profit 6,028.39 (2,266.87)

MAT

MAT Credit entitlement
MAT Credit entitlement-Prior Period

Total tax Expenses

(2,266.87)
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Effective Tax Rate {ETR) reconciliation
A reconciliation of the theoritical income tax expense/ {benefit) applicable to profit/ (loss) before income tax at
the statutory tax rate in india to the income expense/ (benefit) at the Company’s effective tax rate is as follows:

{X in Lalkhs}
sl
No, Description ) 2021-22 2020-21
Net Income/(Loss) before taxes 20,877.22 {6,402,19}
Enacted tax rate 25,168% 34.944%
Computed tax (Income)/Expense 5,254.38 {2,237.18}
increasef{reduction) in taxes on account of:
1 Tax related to change of tax rate 845.56 -
b Tax related to earlier period - -
3 Permanent Disatlowance {71.55} {29.69)
income tax Expense/{Income) reported 6,028.39 (2,266.87)
44, Deferred income tax
The analysis of deferred tax expenses/ {income) is as follows:
{% In Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 3%, 2022 March 31, 2021
Book base and tax base of Fixed Assets {16,653.29} 27,816.70
(Disallowance}/ Allowance {net) under Income Tax {2,094.92) (526.59})
:;n::ncial asset & financial liabilities measured at amortized 279.27 (287.32)
Brought forward losses set off 24,496.93 (29,261.47)
Total 6,027.99 {2,258.68)
45. Retirement Benefit Obligation
1. Expense recognised for Defined Contribution plan
{X in Lakhs}
] For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Company's contribution to provident fund 115.98 106,71
| Company's contribution to ESI 1.69 0.99
Company's contribution to superannuation fund - -
Total 117.67 107.70

Below tables sets forth the changes in the projected benefit obligation and plan assets and amounts
recognized in Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, being the respective measuremeant

dates:

{Se
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2. Movement in Defined benefit obligation

a) Gratuity

{X in Lakhs)

. Gratuity {Unfunded) as | Gratuity {unfunded}

Particulars on 31.03,2022 as on 31.03.2021
Present value of the obligation at the beginning of 23776 234.38"
the year
Interest cost 16.17 15.98
Current service cost 32.02 29.02
Acquisition adjustment - IN 0.29 3.44
Benefits paid (5.45) {9.39)
Acquisitions / Transfer in/ Transfer out - {15,24}
Re-measurements - actuarial loss/ {gain) 10.92 {20.44)
Present value of the obligation at the end of the 291.71 237.76
year
b) Leave Encashment (Compensated Absence)

{X in Lakhs)

Leave Encashment Leave Encashment
Particulars {unfunded) as on {unfunded} as on
' ) 31.03,2022 31.03.2021

Present value of the obligation at the beginning of 139.45 137.13
the year
Interest cost 9.48 9.35
{Current service cost 20,22 20,34
Benefits paid {(32.95} {33.70)
Acquisitions / Transfer in/ Transfer out - {2.01)
Acquisition adjustment - IN 0.24 3.73
Re-measurements - actuarial loss/ (gain) 17.39 4.61
\i:;Zient value of the ohligation at the end of the 153.83 139.45

3. Movement in Plan Assets — Gratuity

{X in Lakhs)

For the year ended March

Parti
articulars 31, 2022

For the year ended March
31,2021

Fair value of plan asse{s at beginning of year -

Expected return on plan assets -

Employer contributions -

Benefits paid -

Amount received on redemption of plan assats -

Acquisttions / Transfer in/ Transfer out -

Actuarial gain / (loss) -

Fair value of plan assets at end of year -

Present value of obligation

237.76

Net funded status of plan

(237.76)

Actual return on plan assets
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The companents of the gratuity &leave encashment cost are as follows:

4. Recognised in profit and loss/Pre-operative expenses

a) Gratuity {X in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended on fFor the year ended on 31st
31st March 2022 March 2021
Current Service cost 32.02 29,02
interest cost 16.17 1598
Expected return on plan assets - -
Re-measurement - Actuarial foss/{gain)} - -
Past service cost - -
Expenses recognized in Pre operative expenses 48.19 45.00
Actual return on plan assets - -
b) Leave Encashment {Compensated Absence) {% in Lakhs)
. For the year ended on For the year ended on 31st
Particulars 31t March 2022 March 2021
Current Service cost 20.22 20.34
Interest cost 9.48 9.35
Expected return on plan assets - -
Re-measurement - Actuarial loss/{gain) 17.3% 4.61
Past service cost - -
Expenses recognized in P&L Afc 47.09 34.30
5. Recognised in other comprehensive Income
(X In Lakhs)
. Gratuity for the year ended on | Gratuity for the year ended on
Particulars
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Re-measurement - Actuarial loss/{gain) 10.92 {20.44)

6. The principal actuarial assumptions used for estimating the Company’s definad benefit ohligations are set
out below:

. As of As of

Weighted average actuarial assumptions 31st March, 31st March, 2021
2022
Attrition rate NA NA
Discount Rate 7.18% . 6.80%
Expected Rate of increase in Compensation levels 5.50% 5.50%
Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets NA NA
Mortality rate 100% IALM 100% IALM {2012-14)
(2012-14}

Expected Average remaining working lives of employees
{years) 18.16
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The assumption of future salary increase takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors such as supply and demand in employment market. Same assumptions were considered for
comparative period i.e. 2018-19 as considered in previous [-GAAP an transition to IND AS,

7. Sensitivity analysis:

a) Gratulty (X in Lakhs}
. Effect for the Effect for the year
. Change in year ended on
Particulars Assumption 31st March ended on
2022 3istiMarch, 2021
Discount rate 0.5% {17.15) (15.00)
(0.5)% 18.74 16.46
Salary Growth rate 0.5% 18.69 16.59
{0.5)% (17.23) {15.25)
b} Leave Encashment {Compensated Absence) (X in Lakhs}
Effectforthe | et for the year
\ Change in year ended on
Particulars Assumption 31st March ended on
P ' | 31stMarch, 2021
2022
Discount rate 0.5% {9.44) {9.19)
{0.5)% 10.18 10.00
Salary Growth rate 0.5% 10.36 10.11
{0.5)% {9.54) {9.27)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptians the same method
{projected unit credit method) has been applied as when calcuiating the defined benefit obligation recognised
within the Balance Sheet.

B. History of experience adjustments is as follows:

(% in Lakhs)
Particuiars Gratuity teave Encashment
For the year ended March 31, 2022
Plan Liabilities - {loss)/gain {24.98) (25.10)
Plan Assets - {loss}/gain - -
For the year ended March 31, 2021
Plan Liabilities - {loss}/gain 21.07 {4.19}
Plan Assets - (loss)/gain - -

Estimate of expected benefit payments {In absolute terms i.e. undiscounted)

For the year ended March 31, 2022 {% in Lakhs)
Particulars Gratuity Compensated Absence
Year-1 10.76 8.44
Year-2 534 2.92
Year-3 5.28 2,77
Year-4 25.97 13.62
Year-5 8.30 3.41
Year-6 5.53 0.58
Year-6 Onwards 226,52
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For the year ended March 31, 2021 {T in Lakhs)
Particulars Gratuity Compensated Absence
Year-1 5.00 6.13
Year-2 71.76 4.18
Year-3 4.32 2.55
Year-4 4.24 2.46
Year-5 20.41 11.14
Year-6 5.46 3.23
Year-6 Onwards 189.55 109.74
9. Statement of Employee benefit provision
(% In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Gratuity 291,70 237.75
Compensated absences 153.84 139.45
Other emplioyee benefits - -
Total 445.54 377.20

As at 31* March,2022

10. Current and non-current provision for Gratuity and leave encashment

{X in Laihs)

Particulars Gratuity | Leave Encashment
Current provision 10.76 8.44
Non-current provision 280.94 145.40
Totatl Provision 281.7G 153.84

As at 31% March,2021 {X in Lakhs)
Particulars Gratuity | Leave Encashment
Current provision 5.00 6.13
Non-current provision 232.75 133.31
Total Provision 237.75 135.44

1l. Employee benefit expenses

{X in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
Employee benefit expenses March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries and Wages 2,831.85 2,391.23
Costs-defined benefit plan 134.00 122.82
Welfare expenses 33.33 32.36
Total 2,999.18 2,546.41
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The following table sets out the funded status of the plan and the amounts recognised in the Company’s balance
sheet.
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(Figure in No.)

Particul For the year ended March 31, For the year ended March 31,
articulars 2022 2021
Average na of people employed 303 300

OCi presentation of defined benefit plan

-Gratuity is in the nature of defined benefit plan, Re-measurement gains/{losses) on defined benefit plans is
shown under QC! as itemns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss and also the income tax effect on the
same.

-Leave encashment cost is in the nature of short term employee benefits,

Presentation in Statement of Profit and Loss/ operative expenses and Balance Sheet

Expense for service cost, net Interest an net defined benefit liability (asset] is charged to Staterment of operative
expenses,

IND AS 19 do not require segregation of provision in current and non-current, however net defined Kability {
Assets) is shown as current and non-current provision in balance sheet as per IND AS 1.

Actuarial liability for short term benefits {leave encashment cost) is shown as current and non-current provision
in balance sheet.

When there is surplus in defined benefit plan, company is required to measure the net defined benefit asset at
the lower of; the surplus in the defined benefit plan and the assets ceiling, determined using the discount rate
specified, i.e. market yield at the end of the reporting period on government bonds, this is applicable for
domestic companiles, foreign company can use corporate bonds rate.

The Company assesses these assumptions with its projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry
standards. The mortality rates used are as published by one of the leading life insurance companies in India.

46."Due to outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 {COVID-19) which has been declared as a Pandemic by the
World Health Organization and subsequent lock down ordered by the Central and State Government(s) in
India, the manufacturing eperations of the Company were suspended from 25th March 2020, Subsequently,
the Company resumed operations in the phased manner while complying with the necessary
instructions/guidelines issued by relevant authorities. The Company is gradually ramping up its operations
depending upon the market conditions,
This Pandemic has disturbed the economic activities in the Country and the Company is closely monitoring
the impact on its operations and sustainability. The Company, as on the date of approval of these Financiat
Staterments, believes that this Pandemic may not have a significant adverse impact on the long term
operations and performance of the Company. "

QL
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47.0ther Disclosiires

a) Auditors Remuneration
{% in Lakhs)}

Particulars For the year For the year ended
ended 31* 31% March,2021
March, 2022
Statutory Auditors
a} Audit Fees 3.90 3.90
b) Tax Audit Fees 1.15 1.15
Total 5.05 5.05
Cost Auditor
a} Audit Fees 0.50 0.55
Total 0.50 0.55

b) The Company has not proposed any dividend to its shareholders during the year.

¢} The Company has not given any foan or given any guarantee with respect to the parties covered under
section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, The Company has made investments in one Company
cavered under section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 in one associate as depicted in Long Term
Investment Schedule.

4B. Additional Regulatory information

i.  The company does nat have any immovable property. Hence the disclosure requirenment is not
applicable.
{i. The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment as defined under rule 2 of the
Companies {Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rutes, 2017 during the year 2021-22 and 2020-21,
iii.  The company has not granted any loan to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as
defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person,

iv.  Ageing of Capital-Work-in Progress {CWIP) is as below:-

{a) Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP}
{Amount in Rs.}

Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
cwip Less than 1 2-3 More than 3
year 1-2 years years years
Projects in progress 46,32,58,811 | 59,63,259 - 1,61,58,085 48,53,80,156

v.  The company does not own any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Proh bition) Act,

1988 {45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder, RS
vi.  The Company does not have loan from banks or fln_ancnai institutions orﬁt(ﬁé' ‘basis of security of
current assets. o
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vii,  Company Is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.,
vili.  The company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.
ix. The company do not have any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of
Companies beyond the statutory period.
x.  The provisions related to number of layers prescribed under clause (87} of section 2 of the Act read
with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 are not applicable on the company.

xi.  Financial Ratios:-

5.No | Ratio 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21 % change Reason for variance more than 25%
Current ratia 2.00 1.64 0% Movement in ratio due ttf) increase in
1 Inventory and trade receivables
. . Movement in ratio due to loan repayment and
Debt- . X -
2 ebt- Equity Ratio 356 6.00 41% improvement in EBITDA
Cebt Service Movement In ratio due to lcan repayment and
3 | Coverage ratio 0.77 1.2 38% improvement in EBITDA
Increase In ratio as the company
Ret'urn on Equity 0.28 (0.11) 371% has earned profit for the year.as
ratic compared to net loss for previous
4 year.
inv'entory Turnover 6.91 3.30 110% Increase in ratio due to increase of cost of
5 { ralie goods sold
Increase in ratio due to lower
T
rade Receivg:ible 48,78 95.9§ -49% | recelvables and increase in
Turnover Ratio
& turnover.
Trade Payab!? 330 118 179% increase in ratlo due to increase of cost of
7 | Turnover Ratio goods sold
Net Capital :
8 | Turnover Ratio 2.43 213 14% | Not applicable
Increase in ratio is due to Increase
Net Profit rati -3 . . .
9 et Profit ratio 0.10 {0.05) % in profitahility of the company.
Return on Capitat 933 increase in ratio is due to increase
10 | Employed {0.01) {0.12} in profitability of the company,
Return on 0.04 0.02 61% Increase in ratio due to Income from mutuat
12 | lnvestment fund investment

Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows :

{a) Current Ratio : Current assets / Current liabilities
(b} Debt Equity Ratio : Total Debt/ Net Worth

Total Debt : Secured Loans + Unsecured Loans - Liquid Investments

Net Worth : Equity Share Capital + Reserves (Excluding Revaluation Reserve)

{c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio - EBOIT / (Finance costs + Principal repayment of long term debt
during the period)

{dJReturn on Equity Ratio = Net Income/Shareholder’s equity

Net Income : Profit after tax
Shareholder’s equity : Equity Share Capital + Reserves (Excluding Revaluation Reserve)

(e} tnventory turnover ratio : {Cost of material consumed + Purchase of stack- m-tradet T
Changes in inventaries}/{average of opening and nio'%mg 1ﬁi)é'\
of RM, SFG, FG and Scrap}
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(f)Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Net Credit Sales / [Average of opening and closing trade receivable

for the period)

{g) Trade payables turnover ratio ; (Cost of material consumed+ Purchase of stock-in-trade+

Changes in inventories )/ {Average of cpening and
closing trade payable for the year)

{h} Net capital turnover ratio ; Total Turnover / Shareholder’s equity

Shareholder’s equity : Equity Share Capital + Reserves {Excluding Revaluation Reserve)
{i} Net Profit ratio : Net Profit/Total income

(i) Return on Capital employed: EBIT/ Capital employed

EBIT ; (Profit before tax + finance cost)

Capital emplfoyed : {Total Assets - Current Liability)

xil.

Xii.

Xiv,

V.
xXvi,

At its meeting held on 28 January, 2022, the Board considered and approved a Composite Scheme
of Arrangement pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of Companies Act,
2013, amongst the Company and Jindal Coke Uimited ('Scheme'}. The aforementioned Scheme is
subject to necessary statutory and regulatory approvals under applicable lfaws, including approval
of the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Banch (“"NCLT).

The company has not advanced/ loaned/ invested funds (borrowed/share premium/any other
sources of kind of funds) to any other person{s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities
{intermediaries), with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
intermediary shall {a) directly/ indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any
manner by or on behalf of the company {ultimate beneficiaries) or {b} provide any guarantee,
security or the iike to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiarles,

The company has not received any funds from any other person(s) or entity(ies), inciuding foreign
entities {Funding Party), with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that
the company shall {a) directly/ indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
man#ner by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate benefictaries) or (b) provide any guarantee,
security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

No income has been surrendered or disclosed for which transaction was not recorded in the books
of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the incame Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961},

CSR provisions under section 135 of the Companies Act are not appiicable to this company.

There is no transaction related to Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency. Hence, Mot applicable,

49. Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever considered necessary to conform to
current year's classification.

50. Fgures in bracket indicate previous year figures.
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51. Notes 1 to 50 are annexed to and form an integral part of financial statements.
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For N.C. Aggarwal & Co,
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N.C. AGGARWAL & CO.,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

102, Harsha house, Karampura Commercial Complex,
New Delhi-110 015, Ph: (0} 25920555-556 {R} 25221561

E-Mail:nc.aggarwal@gmail.com.nca®@rediffmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To
The Members of INDAL COKE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of JINDAL COKE LIMITED (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for
the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the [Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its loss, total comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rule there under, and we have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this Auditors’ Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does qver the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon, /7

B.0. 83-E, Model Town Hisar, Ph: Office: 01662-248757, Residence: 01662-247797
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

B.0. 83-E, Mode} Town Hisar, Ph: Office: 01662-248757, Residence: 01662-247797
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in

(i) Planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;

(ii) To evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure ‘A’ a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3} of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015;

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reportmg of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to Annexure ‘B’.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule

information and according to the explanations given to us:
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i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have any material financial
impact on the company as on March 31, 2022.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There is no amount payable towards investor education and protection fund in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 / the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder.

(h) The managerial remuneration for the year ended 31st March, 2022 has been paid/ provided for
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

(i) “As per the management representation we report,

(i) no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the company to or in any other
person{s) or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding that the intermediary shall whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of the company
{Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
ultimate beneficiaries.

(i)  no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entities including
foreign entities {("Funding Parties”) with the understanding that such company shall
whether, directly or indirectly, Iend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries} or
provide guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

(iii)  Based on the audit procedures performed, we report that nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations given under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
by the management contain any material misstatement,

(i) No dividend has been paid by the company.

For N.C. Aggarwal & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 003273N

G. K. Aggarwal
Partner

M. No.086622

Date: 29t April, 2022
Place: New Delhi
UDIN NO: 22086622AIGFAF704
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ANNEXURE "A’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Annexure referred to in our report of even date to the members of JINDAL COKE LIMITED on the
accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022)

1. a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b} A major portion of the PPE has been physically verified by the Management in accordance
with a phased programmed of verification once in three years adopted by the company. In our
opinion, the frequency of the verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
company and the nature of its assets. To the best of our knowledge, no material discrepancies
have been noticed on such verification.

c¢) The Company does not have any immovable property i.e, land in the name of the Company.
Therefore, para 3(i)(c) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its PPE and Intangible assets during the year. Hence, the
reporting requirement of para 3(i)}{d) of the order is not applicable to the Company.,

{e) As explained to us and as per the information and explanations furnished to us, no
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988. Hence, Para
3{i}(e} of the order is not applicable to the company.

2. (a) As explained to us, the management during the year has physically verified inventories. In
our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. No discrepancies of 10% or more in
the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed.

{b} As informed to us and as per the information and explanations furnished to us, the working
capital limit sanctioned by bankers on the basis of security of current assets and the quarterly
returns or statements filed by the company with such banks are in agreement with the books
of account of the Company.

3. In our opinion and According to the information and the explanations given to us, the company
during the year has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Hence, the provisions of Para 3(jii) (a-f) of
the order are not applicable to the company.

4, The Company has not granted any loans or given any guarantee and security covered under
Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of
the order are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.
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According to the information given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits or
amounts which are deemed to be deposits under the provisions of section 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or any other relevant provisions of the companies Act and the Companies
{Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time. No order has been passed
with respect to Section 73 to 76, by the Company Law Board or Naticnal Company Law
Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other tribunal.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account and records maintained by the company
pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records
under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the company’s products and
are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed records have been made and maintained.
We have, however, not made a detailed examination of records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services tax, provident fund, employee
state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and
other statutory dues as applicable to the Company have generally been regularly deposited
with the appropriate authorities and there are no undisputed dues outstanding as at 31st
March, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

{(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material statutory
dues referred in aforesaid clause 7(a} which have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and as per the information and explanations furnished to us, there are no
unrecorded transactions or transactions disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act. Hence, the para 3(viii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

{2} In our opinion, on the basis of books and records examined by us and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loan
or other borrowing and payment of interest to any lender.

(b) in our opinion, and as per the information and explanation furnished to us, the Company is
not willful defaulter by any bank or other financial institution or any other lender.

{c} In our opinion and as per the information and explanation furnished to us, the term loan
availed were utilized for the purpose for which the loan were taken.

{d} On the basis of books and records examined by us, the company has not raised any short
term fund. Hence, Para 3{ix)(d) of the order not applicable to company.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

{e) On the basis of books and records examined by us, the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person to meet the obligation of its subsidiary.

{f) On the basis of books and records examined by us and as explained to us, the Company has
not raised loan during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary.

(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
or debt instruments. Hence, the para 3(x) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

{b} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or convertible debentures (fully, partly or optionally
convertible) during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

{(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the
Management and based on our examination of the books and records of the Company and in
accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have been informed that
no case of frauds by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported by the
Company.

(b} As informed to us and as per the information and explanation furnished to us, there was
no report in prescribed form ADT-4 under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Companies
Act,2013 required to be filed. Hence, the reporting para 3(xi}(b) of the order is not applicable
to the Company.

{c) No whistle blower complaints were received by the Company. Hence, the reporting para
3(xi}(c) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act, and where applicable the details
have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us. In our opinion and as per the
information and explanation furnished to us, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business. The report of the internal auditor
furnished for the period as submitted to us, was considered in framing the opinion,

The Company has not entered into any non- cash transactions wzth the directors or persons
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16.

17.

18,

19,

20.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to
be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly,
provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b} In our opinion and as explained to us by the management, the Company has not conducted
any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid certificate of
registration from Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(<) In our opinion and as per the information and explanation furnished to us, the Company is
not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulation made by the Reserve Bank
of India. Hence, the reporting para 3{xvi}(c) and (d} of the order is not applicable to the
Company. :

The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current financial year and in the
immediately preceding previous year.

There was no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year. Hence, the reporting para
3(xviii} of the order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and based on the books and relevant documents and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plan no material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date

The Company does not have any unspent CSR Expenditure. Hence, the para 3(xx) of the order

. is not applicable to the Company.

21,

There is no subsidiary, associate or joint venture of the Company. Therefore, the para with
respect to qualifications or adverse remark by the respective Auditor in the separate
Companies {Auditor's Report) Order {CARO) of the companies included in the consolidated
financial statements in, the reporting para 3(xxi) of the order is not applicable to the Company

For N.C. Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 003273N

G. K. Aggarwal
Partner

M. No.086622
Date: 29% April, 2022

Place: New Delhi
UDIN NO : 22086622AIGFAF7048
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Annexure referred to in our report of even date to the members of JINDAL COKE LIMITED on the
accounts for the year ended 31stMarch, 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JINDAL COKE LIMITED
("the Company”) as of 31st March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
and the components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note") and the
Standards en Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects. -

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal fingae{ghreqtrols system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31t March, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company and the components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For N.C. Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 003273N

e

G. K. Aggarwal
Partner

M. No.0B6622
Date: 29t April, 2022
Place: New Delhi
UDIN NO: 22086622AIGFAF7048
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SJNMDAL CORE LIMITED

MNotes to Financial Staterneants
1. Significent accounting polizies

A Corporste and General information

dindal Coke limited {"ICLY or “the Company”} s damiciied and incorperated in indiz. The Company is leading
manufacturer of coke and coke products at a faciiity with a rapacity of .43 million metric tonnes p.a. at Kalinga
Nagar Industrial Complex, Duburi, Jaipur, Gdishs. The Registered Offlce of the Company is lncated a1 0P Jindal

Marg, Hisar,

8. Basis of preparation

The financiat steternents have been preparad complying in all material respscts with the Indian Accounting
Standards {IndAS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the
015, The finarcial staternents comply with IND AS notified by Ministry of Company
¢ in the preparation for al}

Cornpanies {Accounts) Rule
Aftairs ("MCA”). The Company has consistently applied the accounting policies usad

periods presentad
The significant accounting policies used in pregaring the flirancial statements are sat out in Mote no 10 of the
MNotes to the Financia! Staternents

wation dated March 24, 2071, amended Dhvision § of

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {"PMCA"} through 8 nos
Schedula i of the Companies Act, 2013, These amendments sre applicable for the reporting period beginning
on or after April 1, 2021 The 2 nEnt SNCOMPAsSEs sig'zif cant additional disclosure reguirements and
includes certzin changes ic {h% a-?.lfists'ftg disclosures, The Company has ap z%sm and incorporated the
requirements of amended Division it of Schedule i of the Companies Act, 2012 whils preparing thess
standalone financial statements based on available information including exposure drafi of revised guidance
note on Division - ind AS schedule o the Companiss Act, 20101 issuad by the corporate laws & corporate

gavernance commities of the Institute of Chartered Accourdants India {ICAlL

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make esiinates and assumptions, Actust
results could vary fram these estimates. The astimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions 1o accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the
revision affects only thst period or In the perod of the revision and future periods if the revision aifects both

current and Tuture years {refer Note no.30) on Significant accounting estimates, assumptions znd judgemenis),

. Signdfioant Avcounting Policles

i} Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the acerus
convendon except for certain financis! assets andg =;rmw'ﬁ iz
of ezch reporting period, 35 stated in the accounting polivies set out below.

!h“’lrs ’f"ndt 08 MERSUTE: i at fair vaiues of the and
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it} Property, Plant and Equipment

a) For transition 1o IMD AS, the Company has elected to conlinue with the carrying value

of previous GAAP
for alt its tangible assels as of 15 April, 2006 {transition date} and usa that carrying value as

s deemed cost

an transition date.
Howevar, under the previous GAAP, the Company has fair velued all its Property Plant and Equipment on

transfer of busingss to the Company under Composite Schere of Arrangement [Refer Nate Mo, 300,

The company has done fair valuation of the Building and Plant and Machinery as velued by an independant
vafuer before close of business hours on 31.03. 2018, The assets are valued at depreciated replacement cost
basis and determined osing "Market Value” basis of valuation for tangible fixed Asset,

b} Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided as per guidance set out in Schedule I of the Companies
Act, 2013 on straight line method, on remaining Useful fife on transfer of Property, Plant and Equipment
under Composite Scheme of Arrangerment, However, in respect of ceitain Plant and Machinery, glectrical
instaliation and Factory Building, depreciation is provided as per thair useful Hves assessed an the bagls of
technical evaluation by the external valuer/iechnizal expert, 25 stated below,

Category of Assets
-Buiiding o
-Plent and Machinery

). Intengible Asse
TN tdantifiabile ntangible asseis are recognizad:

When ihe Ciiﬂ"i,mn} conirols the asset,
z.} itis probable that future gconomic benefies attributed o the gsset will flow to the Company and
i} The cost of the asset can be reliably measured.
Computer software’s zre capitalised at the amounis ,raaid g acgubre the
amartised ovar the period of license, genarally not exceeding five vears on straig
lives are reviowed at each financia! vear '*nd
Gaodwill is initially recognised at cost and is

respaciive license for use and are
ghtiine basis. The assels’ useful

sted for impeirment end of sach Finandial Year,

%

v lmpalrrment of non-current assets
ications of impaliment and

An asset is consid -*”ef? 2% impaired when at the date of Balance Sheat there are in

g unt of the asset, or where applicable the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs
@xceeds its recoverable amount (Le. the higher of the net assel sefling price and value in uselThe carrying
amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the reduction is recognized 25 an impairment loss in the
;tnrpn“ anit of Profit and Loss. The impairment lass recognized in the prior accounting period is reversed if there

s been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount. Post impairment, depreciation it provided on the

revised carrying value of the impaired ssset ovar its remaining useful life.

wil. Cash and cash equivelents

zt call with banks, other shori-term

it are readily convertible to 2 known
and zre held for the purpose of

Cash and cash equivalents includas Cash on h ndar&d at hank, deposits hele
highly liquid investmants with ariginal maturities of three months or less th
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of ¢
meating short-termy cash commitments,
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short term

For the purpose of the Statemeni ?Caf‘“ Flows, cash and cash squivalents consists of cash

yaLH

ms‘pcr:s:t as defined sbove, net of cutstanding bank overdraft as they are considered an integral part of the

Companw s cash imanagemant.

¥t veniorias

Inventories are valued a1 the lower of cost and net realizable value excent scrap, which is valued at nat realizable
vighue, Nat realisable value is the estimated sefiing price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
cessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories camgprises of cost of

of completion and the estimated costs ne
the inventories to their respective present

purchase, cost of conversion and other cosis incurred in bringing
westion and condition. Costis computad on the waighted average basis.

vili). Employes benefits

I} Short term emplovee benefits are recognized 23 an expense in the Swtement of Prefit and Loss of the yvaar in
which the related services are renderad.

cashment being 2 shor-term benefit s accounted for u <~M§g the Projected Unit Credit Method, on
st ench Belance Sheet date. Actuarizl gains

actuarial vc‘iua*mrs carried out by third party actuar
Hustments and changes in ag tuezrisei assumotions are charged or credived

oss i ’Lhe o .' in w%ua.: thay arizs

e statuie, and s

ined coniribution J‘dﬂ is rrrade in et

Hi Contribation to Provident Furid, a de

3% ah expense in the year i which ernployees have rendersd serv

v} The cost of groviding gratuity, o delined beneflt plang, is determined using the Projected Unit
o the basis of actuariat valuations carried out by third party actuaries st ezch Balance Shest
gatris and losses arising from experierce adjustments and changes in actuarial aszua‘nptmm are charped or

credited to Other Comprehensive income in the peried in which lhey grise. Other costs are accounted in

statemeant of profit and joss.
P

vi The Cenmpany's Habilily towards ermployee benefits such as gratuity, leave encashment, terminat benefits ato
is provided for on the basis of ecluariel velustion. Company does not sperate any Defined plan for Gratuivy;

hence, the Hability Is recognised br the books. The hability towards terminal henefit is un-funded,
ix}. Foreign currency reinstatement and wranslation

{4 Functionzl and presentation cumrency

The financial statements have been presented in indian Bugess, which is the Company's functional and
presentation curency.

ansactions and balanges
Transections in foreign currences are Ini !, recorded by the Company at rates prevailing at the date of the

& e
o, Subsequently monetary items rc translated at closing exc fmnga rates of belance shest date and
{in profit or loss, Differences arising on set ‘Lf&meni of menetary

¢
the resuiting exchange differente recognises
fems are aiso recognized in profit or loss.
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Non-monatary terms that sre measuced in terms of historical cost in 2 foreign currenty ara translated using the

ar

exchange rates al the dates of the traasaction. Mon-monetary tems carried at fair value that are denaminated
i foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates pravailing at the datg when the fair value was
£ is

determined. Exchange component of the gain or foss arising on fair valuation of noremonetary itams s
recogrized in fine with the gair or loss of the item that gave rise (o such exchange difference.

x} Financial instruments — initial recopnition, subseguent measurament and mpairment

& financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and g financial lisbility or
equity instrument of anpther entity. Financial essets snd Habilities arg initally messured at fobr value.
Transaction cost that are directly atiribuiable 1o the acguisition or issue of financial assets or financial Hanilties
{Orher than financial assets and financial Habilities at fair value through prefit and loss sccount) are added to or
deducted from falr value measured initial recognition of finandal assel or financiat lHability

Fipancial Assets and Habilities are messured at amortised cost or fair value through Other Comprehensive

ncome or fair value th 'such Profit or Loss, depending on 115 business model for managing those financizl asset
and lizbilities and the as and liabilities contractual cash flow cheracteristics.

5

Financial ancial assats are hald within a business

whose oby
firancial assets g
amount oulstanding.

s ang the contractugl terms of the

oayments of orincipat and interest

Financial Assels at falr value thyough other comprehansive Incoma

Financial assets are measured at falr value through other comprehensive income if these finandal assets are
held within a business whose ohjgctive s achieved by both collecting contractual cash Hows an specified datss
that ara seolely paymenis of principal and interest on the grincipal ameount ou I':slut’&t}mfx, and saliing financial

assels.
Financial assets at {alr value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measurad at folr value throughn orofit o loss uniess it is measured al smortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive incame on initial recognition. The ransaction cost dirgctly stliibutabie
to the scquisition of financizl assets and liability st falr value thorough profit or less are immediately recognised

fnprofit or toss.
Financial Lighilities
L wl trads pavables gre subseguently

Financial labllittes inchuding interest bearing loans and borrowings and
measured 21 amortised cost using the srfemw interest rate method {E18] except those fleslgﬂdiiﬂf inoan

effective hedging relationship.

Amoriised costis cakculated E_wi’mﬂg b0 account any discaunt or p;m:és, ar acquisition and fee or costs that
are an integrat part of the £ he EIR amortisation is included in fingnee gosts in the Statement of Profit and
Loss,
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Trade and other payables

A pavable is classified as "trade payabie’ if it i3 in respect of the amount due on account of goods parchased o
services recgived in the normal course of business. These amaounts reprasent liabilities for goads and services
srovided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are
presented as current labilities undess payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting peried. Thay are
recognised initially at their falr value and subsequently measured at amoriised cost using the effective interest
method.

xi} Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly altributable to the srouisition, canstruction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the peried of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its Intended use or sale, Qualifving assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial pericd of time to get

Pr

ready for their intended use or sale, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs

in connection with the borrowing of funds.
fnvestment income sarned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on

gualifying assets s deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for canitalisation.

For general borrowing used for the purpose of obtaining &
eligible for capitatization is determined by appiving a capitafiz a?‘ion rate to the expenditures on t
capéta? ation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to thr borrowings of th
that are cutstanding during the peried, other than borrowings made specificaliy § cI=hs
armount of borrowing costs capitalized during @ period does not s:m:“e the amount of

e
5]
=

4
i
iy
Hy
4
3
413

quaﬁf'fmg asset. The
rrgwirng cost incurred during that period.

fa
o

Al ather borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they oecur,

it Taxstion

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tex (including MATL s recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or ather
cc}f‘npr‘el'wamlveﬁ incomea, in such cases the tax is also recognised directly in equity or in mher comprehsnsive
incoma. Any subsequent change in direct tax on items knitially recognised in equity or ather comprehensive
mrome s also recoginised in equity or other comprehensive income, such change could ba for change in tax rate.

Current tax provision is computed for Income calculated after considering allowances and exemptions under
t

ke provisions of the applicaide income Tax Laws, Current tax assels and current fax labilitios are off set, and

prasented as net,
Deverred tax iy recognised on differences between the carryving amounts of assels and linhilities in the Bslance
sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accountad for using
the lizbility method. Deferred tax Habilities are cewmral’y recognised for all taxabie temporary differences, and
deferred tax assels are genarally recognised for alt deductible temporary differences, carry ferward tax losses

to the extent that it s probable thet future texable profits will be available agsinst which those

and sliowances
zrred tax assels

dedurtible tﬂmporﬂry differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be vtilised. Dafe

and labilities are messured at the applicable tox rates. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off

set, and presented as el

o

o

i
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reduced o the extent

The carrving amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed al each balance sheet date and 1
ternparary

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the
differences can be utilised,

Credit of MAT i recognised as an assel only when and o the extent there is convincing evidance that the
Comparny will pay normal income tax during the specified periad, Le., the periad for which MAT creditis allowed
1o be carried forward. fn the year in which the MAT credit bccomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, th

said asset s craated by way of a credit to the profit and losssccount and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The
Cornpany reviews the same at gach balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit
entitlernent to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal

income tex during the specified period.

xilf}. Revenue recognition from saia of products and services

Gale of Gopds

Revenue iz recognized at the falr valug of consideration received or receivable and represents the net invoice
vatue of goods supphed to third partles after deducting discounts, volume rebates and culgoing sales tax and
are recoghizad either on delivery or on transfer Of ﬁ}miﬁfzant risk and rewards of ownershin of the goods,

‘;u

Hevenue is inclusive of excise duty aidd net of VAT/GE

—

Sate of Services-Job work
ety sis of work performed ard rendering of servics a5 per

Revenue from job v

the terms of the spec

a certain volume or other

Pariodically, the Cornpany eaters into volume or cther rebate programs whare once
conditions are met, it refunds the customer some porm:m of the amounts }J"‘wseu by hitted or gaid. For such
arrangements, the Cormpany enly recognizes revenue Tor the amounts it Wtimately expecty to realize from the

customer. The Company estimates the variable consideration for these programs using the most Hikely amount
approach best predicts the amount of the consideration

method or the expecred value method, whichever
a and updates its estimates ineach reporting pariod,

based on the terms of the contract ang avellable informatio
Other Incoms
intarasi

Interest income is recognised
rate apphoable.

o @ time proportion basis faking into scocount the amount outstanding and the

®iwl, Earnings per share

ave calculated by dividing the net profit or 1035 for the year attributable to equity
ence dividends and attributable Gexes! by the weighted average number of
the vear, Fully convertible preference shares into fived number of equity

Basic =arnings per share 3

shareholders {after deducting prefe
souity shares outstanding during ¢

shares are considered for calculation of basic earning per share.

aleulsting diluted earnings per share, the net profit or foss for the yesr atiributable to eguity

Forthe purpose of ©
teet for the

snarehiolders and the weighted average number of shares puistanding during the vear are adius
!
HE

effects of all difutive polential equity shares, if any.
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Wl Frovisions end contingsncies

Provisions

Frovisions are cecognised when the Company has s present obligation (legal or constructive} 23 o result of 2 past

7 outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required fo seitie the
chiigation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the ebligation. if the effect of the time value
af money is maierial, provisions are ciiswumted using equivalant period government segurities interest rate,
sised in the Statement of Profit end Loss as 3 finance cost: Provisions are

Unwinding of the discount is recognis
reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

event, it is probable that g

Contingeancies

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is  possible abligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be cunfirmed only by the scourrence or nen-cccurrence of one o more uncertain Future evenis not
wholly within the contrel of the Company or 2 present obligation that arises from past evenis where 1 s either
be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannet

not probable that an cutfow of resources will b
Finsncial Statements. Contingent

be made. infarmation on contingeni Hability is disclosed in the Notes to the
assets are not recognised, However, when the reafisation of income is virtually «

certain, then the related asz

nolonger 3 contingent asset, but i is secognised as an asset.

w0
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[
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nt of financial position based on currentfmon-culrrent

The Campany has gresented noa-<

urrent asseis and current assels before eguity, non-current liahilities and
current liabilities in accordanece with Schedule H, Division i of Companies

=5 Act, 2013 notified by MCA

An asset s classified as current when itin
a) Expected (o be reglised of intended to be sald or consumed In normal aperating cycle,
bl Held primarily for the purpose of rading,

) Expeacted to be reslised within cwa}ve months after the reporting period, or

dj tricted fraom being exchanged or used to settle a lisbility for s

Cash or cash equivalent unlass ras
twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assels are classified as non-current.

A Habilit i,f is classified a3 current when:
3l It is expected to be setled in normal operating cyele,
by 1t is held primarily for the purpose of trading,
c} it is due to he settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d}  There is no uncoenditional right 1o defer the settlement of the lizbility for at lsast twelve months 3
the reporiing period.
All other Habilities are flawme‘a a5 non-cur
The eperating eyele is the Yme between t

¢ash equivaients.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are cla:
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ase, at inception of & contract. A contract is, or

The Cormpany assesses whether a contrack is of contains a lea
asset for a period of time in

contzing, 2 lease i the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
axchangs for consigeration.

To assess whether s contract conveys the right 1o coniro! the use of an ideptified agset, the Company assesses
whether:

{H] The contract involves the use of an identified asset

n

} The Cormpany has substantially a¥f of the economic benefits from use of the asset tough
ease and

{it
e

{lit} The Company has the right to direct the use of the ssset,

wviih. Bacent accounting pronguncements

Maw and smendsd standards applied
Ea

he foliowing smendments to ind A% for the first thme for their ann

= Extension of COVID-19 reiated concessions - amendments o ind AS 116
# interest rate benchmark reform - m,ocf:"f 1Es to ind AS 109, Finoncial Instruments, Ing 45 107, Financiad

i

instruments: DMsclosures, Ind AS 104, Insurance Contracts and Ind AS 118, Leases

The amendments lsted above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior pariods and are not

Ministry of Corporate affairs ["MCA"Y) has vide notification deted 23 March 2072 notified Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards] Amendment Rules, 2022 which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective
1 Aprit 2022, These amendments are not expectad to have a material impact on the group in the current or
future reparting periods and on Foresezable future trensactions.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"} amended the Schedule [ o the Companies Act,
to incresse the transparency and provide additiona! disclosures to users of finar
pmandments are effective from T Apnt 2021

Consequent to above, the group has changed the classification/preseniation of
1) current maturities of long-term borrowings

(51) security deposiis, in the current vear

The current i?‘*aﬂjﬂllf% of lpng-term borrowings {(inchuding interest scorued) has now been ingluded in the

“Current imzrmmr:;;s line ftem, Previously, current maturities of long-term borrowings and inferest accruad
ath

U!

ci, 2013 on 24 March 2021
?\

| statements. These

were included i er financial lighilities' ine item.
Further, security deposits [wiich meet the definition of 8 financial asset as per ing A5 32) nave beeninciuded in
‘other financial agsets’ ling item, Previously, these deposits were included in ‘lsans’ Hine itern.

18
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a0 Significant accounting estimates, sssumptions and mdgament

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, maragement has made the following
estimetes,assumptions and judgements, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
staternent:

{1} Property, plant and equipment
Externa! adviser or internal technical team assess the rermaining useful ves and residuai value o cmmrm:'t;, plant

and equipment. Management believes that the assigned usefu! fives and residual value are reasonable, the
estimates and assumptions made fo determine depreciation are crifical to the Company's financial position and

performance.

{if} Income taxes

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income texes and deferred tax assels and
Habilities. The Company reviews at each halance sheel date {% e carrying amount of deferrad tax assets. The
factors wused in estimates may differ from aciual outcome which could lead to significan "*justm n o the
amounts reportad in the financial statements.

(i} Contingancies

Management judgems ; ¢ possible outflow of resources, if any, In respect of
comtingencies/claim /i fg,a‘%’zs'c nis against the Company a5 i is not pessible to predict the outeome of pErding
matiers with acouracy.

(v} Fair value of financial assers m-:% Lishilities

when the fair value of financial assets and financial labilities recorded in the halance sheet cann rat be measuraed

basad on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value s measured using valuaton technigues including the

Discounted Cash Flow (OCF) medel The input to these models ar@ talcers rorn observable markets whare
2, but where thig iy not feasible, o degree of judgement is reguired in 8stabl shing fair value, judgements
s liguidity risk, credit risk and vo a’tlluy Changes in assumptions about these

possi
nciude consideration of input such z
actars coula affect the reported fair value of financis! instrurmenis

my

{v] Defined benefit plan
The cost of the defined benefit olan and other pust-employment henefits and the present velue of such
are determined using actuaria! valuations. An actuarial valuztion frvoives making various
the deiermination of the
53

ooligation
gssumptions that may differ from sctue! develapments in future, These includes
discount rale, future salary increases, monality rates and attrition rate. Due (o the complexities involved in
valugtion and s long-term nat defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in thes
assumptions. All zssumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

g 2
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JIMDAL COXE LIMITED
Motes to Financia! Statemenis

3. Goodwil

¥ i Lakhs

Farticuiars

Soodwiil* ! .

Total

Gross Block

As at March 21,2020

1,168,34 |

Additions
jDispaosal

As at March 31,2021

i;lﬁﬁ.ﬂ’ﬁ}

adcitions
Dizposal

Az 3t March 31,2022

1,168.34

Accumulated Depreciation

AS 2t March 34, 2078

Charge for the year
Disposal

PAz gt Mareh 21,2621

Charge for the yesr

Disnosut

Az at March

Met carrying amaount

[Ag ot March 34,3094

1,166,324

1,266,234

A ot March 34,3097

1L, 16%.34

1,168,324

#Rafer nole no 31 1230

34, Intangible Assais

% in Lakhy

Particulars

E

Softwara

Totsl

SGrogs Block

As at March 31,2058

1,18

3118

additions

Cispogatl

A% Al March BE, 2021

additions

Disposal

Ag at March 24,3622

Accuwmulated Gepreciation

As at March 34,1020

Charge lor the year

Disposal

As at March 31,2023

Charge for the year
[ Disposal

Az st March 31,2022

et cartrying amownt
I

As at March 33,2022

A5 % March 33,3023
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SEMDAL COWE LIMITED
NOTES 7O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FLMDAL CONE LIMITED
MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

. . i Lakns
Fartinuiae A5 Y A an
J— oo e Mprph 23, 3023 Hproh 31, 2035

B TRAQE RROEIVARLES

A,732.84

RIS - Lradil vy 43,41
iGEZE. T 4,808 7%
JES s {31,413

ACLAN7 .37 4,782,458

I631-32 .

Tolinveng garods (rof Gue Uaie of papmant
20 yRars 23 years Merathns 3 yeocy Tabsl

Particolzrs - IIRE] o
Lezs than & 6 months -1 yel
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alieg - PN
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-

censiderad aond
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JIMDAL COKE LIMITED
NOTES 7O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bl Lateds

Porticulars

AL A
Brecii 33, 2023

k. S

CAPITAL

{2) Authorigued
35050, 650 5,560,450, 000) Snuity

PLPTOLGNT (11,7 1,00.00

ok e 7L

i Brgfarence $hasas of ¥

355 wach

Freilp Faia-Up

ERGTREFS

iB) Irsued, Subscriba

J2,38,437 03,34,

a

aad
3
}

Eguily Siates of

{c} Racancifiation of the number of ity stearns:
SnEres oulstandu s ot e Bsginsieg W the vear
A Sharey wsuc turing the year

ar

Bhoves puistending 35 a4 the end of thy yeur

(4} RecoaciBiation of the number of NCGORE:
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POTIPS oatstanding ity pb tha wad of the yek

(o} Durathy of Shae Radd by helflng company

te Prafmrense Slaen s (ROSEPS;

el Hhs vkt

g ot favgh 33

3,54, 70,432

3,5%,3%, 432 3,24,3%,432

e, af

et

Bo. af L

o Huolding

af ok by

IV} {3) Deialin of apuity sk

i the

campany

Aot Mared 31 2023

S5 it purch 31, I0LF

e of Sharehgigary Fo. gf Ra. of iy
$hares held Shpros fedd ! rofging
Atk Inwgslnignts LyniiedFEIL] FALRDE,0CT 0,608 e
R LA B4,32,377 H i
o O Gl

Y 00 Promoton hotdings

Sharas haid by gromeiors &7 the and of the year

[ % of ghangs

during the year

A "
March 31, ADEE

Provseters N:ﬁi‘“ﬂ.‘f

o of Yotal Sheras| Total

M of shares

estimieng Limitag
FeEs Lenited

|
|

i
i
i

S0
PR

00305

ey

Lichad ta Enuity Slores

{@} Verms/Hights 2
rirs Bawing 2 i,

The Drmpady Mas coe tiss 2 2quby 5

i

% ent

2




JINDAL COKE LIMITED

Motes to Financial Statemants

L4, Othar squity

Z Iy Lok

she

Farticaiars T A5 AL As A

March B, 20237 Mareh 33, 2071

&, G1% Non Cumuiathe Compuiserily Convertible Preference Shares {HCCUREY

Balance at the beginning of the vear
Ada: altoted during the vear

Less: Conversion of Non-Cumulative
Compuisorily Convertible Preferpnce

Shares("NCCRs") inko Mon-Cumulstive Non - T7ELTSE

convertiile redematile preferance
sharas("NCRCEPS") e .
Balance 5t the end of the vear - -
. Retalned aarnings

P L
istributed s

ance At the baginting of

it for the yvesr

@iion on Ravsived vaiug of

Assel {nel of taxas) I

Hance @t the end of the vesr

o, Reveleation Raserve
Reprasents amounts towards reveluation of Bulding and Plant & Machinery

nce 2t the beginning of the vear

b

b

@l

lLess: Depreviation on Revalued value of (758.34)
Laset (nel of Laxaes) " o
Balance st the end of the vear 3,2731.3% e 5.BI7.80
£ Re-messuramant of the net define
Reprasants amounts towerds remeasy
Giziancs al the heginning of the yvesr {359 (9.51%
Re-megsurament of the nst defined benafit . -

N rc. (3 = L i 4 i Sl (‘37&} 156
plans {net of taxas)
Gain / (Loss) on Fair valustor of .00 105
Irvestment (net of taxas)
Balance ot the end of the yvear {067} {2.89}




JEMDAL CORE LIMITED
MOTES 7O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tin La
Paiticidars . AT M hE AL
HMaroh 31, 262% arsh 31, 2071

15, BORRQWTNGES - HOMN CUHIRENT

Secured

Terw Loasng
TanTE Loany framm
Unsecuyred
L% Mon-Qumislivg fion- O
Aefer Motz 34{24u)

10 o Non-Cumulative |
Refdr Mote 31{2){b:

Totat batrowings £3. 439,25
" TRees Ran s ol 9 proveesing fos
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e ot G B
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JINGAL COKE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCLAL STATEMENTS

(¥ 10 bakhsd

Baettaulzen

A% AL
Mzenhda. 2007
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MasofL AL _20AR
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Rues iy Mg 2 Srral en
[IER] LOrs ctharh

Totat Teade Peyaiiuy

[rpfes nats & Geinmg

Wad7er B0 SR Snide iy
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84,15 I.63 2.4 0.7 89 54
nTAD LFAY 17 e 2342 25, 516.04
i P - S
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IINDAL CORE LIMITED
ROTES 7O PINAMCLAL STATEMENTS

53
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31. Composite Scheme of Arrangement

1.

e

i

ol

Composite Scheme of Arrangement here i after referred to as Scheme’) amongst lindal Staindess

Hmited {Teansferor Company/ I5L), Sindal Stainiess {Hisar limited (JSHL}, dindal United Steel Limited
HUSL) aad Jindai Coke Limited UOLI and thelr respective shareholders and creditors under the e provision
of Sec 391-394 read with Sec 100-103 of the Companies Acl, 1956 and other relevant provision of

Companies Act, 1956 and / or Companies Act, 2013 has been sanctioned by the Hon’ble High Court of

Punjah & Haryanz, Chandigarh vide its Order dated 218t Sentember 2015, modified by arder deted 12th

Gctober, 2015,

Section IV of the Scheme envisaged Transfer of the Businass Undeitaking 3 {as defined in the Scheme)
of the Transferor Company comprising, inter-aliz, of the Coke Oven Plant of the Transferor Company
Located at Odishs and vesting of the same with lindal Cake Limited {00) on Going Concera hasis by way
of Slump Sale w.e . appeinted dale, Le. close of business haurs before midnight of Mareh 31, 2015.
Saction IV of the Scheme has becoms effective 0n 24th Septembar 2016 fle. on receint of approvals

from the Orisse Industeial infrastructure Developmant Corporation {OUDCD) for the ransier/grant of

right to use in the land on which Coke Oven Planis is faocsted to JCL a5 specified is the Schemne],

m

Fursuant Lo the Section IV of the Scheme hecoming effective:
3 have been transferred by way of sliump sale to and vested in the company with

Busingss undertakiv
of} business hours before midnight of March 31, 2015,

effzct from the said sppointed date, i.e. close

Business undertaking 3 has been transferrad al a Jump sum consideration of £ 49,264,731 Lakhs; out of
this T 27,500 Lekhs has baen paid by the company in cash during the previous vesr and against the
balance armount of T 11,764.71 Lakhs, the company had to issue and allot to the transferor Cormpany
9,16,47,073 nos. 10% nan-cusnulative non-convertible redeemable preference shares having face value
of ® 10 al par 2ach which were fully allotted and 2,60,00,000 nos. 0.01% non-curulative compulsorily
convertible preference shares having face value of €10 each at par, out of which 83,872,432 no's of shares
ssuad and converted to equal no. of aquity share capital during the financial vear 20156-17.

7Y 2020-21, the Company converted the balance 17,617,568 CCPS initially allotted, into equai

During
:mabile preference shares having face value of ¥

number of "10% ron-cemulative non-converiible redes
10 each fully naid at par.

Undertaking 3, the diff erence hetween the fair values of assets and Hahilites
the lump sum consideration petd/ic be paid a5 stated
charged to Goodwilt Azcount,

On transfer of Business
transferred to and vested in the Company an
above, amounting to $1,166.34 Lakhs has bec

business and activities of Business Undertakis a: 3 carried on by the

iy terms of the Scheme, off the
are deemesd to have been carmied

rransferor company on and after the appointed date, as stated ahove, a
on far behsif of the company.

G
o bpecr
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SINDAL COWE LIMITED

3. IDCO ivide Letter No iDCHOP&ALAE3642{V)/03-16/2073/ Dated 24.00, 2016} has given permission
for Sub-Lease of 72.46 Acres of Land at Jaipur Odisha by 150 to JCL _Accordingly 150 has entered intc lang
term Sub-Leass of Lland to JCL.

32. Estimated smount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital sccaunt and not provided for {net of
advences}is  %23,437.41 Lakhs (¥415.30 lakhs).

33, fxceptivaal iterns Inciude Gain/ (Loss (net} of § 312,76 {a skins (105,77 akhs! on transiation/settlement of

forgign currency monetary items,

34 Based on the intimation received from supplier regardi ing their status under the Micro, Small angd Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2008, the required disclosure is given below

7 _ {Zintakhs)
Particyiars As at As st
31032023 ¢ 31.03.2021

o4 Principal amount dug culstanding
o Z. ¢ interest dua on {1} zbove and unpaid

_ki‘rﬁisj_terees;t paid to the supplier - -
Payments made to the supplier bevond the appointed day during ; - : - f
the vear. j o
tnterest due and payable for the nedod of delay B L - -
Interest acorued and remaining unpaid e G.07 .03

Arnount of further interest remaining due and pavablie in
sugceeding yeur

* Yo the extent information available with the company.

35. a} Derivative coniracts entered into by the company for b edging currency risks and outstanding at year end.

T As 3t 31.03.2022 [ asarateizoen
[ Nature of Foraign Currancy ? Amount ! Foreign Surrency | Armount
i Derivative {irs Millions) {T in Lakhs) L { g‘fh“!ans} { (% in Lakhs)
L |

| Forward Covers ] I f
| osoimr_ bl i f A T

Noie: INR equivalent values hove been calfculoted ot the veor-end exchange rotes in INR to gfve an indicative
volue of the controcts in rupees. Actuol hedges however moy be in differcat currency denaminations.

S

ety
Ty
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JINDAL COKE LIMITED

b} Foreign Currency exgosure those are not hedged by derivalive instrumants or otherwise and outstanding
t

54

vear end.

L__W 5 &s at 31.08.2027 : As ot 31.03.3071 B
E Mature { Foreign Currenty Amount  § Foreign Swrrency Amount [
- | {ie Miltions} (% in Lakhs) lin Mithions} {% in Laiths} |

Account Bavable |

| USD/INR 3830 25,253.31 0.14 102.00

_; Account

| Receivable , -

I UsSD/INR i .00 272 . ]

3&. Segrnent Reporting
Coimmpany cperates in 3 Single Frimary Segment [Business segment) Le, Coke and its By Products.

7. Refated Party Transaciions

in accordance with the requirameants ofl%h? £5 34, on related party disclosures, nam
party, re E“ sof party reletionship, fransactions snd outstanding balances including commitments where

control exits and with whom fransactions have aken place during reporied periods, are:

K@\g Manzgement Personnel [JUMPL

- :
Mo 3 Mamwg | Designation ;
hir. Shashibhushan Shobhnath ,
1. Upadhyay ! | Whals Time Director
2. e, P Ko Agawal L chief financial officer o
3| ar, Pradeep Tahiliani | Company secretary 1

b, Belatad Parties:

. % Share holding /
Frincipal place Drieina! Voting Power
N T . . b & LI i
fame of the gntity in the of peration/ | T pas el
51 Mo, . Activities/MNaturs As at As ot
Group Country of - .
i of Business fzrehs March
incorporation s , N
i FL202% 31,2021
i Holding Company:
| Four Seasons investments
Limit 5‘:{* fw e.f. ilt india ootavestment 0 T4.00% | 74.00%
i EB"%"I"\; Madmg significa Nt ]
i . ;
| influgnce over the company | |
. _ N ! . Stainiess Steel 26.00%
Jindat Stainless Limitad ; india 6.00%
manufaciuring
b denf g o, R Stainless Stesl - ; -
HAndal Stainiess {Hisar] Limited indiy ) :
rmanufacturing ! -
! ¥
i o
T




SINDIAL COKE

LIMITED

il ] Others i
i ! . o S - S
L I3 OP Jindal Charitable Trust i Indiz i Charitable Trust |
e e o e s e e 1 Ay e A8 ettt « 1 1 1t re e e e anm e ! H
<. Related Party Transaciions
) inlakhs
o o Parents Paranis
21 Mo, | Partioulars :
} Company Company
2021.22 2070-21
1| Purchase of Soods 5,545.07 4,398,27
Jindal Stainless Limited 5,.545.07 4,396,27
2 | 3zles of Goods 23,159.41 20,534,316
dndal Stainless Limited 20,296.06 G, 13922
Hindal Stainiess {Hisas) Limnited 2,863,325 1,389,894
I 3| Support Servive Charges Paid 1,309.8 HEG.B8
i Hndla! Stainless Limited 1,3089.8 55,58
4 1 Sharing of Exp. Reimbursed/to be Reimbursed 3,18 4.31
; P dindal Staindess Limited - .18 #.33
[ L No. | m?ﬁﬁfﬁ!}?ﬂ?’ﬁ ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ Others Dihers
E 2021-22 FOG-23
- " O k. -
1] Contribution o a trust in relation to O5R expenditure 22,32
8272 -

OF |

indat Charlitable Trust

riy balances:

{% i lakhs}

Shareholding Company |

f lindal S1ainiess Limited

12.500.00

 5.Mo | Particudars
&5 at An @y ‘
3ist Zist
Hfiarch, 2022 Mareh, 2071
Equlty Share Capital/Preference Shara Capital
11 Eeusity Share Capitsl 3,743.24 3,24%.24
(i3 tindal Stainless Limitad 843,24 843,34
{ii} | Four Season Investrent Limited 2400.00 2480600
21 10% NONCE Preference Share 16,826 .47 10,926.47
. . o 10,926.47 18,82%6.47
Jinvedal Stainless Limbted ’
%4 ¢ Balance 33 atthe end of Y¥oar
: fia.m-s @ a5 at the end of the Yoay 7,287.54 2,178.15
Receivablos
dirdal Staintess tinited 7193.79 | 2.045.35
lingdei Stzinless (Hisar) Limited 183.75 13180
ecurity Deposit receivable {including Prepaid :
| Security Uep pnemee e 12,500.00 | 12,500.00
j ammmz} o
12,500 00




% in Lakhs)

_Key Management Personnal {KAP)

Wharch 33, 2021 i

{
i YesrEnded | Year Ended
Miarch 31, 2007 |
%Shcrw erm benafi 152.95 | 131.11
f Defined contribution plen $ 4 548 | 4.45
I 158,43 135.60

[ — S

# As the Bability for gratuity and leave encashrnent are provided on actusrial basis for the Company as a
whale, amaunts acorued perraining to key managerial personnel are not included above,
$ including PF, ieave encashment paid and any other henefit,

38, Earnings per share {EPS)

] - {% i Lakhs)
;f si | o Description - ] Yearended Year ended !
P e ,I P ndarsh 31, March 31, |
Lo oBpmzoob o0
R Profit/{lass) for 'h(:;- yn* 23 B74.06 577529 ;
5. | weishted Avarage 3,24,32,431 | 55245549 |
iwg;:‘_w'_"sz"eagh*c.na Average N 3,24,32,437 | 36245548
7361 | 9584
! E)r uted Ear mi’!P’z par share 73.61 1594 :
,n Face Value Per Share (in X w000 | tcoo

35, Financial risk manogement

Financial risk faciors

The Lcmpaw prmmmi financial Habilities, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main nurpose
of these financial liabilities is te manage finances for the Compsny's eperations, The Commpany has shart term
current e*\vest*nerf:% onty. The Company's activities expose 1t 1o g variety of financial risks:

=f Market risk

Markat riskis the risk that the fair value or future cash Bows of 3 financial instrument will Tluctuate Because of
chenges in market prices. Marke! prices comprise ﬂ ze types of dsle currenoy rate risk, interest rate risk 2nd

other price risks, such as eguity price risk and cormmedity risk. Financial instruments affected & ‘“,r market risk

include teans and borrowings, depasits, investiments, and derivative financial instrumentis, F araign currency fisk
is the risk that the fair vaiue or future cash Hows of a2 financial instrument will Huctuate beesuse of cha nges in
foreign exchange rates. Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of 2 financial
because of changes inmarket interest rates, This is hesed orn the financial assets and

istrumant will fluctusie b

finzncial liabilities held as of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,

i1} Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meeat its obligations under 2
contract, e c‘ ing to a fnancial loss.

financial instrument or cusiomer




JINDAL COKE LIMITED

i) Liguidity rigk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet jts present and
obligations without incurring unacceptable fosses.

The Company’s aversit risk management programme focuses on the vnpredictability of finandal markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company's finantist performance.

Market Risk

The sensitivity anzalysis excludes the impact of movements in market varisbles on the carrving value of post-
employment benefit ohligations provisions and an the non-financia! assets and lisbilities. The sensitivity of the
relevant Statement of Profit and Loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective markat risks.
The Company’s activities expose it to & variety of financial risks, inciuding the effects of changes in forsign

currency exchange rates and interest rates. Howevar, such effect is not material,

exchange risk and sensitivity
Y lramau.s business primarily in Indian Rup
wydbi @5 andis th t

des
fi at ral b

rency loar

(“Igﬁ Cur

tions of

ee ard USH. The Company has fo
mm!gn exchange risk, Certain iransac

The Co

toreign currs
Compary
currencies,

{a} Foreign
dasler iyl

J

;f\f

v assels and lahnlities are denomingied i similar foreis

e
o
»

ac

The fcilowing table demonsirstes the san the USD to the Indian Rupees with all ather varables held
nslve income gue o changes jn

constant, Tha impact on the Company’s profit before tax and other comprehens
the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities is given below:
Foreign Exchange Risk and Seasitivity {Unhedgad]

siiviLY in §

| . Effect an profit bafore Eifect on profit before
Change in ] :
I Particulars rENT 5 1% a
| CUTFRNICY ! .
s For the year ended For the year ended

exchange rate

arch 33, 2022

INR 5% 1,462.67 ] 5.10 ;
UsE Converted into ]
e 5% 1 {1,362.67) {s.40}

The zssumed movement in exchangs rate
eavironmaent.

(b} interest rate risk and sensithvity
The Cornapny's exposure to the risk of
termn debt obligations with flosting interest ratas,
future cost of borrowing,

With all other vadiables held constant, the foliowing tabie d

rete portion of loans and borrowings.

T g

anges in market inlerest rate

cany ch

E
J
‘ March 33, 2023

sensitivity apalysis is based on the currently ohss

gnges in

ernonsira

tas the impact

srvabie marke

sz relates primatily to the Company’s long

rates erwirpnmeni may impact

taf borrowing coston floating

Jy—
i
S



1% Iy Lakhs}

;r h " Effect on profit before I Effect on profit before
| | tax ? tax
tncrease fDecrease in | For the Yesrended 31 | For the Year ended 31
. Particulars Basis Points _ March 2022 March 2621
v x‘N Sorvowings h +50 _ {253.36) (195,04} 3
- , 50 253.26 :’ 19504
Us0 Borrowings ! T - | - “ -
i HES N .

The assumed movement in basis pains for interest rate sensitivity analysis is bazed on the curre ntly abservable

market environmend.

Currency of barrpwings
: arrowing of fixed and floating rate of Interest:

The below tabls demons
{% In Lakhs}
| Particuiars T [ Asof fiarch 31,2022 As of Mare :31,2{}23‘1
Borrowing currenay o ] MR gsD usp |
e e e ., -
Finating Rate Borrowings T | sgesian| - -
dRateBorrowings Lo tegeear| - Y

{c} Commadity price risk and sensitvity
The Company is exposed to the movement in price of key raw materials in domestic and international markets

The Company has in place policies to manage exposure to fluctuations in the prices of the kay raw materials
uszd in operations. The Company enter inte contracts for pracurement of material, most of the transactions are

short term fixed price coniract and 2 few transactions are long term fixed price contracts.

Credit risk

The Company is gxpases i
financing artivities, uding deposits with hanks, mutual funds ¢

instruments,

s {primarily drade receivablas) snd from s

credit risk from it operating activitle
snd financigl institutions and other finsncial

Trade Receivables
customers in normal caurse of business, Tha Company considers faciors such as

Tre Cormpany extends cradit to cus

credit track record in the market and past deatings for extension of credit to customers. The Company mohiors
the payment track record of the customers. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The
Cempany svaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables s low, as s customers are
toczted in severs! jurisdictions end industries and operate in largely independent markets. The Company has
aiso taken advances and security deposits from iis customers &distributors, which mitigate the credit risk to an

grient.

v

by
[

s




As gt 31.03.2022

The sgeing of trade recefvable is as neiow -
{#ts. in ialths}

| Particulars ; 1. h  To! }
pot n Less than | 6 months | 1-2 i 2-3 Mare i
Dus | 6wonths | -4 year YeRrs | yaars thary 31 ;
| i o years |
) Undisputed  Trade | 2052 | 1085538 | - <1109 | 3809 | 1092878
receivailes - considerer i i
good i '
lijUndisputed Trade _ - i
- Recelvables — censidered 3 - - {6.00) boi{4n.4z)
P doubitful ] ;
{1} Bispuied Trade | } -
Recetvablas considersd : { . -
good f
i) Disputed ;
faceivables nonsidersd 1 P~ - e
| doubtil ' ’ i
' Totat e - T 5.08 2.78 |

A gt 21033031

Particuiars

v : :
i Mot { Lessthan | 8 months | 1-2 23 Blore
i bmonths | -1 vear years YERYS than 3

i
St
o
o
o

{i} Undisputed Trade
1

receivables  ~  considered 220 .84 278 3541 482425

|

| (ii)UncﬁIspuie&w e | = !
' Receivebles - considered | {6.00] {3541} [{41.47]
:Vdﬂubtfu! E i
{iii} Disputed  Trade | N i
Receivables considered good J - - ) - !
; m ‘ i}

{tv) Disputed Trade . - -
Receivablas considersd g
| doubtfui
‘ loo 1 8777.22 ) B8

I
Wl
ud

=
s

&
af
&0
Pk
ey
=




JINDAL COKE LIMITED

Financial instruments and cash deposits
The Company considers factors such as track record, size of the institution, markat reputation and servic

standards o select the banks with which balances and deposits are maintainad. Generally, the hzlances ara
maintained with the institutions with which the Company has alse availed | corrow;r;g< The Company does not
maintain significant cash and deposit halances other than those required for its dav to day operations,

Uquid”'ﬁy risk

The Company’s objective is to; at all times maintain optimum lgvels of liquidity to mest its
reguirernents. The Company reliss on a mix of borrowings, capital infusion and excess operating cash fows o
et i3 needs for funds. The current committed lines of credit are sufficient to mesat ils short to mediam term
expansien needs. The Cum*ﬁany monitors rolling forecasts of its liquldity reguirements to ensure it has sufficient
cash 1o meet operational neads while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing
fsilfties at all times so that the Company does not breach borrpwing limits or covenznis (where applicable) on

s cash and collateral

any of its boerrowing facilities.

e table below gprovides undiscoun
derivative financisl tiabilities into relevant maturity based on the remaining period at the halance she

{;Gsitrac-.uaa maturity date,

| Particulars | Sarrying ! L iZvear | 23 YVewr Mi&m than Total 5
! Arnaunt | i 3 years -

! Interast bearing T

E borrowings &1,577.67 ‘ 43837 - - 61,149.35 51,577.67
i i ;
1 Trade Payable 35,605 58 g 35,541.97 L7.85 21.98 3380 3560558

g Grher financial ]

E fiahilities 104745 959,31 11.27 0.57 76301 104745
| Toptal ) 9823070 25,918.60 2912 2253 i £3,759.45 S8, 230,70 |

{% in Lakhs}

at Bdst March 2023 . . R
arving fiessthani| | 1 plorethan |
tarrying 23vesr | o 0 Tot
i

‘rfa ritculars i

- ] Year _ -~  dyeurs ! N
interest bearing I '
bharrowings 22816 - - 49, 70692 49,835.08
Trade pavable 1.023.00 55.63 | - 2.20
Chther financial i
Habilities £5.19

48,774.31

Total

networth, EBITDA to gross interest,

The Company is required to maintain ratios Gneluding total debt to E8ITDA
e greements at specified levels.

debt service coverage ratio and secured coverage ratio} as mentionad inthe |




Competition and price risk
The Company Taces competition from
competitive sdvantage in terms of high

-guad
of products to meet the needs of i custam

Capital risk management
The Company 8im to menage s cap
and to optimise returns to our sh c‘rei lders

loeat

213,

and foreign competitors. Nevertheless, |
ity products and by continuously upgrading its

tal efficiently so as to safeguard s ebility o continue as a going concem

The capital siructure of the Company is based on managament’s judgement of the approprizte balance of key
elements In order to meet its sirategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the armount of canital in proportion

to risk and manage the capital structure
of the underlving assets.

in light of changes in esongmic conditions and the o
te order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the

characteristivs

sk

armount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or fssue new shares.

g Cornpany’s policy s to mainiain a stat
investor, creditos

LA
The Tompany wi %

Tha Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net dabt divided by totel cenital which is given as
under:-
{Tin
Gearing ratio Lalkhs)
| Pasrticuiars Az at March Az 3t March
31, 2002 31, 2021
Loans and horrawings B1,577.67 45,825.08
Less: cash and eash equivalents 24,240.47 4,3G2.77
Met debt 37,337,270 45,632.31
| Total capitq,%‘ {Share Capital+ Other 41,434.09 17.331.79
eguity)
‘ Capital and Net debt 78, 77129 62,966.10
Gearing ratio {Net debt/ Tots! 17% 72%
Capftai)
i oraer o schieve this oversll objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims 1o
that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loens and borrowings that define

capital structure requirements. Th
and borrowing for regorted pericds,

ere have bbeh ni breaches of the financial covenants of any interest bearing




JINDAL COKE LIBHTED

40, Fair value of financial assets and Habilities
Set out below is a comparison by dess of the carrying arncunts and fair value of the Comgany's financial
mstrurmants thet are recognised in the financial statements,

% in Lakhs}
Ag at March 31, 3027 | As at March 31, 2021 !
| Partizulars Carrving | Fair Value Carrying Falr Yahue
e HoUnT ) amount B

| Financial sssats designated at fair

value through 0 14.02 14.02 4867 A.57

Imvestrient {in shares - noncurrant) : :

Financial assets designated at !
| amortized gost :

Fixed deposits i 59361 593.81 552.96 ¢ 552.96

Cash and cash eguivalents 24,240,47 28,240.47 4,302.77 | 4,302.77
P Trade Regeivabis 10,887 .37 10,.887.37 A, T804 4,782.84
| Other Financial As 1,434.97 1,434.97 | 1,446.58 1,846.58

L _wiaveaal 3117044 13,088.82 11,089.82

i Financial lisbilities designated at ’ :
| amortized cost

Borrowings- fixed ra ; 10,926.47 10,826.47 | 10,326.47

Borrowings- fimtn.g rate ? A0,651.20 39,008.61 35,008.01
| Trede payables 35,605.58 1,080.83 1,080.83
| Other financiat liabifities L1 1,04745 1,277.38 1,277.38
i | 9373070  95,230.70,  52,293.29 57,293.29

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Company measures financisl instruments at fair value o accordance with the sccounting peliciss mentioned
above. Fair valug is the price that would be received to sell ar assat or paid to transfer 2 Hahilit \,, iy an orderly

transaction betwesn market participants at the measurement c%ezira The fair value measurement is hased on the

presumption that the transaciion 1o seil the asset or transfer the Hability takes place either:
Fairvalues are categorised into different levels In a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation

hmques as foliows:
evel 1 gquoted prices (unadjusted) in active marksts for identical assets or lishilities,
ey ei 2 inputs other than quoted prices included in Leval 1 that are observable for the asset or fability, either
directly {L.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from pricas),
Level 3 Inputs which are not bassd o observable market data. lunobsarvable inputss,

.
23]
i
'
L

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a Habilily, the Company usss observeble market date as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair valve of an asset or 2 Hability fall into different tevels of the far
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorisad in iis entirety in *he same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that s significant 1o the entire measurement. The Company reccgnises
wansters bebween levels of the fair valug higrarchy at the end of the reporting p&rmd &_qri;ﬁgw!‘rif:’r% the change

hias ocourred.

g gt




HNDAL CORE LIMITED

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company’s asset and lizbilities, grouped

into Level 1 to tevel 7 g5 described below:

Assats f Hghillties seasured at fair vaiue {Accounted)
1% in Lakhsj

As at March 31, 2622
[ levell | level2 | Lavsl3

! Particutars

i

Financial assets I !
| investment |
| -1n shares - Non-current | 12021

- mutuat funds - current | - 5 - -
I_Other Financial Assets 1 1,434.97 |
e ’ As 5t Warch 31, 2021 1
: Particulars R 7 S -
P Levell | level2 tevel3
| Financial assats 5 i
! nvestment : ,I
% - i shares —~ Non-current 467 |
Ut mutes funds - currs - t . -
z Ocher Financial Assets | I i

Assets f Lishilities for which fair veiue i disclosed:
{Tin Lakhs)

| N L ks stMarch 31,2022
| tevell | level? | Lewgid
Financlal labilities | |
Borrowings- fixed rate liosrear ;
Other financial liabilities .| 1,047.45 - |
| Sarticutars As at March 31, 2023
o 1 develd | tevelZ | levels
| Financial liskitities
j Borrowings- fbed rate ; -
| Other financial iabilities | -

.’\.:

ring the year ended March 31, 2
air valug messurements, and no ti‘é”ic‘rﬁt into and out of Level 3 far value measureme

vl
o

~+.

nsaction/hatence under tevel 3.
! awing table describes the va
Fhaarch 31, 2022 and  March 31, 2021 respectively:

£,

PARRSENE
'.n Q w
o]

gy
—r

O

and March 31, 2021, there were no transfers between Le

juation techniques used and key inpuis for valustion under fair value hiera

val 1 and Level

There is no

...FA
o
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zp _Assets [ Lisbilities mepsurad ot fai

INDAL COKE LIBITED

; Guantitative
i Falr Valuation [ information
o uat A
| Particulars value ERE Inputs used | about significant
; technigue ! . "
hierarchy ¢ unobservable
inputs

f
1
1

Financial assets

. investement in Mutual Funds-

Current

investment in Shares- Non-

Current

Cther Financial assels

Particulars

¥ remt 2
LeVE o

F pMarket
Valuation
techniguas

P Market
Vatuation
technigues

Flow

As per NAY of
Mutual Fund

Quoted Price at
¢ tock Exchange

Discounted cash

¢ cash flows

Fimangal Liabilities

Gther horrowings-fived rate

Flow

| Discounted

| Fiow

Valuation techningus

Discounted

Cash

Prevailing interest rates in

|
i
| market, Future payv-outs
1

discount future cash flows

t

;‘ Frevailing intersst rates to
i

i

{% in Lakhs)

i

¢ Particulars

i

For the year
ended March

31,2322

Current Tax

7,768.07

Forthe year |
arrded March
L AL20e1

3,591.65

7,768.07

1,591.65

Deferred Tax

3,271.22

1,001.36

1,271.22

1,001.36

! Tax Expenses attributable to current vear's profit
tox of previous year

MIAT

5,035.29
(358.05)

£,583.01

MAT Credit (entitlernent)/reversal

(83.34)

185,34}

Total tax Expensas

2,509.57



JINDAL COKE LIMITED

Py

Effactive Tax Rate {ETR) reconciligtion

A raconciliation of the theoriticel income tax expenss/ (banefit) appiicable to profity/ (oss) before income Lax at
the statutory tax rate in india to the income expensa/ (hepalit) al the Company's eFfective tax rata is as foliows:

fj\fo. , Desceiption ,__: 20EL-E7 §
’ i NetIncorme/(Loss) before taxes 337,555.36
I ! Enacted tax rate 25.168%
3 L Computed tax (income)/Expense 8,193.51 ;
I tnerease/{reduction} in taxes on sccount of:
[ f Tax related to changs of tax rate {2,325.07}
L2 (income exempted from)fexnenses not deductibie in tax 2,613.76
f 3 Permanent Dissllowance z

; incarne fax Expense/(ncome] reported . o Bssiae 0967 |

ax expanses; ncomel s as fnllows:

the analysis of deferred tax expanses;
E” o " Forthe year | Forthe ;
| Particulars ended March ended March |
— i 2022 | 31200
| Book base and tax base of Fived Assety ,428.75) 1090
] (Disaltowance)/ Allowance (netl under Income Tax 3,655.98 {769.65}
i Financial asset and financial iabilities messured at smortized 15 07 / 10} !
| cost{net) ) :
\; Brougnt forward losses sef off 3 - _1L,182.83 i
| Total R 1,004.38
{% in Lakhs)
- Yaar ended Year ended
Particedars Adarch 31, March 31,
B ) 2022 2021
Eemgﬁsnem{@f ook
Deferred tax Gain/ (Lo s;}  ddefined benefit plan 1.27 {1.96}
Deferred tax Gain/ {Loss) on Fair valuation of Investment {2.35} {1.05}
Total {1.08) 2.00




JINDAL COKE LIMITED

nefit obligations

i. Expense recognised for Defined Contribution plan

_ ) % in Lalths]
For the year gndad E ¥or the vear ended |
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
| contribution to provident fund 47,88 * 41.65
L Camgafw s contributionto 81 2.14 | 0.57
' ] 45.02 [ 42.22

Below tables sets forth the changes in the projects
recognized in Balance Sheet as of March 3%, 2022 and Wia
dates

d bens

fit obligation and

foh 3

¢ plan assets and amounts
1, 2021, being the respective measurement

, {2 in takhs)
T B Gratuliy {%mmmﬂ@ L "'sz:rﬁtasstxj {a,m;{m ded) 1
- on 33.03,202% a2z on 31032027
of the obligation at the baginning of 9133 22,03
T N o R 620 T 5.00
% Cwmm se ;‘r“ cast T ' 13.57 k3 |
| Henefits paid - B 7.92) Y |
| Acquisitions / Transfer in/ " . T .74 3
- Acquisitions / rai L e o
[Re-measurements - C_,EUuch flass/ | {gain} 5.05 i 5§ ‘}_______“__
Prasent value of the ob!:gauon at the end of the 1131z PR
vesr , 13.3: G1.23

1

H

{% n Lakhs!

b} Leave Encashment {Compens o Absence)
! | tenve Encashmen: | ieave Encashment
| Particuiars {unfunded) as on {unfunded) as on
B ] 31082022 31032021
Present value of the obiligation at -t‘?;_wi’:]egérmmg of 57.81 i
the year - .
Interest cost L ) 323 L -
Current service cost e 2.09 A
Benefits paid ) L R
Acquisitix - - . R -
L Acquisitions / Transfer out N
| Re-measurements - actuarial loss/ (gain) . 362 L2z B
| Present value of the Ubisoshon at the end of the iy e _—
53.53 57 87

YO




JINDAL CORE LIMITED

Z, Movement in Plan Assets - Gratuity

_[%in Lakhs}

] Particudars E For the yoar ended Faor the year ended ]
! : March 31, 2022 March 31, 202( |
| Fair value of piarn assets at beginning of year | - i
g_lﬁxpected refurn on plar assets ? - - ;
| Employer contributions | e -
| Benefits paid o
Amount recgived oa rederaption of plan assets | -
Acquisitions / Transfer in/ Transfer out o -
Actuarial gain [/ (loss) -
Feir value of plan assats st end of year -
Fresent value of obligation _ 113.13 91.23
Mol funded status of plan o i {113.13) {61.23}
[ Actual return on plan assets i A ,
The components of the gratulty &leave encashment cost are a5 follows:
.Recogrized In profit and ioss
2.} Gratuity o {% iy Lakhis)
Pacticylars o For the year ended on | For the vear ended an :
oo - $1st March 2027 31st March 2021 |
”L}rr@ﬂt Service cost - 13.57 13,53
; Interest ¢ost o i 520 6.60 L
?wpected elurn on plan assals - i
Re-measurement - Act u‘*rr:@i !rw(gam} - -
Past service cost - -
Expenses recognized in Profit and 055 A [ 277 17.53
i
{ S

| Actual return on plan assets

b} Leave Encashment (Compensated Absence)

% in Lakhs)

P For the year ended on | For the vear ended on
i Particulars . N . ; e
31st March 2022 3istMarch 2021

! Current Service cost 8.09 e gat o
Vinterest cost I R 3.83 395

Fxpected return on plan assets - - .
] Re-measurem@ni_- Actuariat loss/{gain} 362 127 B
| Past service cost | - S S
| Expenses recognized in Profit and foss Afc | 1664 1358 |

2o9



JINGAL COKE LIMITED

Recosnisad in other compreheansive

income

(% in Lakhs}

Farticulars

i

Sratuity for the year ended

i3]

Zist March 2032

Gratuity for the year
anged on
315t March 2021

[ Re-measurement - Actuarial joss/(gain)

Z
5.0

1%y

‘{M_L e

(562) |

. The princips! actuarizl assumptions used for astimeting the Company's defined benefit obiigations are set

out beiow:

Welghted averages actuarial assumptions
i

U7 Asof
Sist March, 2022

As of
31st March, 2021

¢ Attrition rate

NA

Discount Rate

= 7.18%

Expected Rate of increase in Compensation levels

5.50%

Expemedﬁate of Heturp on Plan Assets

Maortality rafe

Expected Aversge remal

Ma

A

T100% of 1ALV

100% of 1Al
(2012-14)

ng working lives of o

raployess (ve

2572

The assumption of future salary increase takes into account the inflztion, senforily, sromotion and other

refevant factors such as supply and demand in employrment merket,

I, Zensttiviby analysis:

{Ein Lalths)

{a} Gratuity
I
i

Particulars

i Discount rate

Change in Assurnption

Effect for the year
anded an
Flst March, 2022

g

Effact for the vear gnd&?
O :
 3istipdarch, 2021 ] |

0.5%

{5.84}

{0.5)%

640

Salary Growih rate

0.5%

6.45

{0.51%

(5,94} ;

{b} Leave Encashment {Compensated Absenca)

% in Lakhs)

%

Effect for the veay

Effect for the vear ended I

Particulars Change in Assumpriion ended on 315t March, on }
N 2022 3ise March, 2021 ;
| Discount rate 0.5% {3.86) (3.81) i
L {0.5)% - 4.16 ~
0.5% 4.3

{05}% S

(3.31}

oo



JINDAL COKE LIBITED
The abaove sensitivity analysis s hased on a change in an assumption while holding ali other afﬁumptims
constant inprsctice, this is untikely o oocur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When

calcutating the sensiuvity of the defined henefit obligation to slgwfscaﬂt actuarial assumptions the same method
as besn apolied as when caleulating the defined benelit ohligation recagnisecﬁ

{projected unit credit methad) b
within the Balance Sheet

8. History of experience adjustments is as follows:

{% in Lalkhs)

Particulars ) o '  Gratuily Leave Encashmeant
For the yesr ended March 31, 2022 - -
Plan Lishilities - {lossi/gain {10.54} 3 16.77)
Plan Assets - (lass)/gain - 5 o
| For the year ended March 33, 2028 1 o o
Plan Liabilities - {ioss)/gainm_::ww 1 587 i i1.07] )

Pi {loss}/gnin % - N

an Asget

s {in sbsolute terms Le. undiscounted)

T h For the year e?.r*dsf.e March 31, ¢+ For the vear :me i March 31,
Partiondars i 2027 : o EoEy i
owdivear N 545 - 4.52 L
1tod Year 348 2.8
Zto3 Year 14.54 ] 84
310 4 Year 288 1171 o

2.91 243 i
277 236

| & Year onwards 144 684 122,32

3. Staternent of Employes benefit provision e % in Lakhs)
Particubars | Eorthe vesr ended March 3%, For the vear snded March 31, 5
Gratuily _ 113.13 91.23
Lompe‘mateﬁ amercz« 63.53 _ 57.81 |
Total } wess 1439.04 |

The following tabie
sheet.

1 Carrent and non-current provision for Gratuity and isave encashmeant

As at 31% March, 2022

{T ir Lalchs)

j?%r‘ticuia rs “Gratity re Encashment J
Current provision 2.57 ] E
Mon current provision 118,56 . i

11313 ?

| Total Provis fon

o)



SINDAL COKE LIMITED

As gt 317 March, 2021

f_amch%@rs a2 Gratui-?.-\; ] ]
Cusrent provision . 2.00 |
Mon current provision 89,23 |

ol Provision T

1%, Employees benefit expenses
%o Lakhsl

| Employee benefit expensas . For the year ended March 33, 2022 Forthe year ended March 31, 2022

Salaries and Wages a0  o69.44

Costs-defined bensfitplan | . 5342 47.38

Costs-defined contribution plan | -

Welfare e Xpenses E N 572 S B N ,, A k
| Yoral ; 1,283.24 ! G?S m
- {Figures inno.}
| parrieuiars o For the year ended dMarch T Forthe year ended March 31,

g articulars 2 a7

| Aver ng(‘ e 140

20 presentation of defined benef 2 i@
w;szamm is in the nature of define nefit glan, Re-measurement gaing/{ioss
hown under OCH as tems that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss and &

afined benefit nlans is
me tax effect on the

-Leave encashment cost is in the nature of short-term employee benefits.

Presentation in Statement of Profit and Loss and Balancs Sheet

Expensa for service cost, net interest on net delined benefit liabillty (gssel) is charged 10 Stetement of Profit &
Loss.

NG A5 19 do not reguire segregation of provision in current and non-current, however nel defined linbility
{Assets) is shown as current and non-current nrovision in balance sheet as per 1M AS 1

Actuarial Hability for short term bene f< t5 {leave encashment costy is shown as current and nan-current provision
n halarce sheat,

b

When theres is surplus in defined benelit plan, company is required to measure the net defined benefit assot at
the fower of) the suriys in Lb defined benefit plan and the assets celling, determined using the discount rate
specified, ie market vield at the end of the reporting pertod on goverament bonds, this 3 applicable Tor
domestic companies, foreign company can usg corporate bonds rate,

The Company &

5 Ehess gssurnprions with iis
i

/ | : nre
standards, The rz?rrtais’ty rates used are as publishad Ly one of ‘he leadmg lifa i!“‘f.l..‘rai'ic ampanies in india,

e

P92



HNDAL COKE LIMITED

A4." Due to gutbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2619 {COVID-19) which has been decisred 83 2 Pandemic by the
Waorld Healih Grganization and subsaguent fock down ardered by the Central and State Government{s) in India,
the manufacturing operations of the Company were also affected. Considering the market 5!1'smptiors causeg by
Covid-19 leading to fall in demand and the ‘continuous process plant’ nature of Coke Oven Plany, the apwat;om
of the Company were scaled down Thereafier, the Company has baen scaling up opﬁratmm it the phased

manner depending upon the market conditions with Hifting of lackdown while complying with the necessary

it

insteuctions/guidelines issued by relevant authorities.
This Pandemic has disturbed the sconomic activitias in the Country and the Company is clos el\' el oo ing mc
impact on its cperations and sustainability. The Campany, a3 on the date of approv :
belioves that this Pandemic may aot have a significant adverse impac 'f

perfonmance of the Company. ©

45 Other disclosures

{al. Audiors Remunersiion

Forthe year ended | Forthe s;‘ v ended
31st March 2022 Zist March 2021

i
. ¥ H
Partiouiars ]
i
i

Statutory Auditors

a) Auditfees | 240 )
bl Tax sodif Fees ¢ 115 315
Total ERE 3.55
! - — e
| Cost Auditor
aj Audit Fees 0.55 B .55
|
| Totsl g%, ! DR
{1 The Company has nol proposed any dividend 1o its sharehalders during the
{c}. The Company has not given any foan of given any guaraniee with respect to the partles covered under

section 186{4) of !_E Companiss Act, 2077
under section 186{4} of the Companies Act2012 in one associate as depicied I Llong Term Investment

The Company has made investments in ang Company covered

Schedule.

{d) During the Financiai x,fea I316-17, the secwriiy deposits Tor leases under ingd A8 have been reco at
discounted valus and the differgnce betwesen undiscounted and discounted vaiue hag besn recognised as

‘Deferred lease rent’ M,;m has besn amortised cver respective lease ferm as rent experse under “other
- Trewpenses’. The discounted value of the security deposits is érmreased over the period of leass ferm by
e : wmpnfssrg the notignal interest income uncer 'sther incomse

H
f

A D



SIMDIAL

COXE LIMITED

48, Additional Regulatory Information

i,

Hi.

is.

The f“ompasﬂzy does not have any immovable property. Heace the disclosure requiranment is not

apuiicable.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equinpment as defined under rule 7 of the

Companies [Registered valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017 during the year 2021-22 and 2020-21.
s {as

The company has not granted any loan to promaters, directors, KBPs and the releted parti
defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally ar jointly with any other person.
Sgeing of Capital-Wark-br Progress [CWIP) is as below:-

(2} Capital-Wark-in Progress {CWIF)

{Amount Bs. intakh}

W,

vii.
Wi

X.

Xi.

[ Amountin CWiPfora perxed of _ P Yotal
Less than 1 I 2-3 More than3 |
| year 1-Z years : years years i
| |
K 50 | o 16167

The company does not own any benami progerty under the Benami Transacitons {Prohibition] Act,
1288 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder,

The Company have loan fror banks or finands! institutions on the basis of security of current
assets. The guarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions
are in agreemant with the books of accounts.

Caompany is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institition or other fender,

The company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

The compzny do not have any charges or satisfaction vet to be ragistered with Registrar of
Companies beyond the statutory period.

The company has not advanced/ loaned/ invested funds {borrowed/share premiumfany other
saurces of kind of funds) to any other person(s} or entity{ies), inciuding foreign entities
{intermediaries], with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
intermadiary shafl {3) directly/ indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or {b) provide any gusranies,
security or the like to or on hehalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The company has not received any funds from any other person{s) or entity(ies}, including foreign
entities (Funding Party), with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that
the company shall (a] directly/ indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Uitimate beneficiaries) or (b} provide any guarantee,
security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate heneficiaries.,

The provisions related to number of lavers prescribed under clause (87} of section 2 of the Act read
with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 are not applicable on the company.

|
i

"

an



JINDAL COKE LIMITED

X,
Jux
3
&
>
£
il
ey
B
fac
o
¢

P— SR : . - v e
\ . . , | : . :
5.0 Ratio 43-Mar-22 Fi-Mar-?i % change Regson for verianee
- 3 e A '
] R wovement in ratio dug 1o |
Current ratic R 4.53 -56.25% 1, . sy
ingrease in raw material
fovementin retio due
i Debt- Eguity Batio 0.90 261 A5 80% | fo impravament in i
. profitabilly :
Bebi Sarvice © fAovement inratio dua to
| Debt Service Coverage - o 5 s
o =es 1.52 2.64 -37.27% | loBn repayment ang
ratio . e
improvemant in EBITOA
»»»»» 3 S - S — -
aisdusto
Returs on Bduity ratio al 538 i
4
Inventory Turmover raiio 450
o)
T wl e T 5
Trade f\&i.-‘f'!\rr.sb“, 1555 w1 A
Turnovar Ratic
s
‘ 1337 5B
7 {
Movement in ratio due to
Met Capital Turnover 200 543 o woe, | CTEBSE InFevEAue snd
i 00U VA LD .
Batio - fmprovement in :
. B i
“ prafitabilty ;
increase i ratic
insresse
Met Brofit ratio 018 0.08 i53.50% rabiliny of
= ‘ in profitability of the
G SOMPAny,
_________ U ‘
Increase in ratio is dus o
. o i o) :
Return on Capital 631 0 46 po fncrea.ia .
| Emplayed in profitabiiity of the ;
: ‘ COMpEny.

. i
rovement inratic due o |

| Return on Investment 0.00 .08 | G4 54% PR o
. ' = - maturity of Fued desosit
Bk — R B U

WA

Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows ¢

.
(&) Current Ratio : Current assets / €

s




JNOAL COKE LIMITED

J—

|

Particulars

b} Debt Equity Ratio - Total Debt/ Net Worth

Total Dabt: Secured Loans + Unsecured Loans - Liguid Investmeants

Met Worth © Equity Share Capital + Reserves {Excluding Revaluation Reserve)

{c} Debt Service Coverage Ratio : EBDIT / {Finance costs + Principal repayment of long term debt

during the pericd}

{d}Beturn on Fguity Ratio = MNet Income/Sharcholdzr’s squity

Met lncome  Profit after tax

Shareholder's equity : Eguity Share Capital + Reserves {Exciuding Revaluation Reserve)

{&] Inventory turnover ratio 7 {Cost of materiat consumed + Purchase of stock-in-trade+
Changes in inventoriasj/{average of opening and dlosing inventory
of BM, SFG, FG and Scrap)

{¥Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Net Credit Sales / {Average of epening and closing trade receivabie
far the pericd)

(g} Trade payables turnover ratio : (Cost of matearial consumeds Purchase of stock-in-trade+
Changes in inventories }/ (Average of opening and
closing trade pavable for the year)

{h) ret capital turnover ratio @ Total Turnover / Shareholder’s equity

Sharehelder’s equity ; Equity Share Capital + Reserves {(Fxcluding Revaluastion Rassrve}

3 Net Profit ratio : Net Profit/Net Sales

1] Return on Capitat employed: ERIT/ Capital emploved

8T : {Profit hefore tax +finance cost}

Capital emmoloved © {Total Assets - Current Liability)

i
i

L e,

At its meeting held on 28 Jznuary, 2027, the Beard considered and approved a Cornposite Scheme
of Arrangement pursuant to Sections 230 to 237 and other relevant provisions of Companies Ac,
2013, amongst the Company and lindsl United Steel Limited {'Scheme’}, The aforementionad
Scheme is subject to necessary statutory and regulatery approvals under applicable laws, including

5—!!)

approval of the Hon'ble Nationel Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench {"NCLY

XV, Mo income has been surrendered or disclosed for which transaciion was not recorded in the books
of accountsthat has beer surrendered or disclosed as income during the vear in the taxassessments
vnder the income Tax Act, 1361 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the

eome Tax Act, 1861),

kY. CSH provisions under section 135 of the Companies Act are applicable to this company:-
{Rs. im Lakhs)

(8} amount required to be spent by tiw_é'_ééi}ﬁ"rjgny during the

year, -
(b} amount of expenditure incurred, 97.12 S S
ic] shortfall st the end of the year, nil .

{d) totat of previous years.
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